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CECBANKSA 

CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVEINCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in thousand RON unless otherwise stated) 

Grou~ 
Note 2023 restated 

2022 

Interest income calculated using the 
5 4,086,426 2,624,941 effective interest method 

Interest expense 5 (2,452.257) (1,085.936) 
Netinterestincome 1.634.169 1.539.005 

Commission income 6 397,318 372,754 
Commission expense 6 (120,539) (101,863) 
Net commission income 226,279 270.891 

Net gain from trading 97,423 95,035 
Net loss from financial derivatives 7 (57,927) (154,477) 
Net gain/Ooss) from financial assets 
mandatorily measured at fair value 3,350 (5,079) 
through profit or loss 
Net gain from the sale of financial 
assets measured at fair value through 16,810 1,686 
other comprehensive income 
Net gain from foreign exchange 

27,832 26,557 differences 
Other operating income 8 14,211 19,786 
Bargain gain on subsidiary acquisition 2.1 22,569 
Operating income 2,035.216 1.293.404 

Impairment losses on financial 11 (388,655) (334,624) instruments 
Staff costs 9 (547,235) (490,380) 
Depreciation and amortisation 
expenses 19,20,21,2:; 

(132,691) (105,844) 
Other operating expenses 10 (350,063) (sss,zz6l 

Operating expenses (1,418.644) (1.286.624) 

Profit before tax 616.572 506.780 

Income tax expense 12 (z6,42zl (82,454) 

Net Profit for the year 540,145 424,326 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Bank 
2023 

4,085,301 

(2,452.258) 

1.633.043 

385,053 
(120,508) 

264,545 

97,423 
(57,927) 

3,350 

16,810 

27,831 

14,112 

1.999.187 

(388,666) 

(538,801) 

(132,195) 

(348,057) 

{1.402,zi9) 

591.468 

(75,660) 

515,808 

restated 
2022 

2,624,941 

(1,085.936) 

1.539.005 

372,754 
(101,863) 

270.891 

95,035 
(154,477) 

(5,079) 

1,686 

26,557 

19,786 

1.793.404 

(334,624) 

(490,380) 

(105,844) 

(sss,zz6l 

(1.286,624) 

506.780 

(82,454) 

424,326 

This version of the financial statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedence over this translation. 



CECBANKSA 

CONSOLIDATED ANO SEPARATE STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS ANO OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVEINCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(All amounts are in thousand RON unless otherwise stated) 

Groun Bank 
Note 2023 restated 2023 restated 

Attributable to: 
Theparent 
N on-controlling interests 

Other comprehensive income 
Items that may be reclassified 
subsequently to profit or loss: 
Net gain/loss from transactions with 
financial assets measured through 
other items of comprehensive income, 
net oftax 

Net gain from transactions with 
financial assets measured through 
other items of comprehensive income, 
transferred to profit or loss upon 
disposal, net of tax 
Items that will not be reclassified to 
profit or loss: 
Net gain from revaluation of land and 
buildings 
Net gain from equity investments 
Prior year corrections 

Other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive income for 
theyear 

Attributable to: 
Theparent 
Non-controlling interests 

540,145 

427,272 

(14,120) 

36 

5.331 
803 

~19,292 

959A3Z 

959A3Z 

(*) The information has een restated as described in Note 2.30 

ts were signed on behalf of the Bank by: 

of Executive Committee 

...J 

2022 

424,326 515,808 

(390,370) 427,272 

(1,416) (14,120) 

16 

5.,1sg 5.331 
.(s94l 803 

(38z,212) ~19,292 

935,100 

Ştefan Silviu Fota 
Director, Accou • Division 

Th 

Pa 

,ci: es 13 to 167 form an integral part of these historical financial informatio . 
~ 

g__cn~il{•ements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 

2022 

424,326 

(390,370) 

(1,416) 

16 

5.,1sg 

.(s94l 

(38z,212) 

~ 

care has 0~11fi'.taJ~"t10 at the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation e 11 r&-· tno , views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedence over this translation. 



CECBANKSA 

CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(All amounts are in thousand RON unless otherwise stated) 
Group Bank 

Not31 December restated 31 31 December restated31 
~ 2023 December 2023 December 

2022 2022 
Assets 
Cash and balances at Central Bank 13 11,971,822 10,104,087 11,971,816 10,104,087 
Financial assets at fair value through profit 14 

92,598 22,630 92,598 22,630 
orloss 
Loans and advances to banks and public 15 8,339,662 6,119,331 8,305,674 6,119,331 institutions 
Loans and advances to customers 18 31,624,550 29,242,809 31,624,550 29,242,809 
Financial assets measured at fair value 

16 20,779,895 10,369,254 20,779,895 10,369,254 through other comprehensive income 
of which pledged securities (repo 

1,444,881 1,444,881 
agreements) 

Financial assets measured at amortized cost 17 9,589,902 4,770,943 9,576,147 4,770,943 
of which pledged securities (repa 1,131,849 320,258 1,131,849 320,258 
agreements) 

Investment in subsidiary 5,000 
Property and equipment 19 786,441 749,364 780,998 749,364 
Intangible assets 20 138,129 90,487 136,877 90,487 
Investment property 21 54,159 59,872 54,159 59,872 
Right-of-use assets 22 95,702 94,080 95,702 94,080 
Deferred tax assets 31 75,064 75,064 
Current tax asset 20,257 20,695 
Other financial assets 23 86,671 88,966 79,840 88,966 
Other assets 24 ~ ~ 29.638 ~ 
Total assets 83!609i49l 61!812!246 83,553,589 611812,246 
Liabilities 
Derivative financial liabilities 14 3,872 24,950 3,872 24,950 
Deposits from banks 25 1,663,105 2,698,249 1,663,105 2,698,249 
Deposits from customers 26 72,744,078 52,432,793 72,744,806 52,432,793 
Borrowings from banks and other financial 

27 179,055 278,242 179,055 278,242 
institutions 
Debt securities issued 28 2,137,255 653,636 2,137,255 653,636 
Subordinated liabilities 29 1,434,229 1,439,628 1,434,229 1,439,628 
Current income tax liability 21,805 21,805 
Deferred tax liabilities 31 2,287 2,099 
Lease liabilities 32 98,723 96,475 98,723 96,475 
Provisions 30 49,731 47,804 49,731 47,804 
Other financial liabilities 34 358,391 151,264 329,985 151,264 
Other liabilities 33 ~ 24&52 82,287 24&52 
Total liabilities zB,zs61481 sz,918,902 zBiz2s!14z 5:z,918,902 
Equity 
Share capital 35 2,499,746 2,499,746 2,499,746 2,499,746 
Revaluation reserve for property and 

36 558,675 559,956 558,446 559,956 equipment 
Reserves for financial assets at fair value 
measured through other items of 37 (221,078) (639,567) (221,078) (639,567) 
comprehensive income 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Pa e3 of16 
This version of the financial statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 

care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedence over this translation. 



CECBANKSA 

CONSOLIDATED ANO SEPARATE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in thousand RON unless otherwise stated) 
Other reseives 38 325,088 
Retained earnings 
Total equity, excluding non­
controlling interests 

1,690,577 

4,853.008 

Non-controlling interests g 
Total equity 4.853.010 
Total liabilities and equity 83,609.491 
(*) The information has been estated as described în Note 2.30 
The :financial statements wer. signed on behalf of the Bank by: 
Bogdan Constantin Ne cşu _ ~ 
General Manage r ide t of Executi~ mmittee 

295,517 325,088 
1,1zz,692 11666,240 

3.893.344 4.828.442 

3,893,344 4,828.442 
61,812,246 83,553.589 

Ştefan Silviu Fota 
Director Accounting Division 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Pa e4 of 167 
This version of the financial statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 

care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedence over this translation. 

295,517 
1,1zz,692 

3.893.344 

3.893.344 
61,812,246 



CECBANKSA 

CONSOLIDATED ANU SEPARATE STATEMENT Olt' CHANGES IN EQUITY 

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in thousand RON unless otherwise stated) 
-- -
Group 

Revaluation reaervefor ~ ~ 

Re- nancial assets at fairvalue ;ttributab ~ 
Share evaluation measured through other Other Retained ~ ling 

Note ~ ~ comprehensive~ reserves eamino JUU:mt~ _X2ml 

Balance as at 1 January 2023 2 ~99 Z46 S599~ (639 562) ~ ~ 3,Şoa344 : 3693~4 
Comprehensive incomet 

Net Profit for the year - 540,145 540,145 540,145 

Other comprehensive income: 

Gain from change in the fair value of financial assets measured through 
432,609 432,609 

432,6o9 

other comprehensive income, net of deferred tax 

Net gain from transactions with financial assets 

measured through other items of comprehensive 
(14,120) (14,120) 

(14,120) 

income, transferred to profit or loss upon 

disposal, net of truc 

Retained eamings from corrections -- -- -- -- 623 JlQ3 B.Q3 

Total comprehensive income 418,489 540,948 959,437 959,437 

Other contributions and clistributlons: 

Revaluation reserve representing realised surplus, net of deferred tax 36 (1,510) 1,510 

Decrease în other reserve.s - sale ofland ' (2) (2) (2) 

Legalreserve I 29,573 {29,573) 

Other acquisition adjustments -- ~ -- -- --22.9 2 ~ 

Total other contributions and distribui '• _o , / = ......,U.a§Jj ~ ~ i2Z g ~ 

Balanee as at 31 December 202J - 249924§ ~ (221078) ~ ~ 4,853 oo8 ..,,g~ 
Bogdan Constantin NeaC":1~ ,.\'f . ~ ~ n ~ I 

General Manager -Pre '1de1:f!f 1, ,1v,-ti11)P1ittee 
Ştefan Silviu Fota 

Director, Accouc.tlni Div,ision 

The accompanying notes f: 
Pa, .e 5 ofl6· ' ~ 
. •~ -·-· . .. . I 
This version of the financi,~ 

representation of the original. 

'\ I ef 

J •· ,m the original, which was prepared in Romanian. A1l possible care bas been taken to ensure that the translation is , ,1 a~~ -te 
•tion of inforrnation, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedence over this tmnslation. 

~a . __.- ~G 
~Al_l'.ţ. Of R&t"tO 



CECBANKSA 

CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in thousand RON unless otherwise stated) 

Share levaluation 

Balance as at 1 January 2022 

Comprehensive income: 

Net Profit for the year 

Other comprehensive income: 

Gain from change in the fair value of financial assets measured through other 

comprehensive income, net of deferred tax 

Net gain from transactions with financial assets 

measured through other items of comprehensive 

income, transferred to profit or loss upon 

disposal, net of tax 

Increase in revaluation reserve, net of deferred tax 

Retained earnings from corrections 

Total comprehensive income 

Other contributions and distributions: 

,rote 

36 

Revaluation reserve representing realised~ rplus, net of deferred tax 36 

Decrease in other reserves - sale of lan 

Legal reserve 

Total other contributions and 

Balance as at 
Bogdan Consta 
General Manag Corn~ 

canital 

2 499.z46 

2,499.246 

The accompanying 

Page 6 of16z 

an integral part of these financial statements. 

rese_nr~ 

566.z50 

16 

16 

(6,810) 

6 810 

Group 

Revaluation reserve for 

financial assets at fair value 

measured through other Other Retained 

comprehensive income reserves earnings Total 

(252 933) ~ 772.489 3 856 233 

(385,218) 

(1,416) 

(386,634) 

(3) 

25,339 

~ 

424,326 

_ls94l 

423,732 

6,810 

(25,339) 

(18,529) 

424,326 

(385,218) 

(1,416) 

16 

_ls94l 

37,114 

(3) 

(3) 

(639,567} ~ 1 177 692 3.893.344 
Ştefan Silviu Fota 

Director, ~, , •~11.L.l 

This version of the fi 
representation of the ori, : 

anslation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. Ali possible care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurMe 
~ ' 'r{'\""'_,,...ers of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedence over this translation. 



CECBANKSA 

CONSOLIDATED ANO SEPARATE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in thousand RON unless otherwise stated) 

Share levaluation 

'lfote 

Balance as at 1 January 2023 

Comprehensive income: 

Net Profit for the year 

Other comprehensive income: 

Gain from change in the fair value of financial assets measured through other 

comprehensive income, net of deferred tax 

Net gain from transactions with financial assets 

measured through other items of comprehensive 

income, transferred to profit or loss upon 

disposal, net of tax 

Retained earnings from corrections 

Total comprehensive income 

Other contributions and distributions: 

Revaluation reserve representing realised ~ lus, net of deferred tax 36 

Decrease in other reserves - sale of land 

Legal reserve 

Total other contributions and 

Balance as at 31 ~~ 
Bogdan Const 
General Mau,g ·c ~ cut1ve omm1ttee 

Ca}!ital 

2 499.z46 

2.499 z46 

Theacco 

Pa 

form an integral part of these financial statements. 

reserve 

559.956 

(1,510) 

~ 

558.446 

Bank 

Revaluation reserve for 

financial assets at fair value 

measured through other Other Retained 

comprehensive income reserves earnings Total 

(639 567) ~ 1.177,692 3 893.344 

432,609 

(14,120) 

418,489 

<221.ozBl 

515,808 

__8Q3 

516,611 

1,510 

(2) 

29,573 (29,573) 

~ (28,063) 

515,808 

432,609 

(14,120) 

__8Q3 

935,100 

(2) 

~ 
325.088 1.666.240 4 828.442 
Ştefan Silviu Fota 

T 
representation o 

~ free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate 
·evemuv.ul matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedence over this translation. 



CECBANKSA 

CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in thousand RON unless otherwise stated) 

Share levaluation 

~ote reserve 

Bank 

Revaluation reserve for 

financial assets at fair value 

measured through other Other Retained 

comprehensive income reserves earnings Total 

Balance as at 1 January 2022 

Comprehensive income: 

canital 

2.499.z46 566.z50 (252 933) ~ 772.489 3 856.233 

Net Profit for the year 

Other comprehensive income: 

Gain from change in the fair value of financial assets measured through other 

comprehensive income, net of deferred tax 

Net gain from transactions with financial assets 

measured through other items of comprehensive 

income, transferred to profit or loss upon 

disposal, net of tax 

Increase in revaluation reserve, net of deferred tax 

Retained earnings from corrections 

Total comprehensive income 

Other contributions and distributions: 

36 

Revaluation reserve representing realised ş(irl)1us, net of deferred tax 36 

Decrease in other reserves - sale of land 

Legal reserve 

Total other contributions_and 

16 

16 

(6,810) 

6,810 , 

2,499 z46 

(385,218) 

(1,416) 

(386,634) 

(3) 

25,339 

~ 

(639,567) ~ 

424,326 

_(sgAf 

423,732 

6,810 

-
(25,339) 

(18,529) 

11zz 692 

~ tive Co~ ~
~ ~ Ştefan Silviu Fota 

General M 

Theaccom 

Pa 
~ 7 rm an intel ral part of these financial statements. 

This version of th\ ~a~i?l ~~t~.tements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared în Romanian. Ali possible care has been taken to ensure that the translat 
representation of the b~~ ver, in all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedence over this translation. 

'/../7"(~ O!\ 

424,326 

(385,218) 

(1,416) 

16 

--15941 
37,114 

(3) 

(3) 

3 893.344 



CECBANKSA 

CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CASH FLOW 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in thousand RON unless otherwise stated) 

Group Bank 

restated restated 
Note 2023 2022 2023 2022 

Profit before tax 12 616,572 506,780 591,468 506,780 

Adjusbnents for non-monetary items: 
Provision for :financial assets impairment and 
provisions for loans commitments and 11 381,251 333,406 381,262 333,406 

:financial guarantees 
19,20, 

132,691 105,844 132,195 105,844 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 21,22 

Net loss from :financial derivates 11,169 71,375 11,169 71,375 

Gain on disposal of fixed assets (2,401) (3,618) (2,401) (3,618) 

Net gain on :financial assets measured at fair 
value measured through other (16,810) (1,686) (16,810) (1,686) 

comprehensive income 
Gain/loss from :financial assets mandatorily 
measured at fair value through profit or loss (3,506) 4,836 (3,506) 4,836 
Gain from foreign exchange differences (71,141) (308,242) (71,141) (308,242) 
Dividends income 8 (1,668) (6,850) (1,668) (6,850) 

Interest expense 5 2,452,258 1,085,936 2,452,258 1,085,936 

Interest income 5 (4,086,426) (2,624,941) (4,085,301) (2,624,941) 

Gain resulting from the acquisition of FGCR (22,569) 

Other adjustments 923 309 922 309 

Operating profit before changes in operating 
(609,657) (836,851) (611,553) (836,851) 

assets and liabilities 
(Increase) / decrease in operating 
assets: 
Increase in loans and advances to customers (2,669,492) (4,005,600) (2,661,676) (4,005,600) 

lncrease in financial assets held for trading 
and measured at fair value through profit or (65,168) (6,289) (65,168) (6,289) 

loss 
Increase in other assets (2,948) (129,829) (7,851) (129,829) 

lncrease/ ( decrease) in operating 
liabilities: 
lncrease/(decrease) in deposits from banks (1,104,344) 594,709 (1,104,344) 594,709 

Increase in deposits from customers 19,866,756 10,343,848 19,858,451 10,343,848 

170,341 
144,619 167,801 144,619 

Increase in other liabilities 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Pa0 e 9 of16 
This version of the financial statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedence over this 
translation. 



CECBANKSA 

CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CASH FLOW 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in thousand RON unless otherwise stated) 

Net cash from operating activities 
before interest and tax 
Interest received from loans and advances 
to customers 
Interest paid for deposits from customers 
and banks 
Payments for leases oflow-value assets 
Recoveries from previously written-of loans 11 

Income tax paid 
Net cash from operating activities 
Investment activities: 
Proceeds from financial assets measured at 
fair value through other comprehensive 
income 16 

Payments for the acquisition of financial 
assets measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income 16 

Proceeds from investments in debt 
instruments measured at amortized cost 17 

Payments for investments in debt 
instruments measured at amortized cost 17 
Proceeds /Payments for equity investments 
Interest received from investing activities 
Cash payments for the acquisition of 
tangible and intangible assets and real 19,20, 

estate investments 21 

Payment for the purchase of shares, net of 
cash purchased 
Proceeds from the sale of tangible and 
intangible assets and real estate 
investments 
Additional payments for assets representing 
the right of use 
Dividends proceeds 
Net cash used in investing activities 

Group 

2023 

15,585,488 

3,046,323 

(1,786,348) 

(2,545) 

107,492 
(120,594) 

16,829,816 

23,981,013 

(33,665,931) 

2,618 

(4,646,818) 

155 
605,237 

(175,142) 

33,742 

4,612 

2,904 

1,668 

(13,855,942) 

restated 
2022 

6,104,607 

2,042,185 

(799,135) 

(2,795) 

157,564 
(74,022) 

7,428,404 

3,549,422 

(1,397,885) 

28,233 

(2,422,681) 

(5,209) 

537,585 

(121,730) 

8,996 

6,850 

183,581 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Page 1 O of 16z 

2023 

15,575,660 

3,046,323 

(1,786,348) 

(2,545) 

107,447 
(120J182) 

16,820,355 

23,981,013 

(33,665,931) 

2,607 

(4,633,071) 

155 
605,008 

(174,440) 

(5,000) 

4,612 

2,904 

1,668 

(13,880,476) 

This version of the financial statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. Ali possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedence over this 
translation. 

restated 
2022 

6,104,607 

2,042,185 

(799,135) 

(2,795) 

157,564 
(24,022) 

7,428,404 

3,549,422 

(1,397,885) 

28,233 

(2,422,681) 

(5,209) 

537,585 

(121,730) 

8,996 

6,850 

183,581 



CECBANKSA 

CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CASH FLOW 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in thousand RON unless otherwise stated) 

Group Bank 

restated 
Note 2023 2022 2023 

Financing activities 
Dividends paid to the sole shareholder 

(634,257) 
Ministry of Finance 

Proceeds from debt securities issued 1,483,619 653,636 1,483,619 

Proceeds from subordinated loans 

Interest payments on subordinated loans (147,371) (84,473) (147,371) 

Payment of lease liability (32,769) (27,673) (32,769) 

Repayment of loans from banks and other 
(99,158) (164,924) (99,158) 

financial institutions 27 

Interest paid for loans from banks and other 
t33tl .(sQg} t33tl 

financial institutions 

Net cash from financing activities 1,203,990 (258,200) 1,203,990 

Net increase in cash and cash 
equivalents 4,1zz,864 z,353,zSs 4,143,869 
Cash, cash equivalents at the 

15,805.570 8.451.z85 15,805.570 
beginning of the year 
Cash, cash equivalents at the end of 
theyear 19.983,433 15.805,570 19,949,439 

(i) Analysis of cash, cash equivalents 
Group Bank 

restated 31 

31December December 31 December 

2023 2022 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise: 
Cash on hand (Note 13) 919,285 1,088,633 

Cash in ATM's (Note 13) 438,488 354,905 

Current accounts held at the National Bank of 
10,614,049 8,660,549 

Romania (Note 13) 

Current accounts held at other banks (Note 15) 638,150 sz2,oz9 

Cash on hand and at banks 12J~o9.9z2 10,626,166 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Page 11 of 167 

2023 

919,279 

438,488 

10,614,049 

638,150 

12,609,966 

This version of the financial statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. Ali possible 
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CECBANKSA 

CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CASH FLOW 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(All amounts are in thousand RON unless otherwise stated) 

Money market placements - maturity less than 
3 months (Note 15) 

7,373,461 5,129,404 7,339,473 

Cash, cash equivalents 19.983.433 15,805.570 19.949,439 

şu Ştefan Silviu Fota 

The financial state were sizned on b alf of the Bank by: 

nt of xecutiî e Committee Director, Accountin 

.. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

1 REPORTING ENTITY 

CEC Bank Group ("Group") consist of CEC Bank S.A. ("CEC", "CEC Bank" or "Bank") as parent 
company and its subsidiary Fondul de Garantare a Creditului Rural - IFN SA ("FGCR" or "Fund"). 
Consolidated and separate financial statements for the financial year ended on December 31, 2023 

comprise the Bank and its subsidiary (hereinafter referred to as the "Group"). 

CECBank 

CEC Bank was established as a savings institution in Romania in 1864. On 1 October 1996, the 
Parliament of Romania approved Law no. 66 for the reorganisation of "Casa de Economii şi 

Consemnaţiuni" of Romania as a joint stock bank authorised by the National Bank of Romania to 
conduct banking activities, under the supervision of the National Bank of Romania. 

On 8 July 2005, the Ministry of Public Finance approved, by Order 979, the Statute of CEC Bank SA 
through which the primary activity of the Bank is "other monetary activities" and the primary field 
"monetary intermediation". The Bank also performs other activities within the limits established by 
the licence issued by the N ational Bank of Romania such as: attracting deposits and other repayable 
funds, credit contracts, monetary transfer services, issuing and managing means of payment, issuing 
guarantees and credit commitments, transactions on its own account or on its customers account, 
intermediation on the interbank market, etc. 

Currently, CEC Bank S.A. provides services based on The Government Emergency Ordinance no. 99 

issued on 6 December 2006, regarding credit institutions and capital adequacy and the CEC Bank SA 
Statute, approved through the Order of the Ministry of Economy and Finance no. 425 from 14 

February 2008, with the following amendments (Order of the Ministry of Economy and Finance no. 
1312/2008, Order of the Ministry of Economy and Finance no. 2083/2008, Order of the Ministry of 
Economy and Finance no. 3264/2008). 

The Bank is a joint stock company owned 100% by the Romanian State, represented by the Ministry 
ofFinance. 

The Bank operates through its Head Office located in Bucharest and through its network of 48 county 
branches and similar units from Bucharest, 116 first rank urban agencies, 386 second rank urban 
agencies and 462 second rank rural agencies. 

Overall, as at 31 December 2023 there are: 964 agencies and 48 branches (31 December 2022: 963 

agencies, of which: 115 fist rank urban agencies, 386 second rank urban agencies, 462 second rank 
rural agencies and 48 county branches). 

CEC Bank SA has 4,908 employees as at 31 December 2023, 402 less than as at 31 December 2022. 

CEC Bank SA's current registered office is located at 13, Calea Victoriei, Bucharest 3rd district, 
Romania. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are în RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

Fondul de Garantare a Creditului Rural - IFN SA ("the Fund", "FGCR") was established in Februaiy 
1994, according to Law no. 31/1990, as a joint stock company, following negotiations between the 
European Community Commission and the Government of Romania, represented by the Ministiy of 
Agriculture and Rural Development, materializing the European Community program to support the 
privatization process of agriculture in Romania and registered as IFN in 2006, based on Government 
Ordinance no. 28/2006, amended by Law no. 93/2009. Starting on July 30, 2007, it received from 
the National Bank of Romania notification of registration in the NBR Special Register under no. RS­
PJR-090029/ 2007 andin the NBR General Register under no. RG-PJR-41-090173/2007. 

FGCR has as main activity the issue of letters of guarantees granted from funds in administration 

received from Ministiy of Agriculture and Rural Development ("MAD R") and issue of letters of 

guarantees granted in name and account of the Romanian State. The activity is done based on multiple 

laws depending on the financing needs in the agriculture system. For each law a convention between 

FGCR and MADR is concluded in which there are stipulated the rights and obligations of each party. 
For its activity FGCR is remunerated with a commission from the financial institutions for the letters 
of guarantees issued from funds in administration and from the Romanian State for the agent 
operations carried out on its behalf. 

The current registered office of the Rural Credit Guarantee Fund is located at s, Occidentului Street, 
Bucharest 1st district, Romania. 

On July 27, 2023, CEC Bank acquired 99.993% of FGCR's shares and MADR owns 0.007% of the 
shares. 
On December 31, 2023, FGCR has 4 7 employees. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali arnounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

1 REPORTING ENTI1Y (CONTINUED) 

As at 31 December 2023, the Bank's Board of Directors includes the following people: 

1) Valentin Mavrodin- President; 
2) Bogdan Constantin Neacşu - Member; 
3) Ciprian Badea - Member; 
4) Mirela Sitoiu - Member; 
5) Mihai Gogancea Vătăşoiu - Member; 
6) Mirela Iovu - Member; 
7) Simona Andrei - Member. 

As at 31 December 2023, the Bank's Executive Committee includes the following people: 

1) Bogdan Constantin Neacşu - General Manager - President of the Executive Committee; 
2) Mirela Iovu - Director - Vice President of the Executive Committee; 
3) Simona Andrei - Director - Vice President of the Executive Committee. 

As at 31 December 2023, the Fund's Board of Directors includes the following people: 

1) Toma Alina Mihaela - President; 
2) Moise Sorin - Member; 
3) Pintea Adrian - Member; 
4) Luchian Camelia - Member. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
2.1 Basis of preparation 

The separate and consolidated financial statements (named "financial statements") of the Bank and 
the Group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as 
adopted by the European Union ("IFRS") andin accordance with the Order of the National Bank of 
Romania 27/2010. 
The Group accounting records are maintained in RON in accordance with Romanian accounting 
legislation and banking regulations issued by the National Bank of Romania ("NBR"). 

The Group's and Bank's financial statements have been prepared based on the going concern 
principle. In making this assessment, management has considered a wide range of information 
including projections of profitability, regulatory capital requirements and funding needs. The 
assessment also includes consideration of reasonably possible downside economic scenarios and their 
potential impacts on the profitability, capital and liquidity of the Group and Bank. 

Accounting policy for FGCR acquisition 
On 27 July 2023, CEC Bank signed the contract for the acquisition of the majority stake (99.993%) 
held by RAIFFEISEN BANK SA, BANCA COMERCIALĂ ROMÂNĂ SA and BRD - SOCIETE 
GENERALE SA ("Sellers") in the share capital of FGCR. The Ministry of Agriculture and Rural 
Development ("MADR") owns 0.007% of FGCR shares (non-controlling interests). 
In order to complete the purchase, the necessary approvals were obtained to conclude the transaction, 
as follows: 

• the approval of the Competition Council (Decision no. RG/8523/14.06.2023 regarding the 
economic concentration operation through which CEC Bank will acquire sole direct control 
overFGCR); 

• the approval, declaration and payment by FGCR of the dividends related to the previous 
financial years, according to the FGCRAGM Resolution no. 02/05.07.2023; 

• obtaining the consent of the Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Development, as a minority 
shareholder of FGCR, to carry out the Transaction and to not exercise the pre-emption 
procedure for the disposal of FGCR's shares provided for in FGCR's articles of incorporation 
- obtained on 17 May 2023, according to MADR address no. 145976/17.05.2023. 

The Bank took control of FGCR on 27 July 2023 (Acquisition Date), on which date the consideration 
was transferred in exchange for the shareholding held by the sellers. 
Purpose of acquisition 

The purpose of the acquisition of FGCR by CEC Bank was aimed at increasing its support to 
agriculture and rural development, which are important development segments for the Bank. 
In the period between the acquisition date and 31 December 2023, FGCR contributed an income of 
13.5 million RON and a net profit of 1.86 million RON to the Group's results. If the acquisition had 
taken place on 1 January 2023, the management estimates that the consolidated income of the Group 
would have been RON 4,624million, and the consolidated profit would have been RON 546 million. 
This estimate assumes that the fair value adjustments recorded at the acquisition date would have 
been the same ifthe acquisition had taken place on 1 January 2023. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 
(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Consideration transferred 

The fair value of the consideration transferred is 5,000,000 RON, and it was fully paid on the 
acquisition date, namely 27 July 2023. At the time of takeover, all amounts related to the FGCR 
acquisition were settled, and there are no remaining contingent considerations. 

Acquired assets and assumed liabilities 

The table below summarizes the amounts recognized at acquisition date in respect of assets acquired 
and liabilities assumed: 

Thousand RON 
Book value 31 

July2023 
Adjusbnents 

Fairvalue 
31July2023 

Total assets 
Total liabilities 

Total net assets acquired 
, ofwhich 
- Net assets acquired attributable to the 
Bank 's shareholders ( 99.993%) 
- Net assets acquired attributable to non­
controlling interests ( 0.007%) 

55,890 

29,405 

1,292 

207 

1,085 

The amount of non-controlling interests in FGCR was recognized using the proportionate share 
method. 

The Group accounts for the business combination by applying the acquisition method, which requires 
recognition and measurement of identifiable assets acquired, liabilities assumed at fair value at 
acquisition date. 

All identified assets and assumed liabilities of FGCR were analysed în order to estimate fair value 
adjustments. 
Differences between the fair value and the book value at acquisition date were identified only for 
tangible and intangible assets. 

In order to determine the fair value at acquisition date multiple valuation techniques were used for 
tangible and intangible assets, such as: market approach for lands and vehicles, income approach for 
constructions, cost approach for technical installations, replacement cost approach for furniture, 
office equipment, other assets and other intangible assets. This generated a positive adjustment of 
RON 1,292 thousand compared to the book value existing at the acquisition date. 

According to IAS 12 "lncome tax" in the case of a business combination, the provision regarding the 
exemption on the initial recognition of an asset or a liability from the registration of an asset or a 
liability regarding deferred tax does not apply. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

One consequence of measuring assets at fair value in a business combination is that it generally results 
in the recognition of deferred tax liabilities with a corresponding increase in goodwill or a reduction 
in the gain on the acquisition. Deferred tax liabilities arise because some assets are recognized for the 
first time in a business combination, while others are val ued at fair value over their book value. Both 
situations usually resuit in positive value adjustments that are not tax deductible. 
Following the valuation analysis, the fair value adjustments are strictly related to asset value increases 
and therefore gave rise to a deferred tax liability in the amount of RON 207 thousand. 

Gain from acquisition 

The Group's results for the financial year ended on 31 December 2023 include the bargain gain from 
the acquisition of FGCR, in the amount of RON 22,568 thousand. It is presented in the consolidated 
Statement of profit or loss and other elements of the comprehensive result on a separate line called 
"Gain from acquisition". 
The gain from the acquisition was determined as the difference between the final consideration (RON 
5,000 thousand) and the fair value of FGCR's assets and liabilities related to CEC Bank's participation, 
respectively RON 27,568 thousand. Given that the price paid by CEC Bank îs lower than the fair value 
of the net asset acquired, a gain on the acquisition resulted. 

Costs associated with the acquisition of FGCR 

The costs related to the acquisition are the costs incurred by CEC Bank for carrying out the business 
combination. These costs include: advisory, legal, evaluation and other consultant fees and are în 
amount of RON 516 thousands. 

a) Basis of consolidation 
The material policies applied în the preparation of these financial statements are presented below and 
were consistently applied both at the Group level and individually by each individual entity. 
The consolidated financial statements of the Group include the financial statements of CEC Bank and 
its subsidiary FGCR as of the reporting date December 31, 2023. For December 31, 2022, the separate 
financial statements of CEC Bank are presented în the consolidated financial statements. 
The Group prepared the first set of consolidated financial statements for December 31, 2023, 
following the acquisition of FGCR în proportion to 99.997%, on July 27, 2023. 

The Group applies the IFRS 10 "Consolidated financial statements" standard, which replaces the 
requirements and guidance în IAS 27 relating to consolidated financial statements. It also addresses 
the aspects included in SIC-12 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities. 
IFRS 10 standard requires an entity that is a parent to present consolidated financial statements, with 
limited exemptions available to some entities. The standard establishes control as the basis for 
determining which entities should be consolidated, setting out as well the accounting requirements 
for the preparation of consolidated financial statements. 
According to IFRS 10, control is defined when an investor has: 

power over the investee; 
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and 
the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor's returns. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

2 SUMMARYOF MATERIALACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

In order to determine whether it controls an investee an investor should consider the following factors 
in making that determination: 
- the purpose and design of the investee; 
- what the relevant activities are and how decisions about those activities are made; 
- whether the rights of the investor give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities; 
- whether the investor is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the 
investee; 
- whether the investor has the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the 
investor' s returns. 

The Group continuously evaluates its control over the entities in which it has invested. Therefore, any 
change in structure that results in a change in one or more control factors determine a reassessment. 
These include changes in decision rights, changes in contractual arrangements, changes in financial 
or capital structure. 

The control assessment over the funds that FGCR has in administration from MADR and the related 
assets concluded that IFRS 10 requirements are not fulfilled and subsequently the Bank does not 
exercise control over these funds. For consolidation purposes, FGCR is considered to be an agent in 
respect of these funds, in the name and account of the Romanian State, and only the income resulted 
from its agent role is included in the consolidated financial statements. 

Consequently, the consolidated financial statements for December 31, 2023 contain CEC Bank's 
operations results for the 12-month period ended 31 December 2023 and FGCR's profit and loss and 
cash flows for the five-month period ended 31 December 2023, excluding funds in administration and 
related assets and operations in the name and account of the State. 
In the separate financial statements, the Bank presents the participation in the subsidiary as an 
investment in subsidiaries, measured at cost, performing the annual impairment test to assess 
whether there is objective evidence of impairment of the participation. 

Business Combinations 

The Group applies the standard IFRS 3 "Business Combinations", which contains the principles tobe 
applied by the acquirer when recognizing and measuring identifiable assets acquired and liabilities 
assumed as part of a business combination. 
The Group accounts for the acquisition of the FGCR subsidiary by applying the acquisition method on 
the date it acquired control, July 27, 2023. 
Each identifiable asset and assumed liability of the subsidiary is valued at its fair value as of the 
acquisition date. 
The non-controlling interests in the acquired entity, FGCR, which are current participations in the 
equity capital and through which their holders are entitled to a proportional share of the net assets of 
the entity, in the event of its liquidation, are valued at the proportional share of the current 
instruments of equity from the recognized values of the net identifiable assets of the acquired entity. 
CEC Bank, in its capacity as a buyer, obtained a bargain gain from the acquisition on favourable terms 
and, recognized this gain in profit or loss, after management reanalysed whether all acquired assets 
were identified and all liabilities and contingent liabilities were accepted and theirvalue was assumed. 
The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

The consideration transferred in the business combination was valued at fair value, being calculated 
as the sum of the fair values as of the acquisition date of the assets transferred by the buyer, of the 
debts borne by the buyer towards the former owners of the acquired entity and of the shares in the 
equity capital issued by the buyer, but excluding the costs related to the acquisition with advisory, 
legal, accounting evaluation and other professional or consulting fees; general administrative costs, 
which are recognized in the profit or loss account. 

Consolidated financial statements prepared by the Group in accordance with IFRS 10: 

combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent 
with those of its subsidiary; 
offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent's investment in the subsidiary and the 
parent' s portion of equity of each subsidiary; 
eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating 
to intragroup transactions, as well as any unrealised gains resulted from intragroup transactions. 

b) Basis of measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following 
material items which are measured on the following alternative basis: 

ltems 

Derivative financial instruments 
Financial assets held for trading and measured at fair value through profit and 
loss 
Financial assets mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss 
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 
Buildings 

c) Functional and presentation currency 

Measurement 
basis 

Fairvalue 

Fairvalue 
Fairvalue 
Fairvalue 
Fairvalue 
Fairvalue 

The financial statements are prepared and presented in Romanian lei ("RON"), which is the Bank's 
functional and presentation currency, in accordance with Romanian accounting legislation, as well as 
banking regulations issued by the N ational Bank of Ro mania, rounded to the nearest thousand, unless 
otherwise stated. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

d) Use of estimates andjudgments 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect amounts recognized in the financial statements and 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, in the next financial year. The estimates and related 
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgments about 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual 
results may differ from estimated values. 
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions of accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that 
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future 
periods. 
Information related to the estimates used in the enforcement of accounting policies that have material 
effect on the financial statements, as well as estimates that involve a significant degree of uncertainty, 
are disclosed in Note 4. 
The material accounting methods and policies set out below have been applied consistently to all 
periods presented in these financial statements. 

Adoption of New or Revised Standards and Interpretations 

New or amended Standards and Interpretations, as endorsed by the European Union 
as at 12 January 2024, that are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 
2023 

Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases: Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (issued on 22 

September 2022 and effectivefor annual periods beginning onor after 1 January 
2024) 

Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases impact how a seller-lessee accounts for variable lease payments in a 
sale-and-leaseback transaction. The amendments introduce a new accounting model for variable 
payments and will require seller-lessees to reassess and potentially restate sale-and-leaseback 
transactions entered into since 2019. 

The amendments confirm the following: 

on initial recognition, the seller-lessee includes variable lease payments when it measures a lease 
liability arising from a sale-and-leaseback transaction; 

after initial recognition, the seller-lessee applies the general requirements for subsequent 
accounting of the lease liability such that it recognises no gain or loss relating to the right of use 
it retains. 

A seller-lessee may adopt different approaches that satisfy the new requirements on subsequent 
measurement. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 
(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

These amendments do not change the accounting for leases other than those arising in a sale and 
leaseback transaction. 

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current - Amendments to IAS 1 

( originally issued on 23 January 2020 and subsequently amended on 15 July 2020 

and 31 October 2022, ultimately effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 

January 2024) 

Under existing IAS 1 requirements, companies classify a liability as current when they do not have 
an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting date. The 
amendments, as issued in 2020, has removed the requirement for a right to be unconditional and 
instead requires that a right to defer settlement must exist at the reporting date and have substance 
(the classification ofliabilities is unaffected by management's intentions or expectations about 
whether the company will exercise its right to defer settlement or will choose to settle early). 

The amendments, as issued in 2022, further clarify that when the right to defer settlement is subject 
to a company complying with conditions (covenants) specified in a Ioan arrangement, only 
covenants with which the company must comply on or before the reporting date affect the 
classification of a liability as current or non-current. Covenants with which the company must 
comply after the reporting date do not affect a liability's classification at that date. However, the 
amendments require companies to disclose information about these future covenants to help users 
understand the risk that those liabilities could become repayable within 12 months after the 
reporting date. The amendments also clarify how a company classifies a liability that can be settled 
in its own shares (e.g. convertible debt). 

The Group and the Bank expects that the amendments, when initially applied, will not have a 
material effect on the financial statements. 
New or amended Standards and Interpretations that are effective for annual periods 
beginning after 1 January 2023, not yet endorsed by the European Union as at 12 
January2024 
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or contribution of assets between an 
investor and its associate or joint venture (Effective date deferred indefinitely. 
Availablefor optional adoption infull lFRSfinancial statements. The European 
Commission decided to defer the endorsement indefinitely, it is unlikely that it will 
be endorsed by the EU in theforeseeablefuture) 
The Amendments clarify that in a transaction involving an associate or joint venture, the extent of 
gain or loss recognition depends on whether the assets sold or contributed constitute a business, 
such that: 

a full gain or loss is recognised when a transaction between an investor and its associate or 
joint venture involves the transfer of an asset or assets which constitute a business (whether it is 
housed in a subsidiary or not), while 

a partial gain or loss is recognised when a transaction between an investor and its associate or 
joint venture involves assets that do not constitute a business, even if these assets are housed in a 
subsidiary. 
U nless otherwise described above, the new standards and interpretations are not expected to affect 
significantly the Group's consolidated financial statements. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 7 Financial lnstruments: 
Disclosures: Supplier Finance Arrangements (Effectivefor annual periods beginning 
on or a.fler 1 January 2024. Disclosure of comparative informationfor any reporting 
periods presented before, and iTiformation as at the beginning of, the annual 
reporting period in which the entity first applies those amendments is not required. 
Also, an entity is not required to disclose the information otherwise required by the 
amendmentsfor any interim period presented within the annual reporting period in 
which the entityfirst applies those amendments. Early application is permitted) 

The amendments introduce additional disclosure requirements for a company to provide information 
about its supplier finance arrangements that would enable users (investors) to assess the effects of 
these arrangements on the company's liabilities and cash flows, and the company's exposure to 
liquidity risk. The amendments apply to supplier finance arrangements (also referred to as supply 
chain finance, payables finance or reverse factoring arrangements) that have all of the following 
characteristics: 

a finance provider (also referred to as the factor) pays amounts a company (the buyer) owes its 
suppliers; 

a company agrees to pay under the terms and conditions of the arrangements on the same date 
or at a later date than its suppliers are paid; 

the company is provided with extended payment terms or suppliers benefit from early payment 
terms, compared with the related invoice payment due date. 
However, the amendments do not apply to arrangements for financing receivables or inventory. 

Amendments to IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates: Lack of 
exchangeability (Effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or a.fler 1 

January 2025. Earlier application is permitted. 

U nder IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, a company uses a spot exchange rate 
when translating a foreign currency transaction. In some jurisdictions, no spot rate is available 
because a currency cannot be exchanged into another currency. 
IAS 21 was amended to clarify: 

when a currency is exchangeable into another currency; and 
how a company estimates a spot rate when a currency lacks exchangeability. 

The amendments alsa include additional disclosure requirements to help users to assess the impact 
of using an estimated exchange rate on the financial statements. 
The Group expects that the amendments, when initially applied, will not have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 
2.2 Foreign currency 

The functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group 
operates. 
The functional currency of the Group is the national currency of Romania, Romanian LEU ("RON"). 
Monetary assets and liabilities are converted into RON at the exchange rate of NBR at the end of that 
period. 
Foreign exchange gains or losses resulting from the settlement of transactions and from the 
translation of monetary assets and liabilities into RON at the official exchange rates at the end of the 
year are recognised in profit or loss (as "Net gains/Ooss) from foreign exchange differences"). 
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Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency, including equity investments, are 
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. 
Effects of exchange rate changes on non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency 
are recorded as part of the fair value gain or loss. 
The exchange rate of major foreign currencies was: 

Currency 

Euro (EUR) 
US Do Ilar (USD) 

lncrease/ 
3 1 December 2023 3 1 December 2022 (decrease) 

(%) 
1: RON 4.9746 
1: RON 4.4958 

1: RON 4.9474 
1: RON 4.6346 

2.3 Interest income and interest expenses 

Interest income and interest expenses for financial instruments are recognized in the income 
statement using the effective interest rate method on an accrual basis. 

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts 
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the 
gross carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. 

Commission fees received by the Group to originate loans at market interest rates are an integral part 
to the effective interest rate if it is probable that the Group will enter into a specific lending 
arrangement and does not expect to sell the resulting Ioan shortly after origination. 

Ali other fees, commissions and other income and expense items are generally recorded as the related 
services are performed, on an accrual basis by reference to completion of the specific transaction 
assessed on the basis of the actual service provided as a proportion of the total services to be provided. 

Syndicated Ioan commissions are recognized as income when the syndication has been completed and 
the Bank does not retain part of the credit package for itself or retains part of the same effective 
interest rate used for other participants. 

Interest income and expense presented in the income statement include, but are not limited to: 
Interest on loans and advances to customers; 
Interest on other financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost; and 
Interest on financial assets measured at fair value through other items of comprehensive 

income. 
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2-4 Commissions income and fees expenses 

Commission income and expenses are fees and charges other than those relating to the origination of 
a financial asset or liahility, and which are part of the effective interest rate. 

The revenue from fees and charges shall he accounted for in the profit or loss account as the Bank 
meets the performance ohligation under the contractual terms in accordance with IFRS 15, 
respectively: 

• at the time of service, if the ohligation to execute is fulfilled at a certain time; 

• as the Group meets the ohligation, in time, if the ohligation to execute is fulfilled in time, 
and the client receives and consumes the henefits simultaneously. 

2.5 Dividends 

Dividend income is recognized in income statement when the right to receive dividends payment is 
established and it is prohable that the dividends will be collected. Dividends are retlected as a 
component of other operating income. 

For equity instruments for which the Group has opted for initial recognition to classify them as 
financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, dividends are recognized 
in the profit or loss account, unless dividends clearly represent a return on part of the investment cost 
in which case they are presented in OCI. 
2.6 Income tax expense 

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the statement of profit or 
loss or in equity if the tax is related to the elements of equity. 

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is prohable that future taxahle profits will 
be available against a deferred tax assets can he used. 

Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probahle that the related tax henefit 
will be realized. 

Current and deferred tax receivahles and payables are offset when they are related to the same tax 
entity, they are related to the same tax authority and when there is a legal right to offset. 

2.7 Net trading income 

Net trading income represents the difference between the gain and loss related to financial assets 
held for trading, foreign exchange transactions, derivatives and foreign exchange position 
revaluation. Foreign exchange position revaluation (excluding trading) is presented in the separate 
line. 
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2.8 Contrihution to the Bank Deposit Guarantee Fund and to the Resolution Fund 

The retail deposits and certain legal entity deposits, including SME deposits, are guaranteed up to 
EUR 100,000 în Romania by the Bank Deposit Guarantee Fund ("FGDB") according to the regulations 
în force (Law no. 311/2015 on Deposit Guarantee Schemes and FGDB). 
The Romanian credit institutions are obliged to pay an annual contribution to FGDB, în order to 
guarantee the clients' deposits în case of the credit institution's insolvency, as well as an annual 
contribution to the Resolution Fund ("Fondul de Rezolutie"). 
The Group applied IFRIC 21 "Levies" to determine when the obligation is recognized. As this 
contribution to FGDB and Resolution Fund corresponds to a tax, it needs tobe fully recognized as an 
expense at the time the obligating event occurs. 

2.9 Financial assets and liahilities 

In accordance with IFRS 9, the Group classifies: 
-+ the financial assets into one of the following categories: 

Financial assets measured at amortized cost 
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial assets measured at fair value through other items of comprehensive income 

-+ financial liabilities at amortized cost, except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit 
or loss. 

The Group does not apply hedge accounting. 

In accordance with the classification criteria of IFRS 9 to establish a classification of loans and debt 
instruments, the Group îs considering the following criteria cumulatively: 

a) Analysis of the business model; 

b) Analysis of the contractual cash flows characteristics ("SPPI test"). 

c) 
Based on the above, the financial assets of the Group are classified and measured as follows: 

• Loans and advances to banks and public institutions are measured at amortized cost (please 
see Note 15); 

• Loans and advances to customers are measured at amortized cost (please see Note 18); 

• Government securities portfolio are measured at amortized cost (please see Note 17), at fair 
value through profit or loss (please see Note 19), and at fair value through other items of 
comprehensive income (please see Note 16); 

• Derivatives are measured at fair value through profit or loss (please see Note 14); 

• Equity instruments designated to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income (please see Note 16). 
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a) Analysis of the business model 

In accordance with IFRS 9, the business model is determined at a level that reflects the way in which 
groups of financial assets are managed together. The business model does not depend on the 
management's intentions towards a particular individual instrument. 
The business model refers to how the Group manages its financial assets to generate cash flows. 

In a hold to collect business model, the financial assets are managed to obtain cash flows through the 
collection of contractual payments over the life of the instrument. A financial asset that is held within 
a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows is measured at 
amortized cost (if assets also meet the SPPI criterion on contractual cash flows). 

In order to determine whether cash flows will be obtained by collecting the contractual cash flows of 
financial assets, the Group analyzes the frequency, values and timing of sales in previous periods, the 
reasons for those sales and expectations of future sales activity. 

Sales transactions aimed at minimizing potential losses due to credit deterioration are considered 
consistent with the "hold to collect" business model. Other sales before maturity, not related to credit 
risk management activities, are also consistent with the "hold to collect" business model, provided 
that they are infrequent or insignificant in value, both individually and in aggregate. 

The Group assesses significance of sales transactions by comparing the value of the sales to the value 
of the portfolio subject to the business model assessment over the average life of the portfolio. In 
addition, sales of financial asset expected only in stress case· scenario, or in response to an isolated 
event that is beyond the Group's control, is not recurring and could not have been anticipated by the 
Group, are regarded as incidental to the business model objective and do not impact the classification 
of the respective financial assets. 

The "hold to collect and sell" business model means that assets are held to collect the cash flows, but 
selling is also integral to achieving the business model's objective, such as, managing liquidity needs, 
achieving a particular yield, or matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of the 
liabilities that fund those assets. 

The residual category includes those portfolios of financial assets, which are managed with the 
objective of realizing cash flows primarily through sale, such as where a pattern of trading exists. 
Collecting contractual cash flow is often incidental for this business model. 
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b) Analysis of contractual cash flow characteristics ("SPPI test") 

The SPPI test is the analysis of the contractual terms of the financial assets in order to identify whether 
the cash flows represent solely payments of the principal and the interest on the principal due. 
The Group performs the analysis of the contractual clauses for the SPPI testat the level of the contract 
model/individual contract and documents the result of the analysis by completing a questionnaire. 

Changes in financial assets and liabilities 
The Group monitors the changes to the contractual clauses in order to establish those changes that 
resuit in derecognition of the financial instrument. 

The criteria set by the Group to assess contractual changes that may lead to derecognition were 
determined in view of their significance (quantitative or qualitative) so that the requirements ofIFRS 
9.3.2.3 are met. Quantitatively these changes exceed the materiality threshold of 10%, by analogy with 
the threshold specified in IFRS 9 in derecognition of financial liabilities. From a qualitative point of 
view, the amendments concern contractual clauses which significantly change the nature of the risks 
associated with the original contract. 

Derecognition 
The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from that 
financial asset expire or when the Group transfers the financial asset and the transfer meets 
simultaneously the following two conditions: 

(i) transfers the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset, or 
(ii) retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the financial asset but 
assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients through a 
contract that meets the following conditions: 
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(a) the Group has no obligation to pay amounts to prospective beneficiaries, unless 
the Group collects equivalent amounts from the transferred asset; 

(b) the Grou p is forbidden by contractual terms to transfer the as set to sell or to pledge 
the initial asset, for reasons other than guaranteeing the obligation to pay potential cash-flow 
beneficiaries; 

(c) the Group transfers any cash flows it collects on behalf of the beneficiaries without 
significant delays. 

or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
ownership and it does not retail control of the financial asset. 
The Group fully derecognizes its financial assets when it does not have reasonable estimates for 
recovering contractual cash flows (IFRS 9, B 3.2.16, letter r). 
The Group derecognizes a financial liability when the contractual obligations are settled or canceled 
or have expired. 

lmpairment of financial instrument 

In order to identify exposures with a significant increase in credit risk or credit-impaired, the Group 
performs a monthly analysis to identify changes in asset quality, i.e. identifying the items that lead to 
a significant increase în credit risk as well as an analysis of the objective existence of impairment 
indica tors. 
The Group assesses all exposures on a monthly basis and considers that there îs a significant increase 
în credit risk în relation to the initial recognition in the following situations: 

(a) the debt service exceeded 30 days at the end of the current month or exceeded 30 days on 
the last day of any previous two months; 

(b) credit exposure îs classified as a restructured performance exposure; 
(c) the exposure îs included în the observation list monitored by the Group în accordance with 

the provisions of regulations on supervision and administration of supervised and non-performing 
loans. The identified events that generate a significant increase în credit risk include, for example, 
difficult market conditions or adverse evolution in the financial statements that reflect changes în the 
credit / customer situation as compared to the situation at the date of the granting of the credit, 
without these being instances of improbability of payment, which anticipate the full non-recovery of 
the receivables without recourse to the enforcement actions over the guarantees. 

(d) the exposure has been classified as impaired exposures at the close of any previous two 
months. 

Impairment identification 

At each balance sheet date, the Group examines whether there are objective indications that a financial 
asset or group of financial assets that are not held at fair value through profit or loss is impaired. 

According to the Group's internai valuation methodology, the criteria used to determine the existence 
of objective evidence of impairment refer to events that lead to the estimation of an improbability of 
recovering the entire claim by the Group without recourse to enforcement of collateral: 

(a) overdue principal or interest payments with a debt service of more than 90 days; 
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(b) the exposure is unlikely to be fully recovered by the Group without the collateral being 
executed, regardless of the existence of overdue amounts or the number of days past due. 

lmprobability of recovery is quantified by: 
- significant financial difficulties of the debtor (inability to honor payments to suppliers, significant 
debts to the state budget, reporting of significant net losses, etc.); 
- financial results that no longer support the reimbursement of financial obligations in conjunction 
with the lack of alternative sources or projects supporting the repayment of debts. 

(c) non-performing loans as a resuit of having been restructured over the past 12 months, and 
the impairment indicators for restructured loans being maintained if, after one year from the date of 
the restructuring the restructured Ioan is more than 30 days past due, or an additional restructuring 
is carried out within a 24-month observation period, starting with the date of the exiting of the 
restructured Ioan from the non-performing loans category; 

(d) the debtor's declaration of insolvency at any of its stages or the initiation of enforcement 
procedures by the Group; 

(e) it is clear that the debtor will go bankrupt; 
(O fraud situations; 
(g) the initiation of legal procedures by third-party creditors (enforcement, insolvency 

proceedings, judicial reorganization, etc.), which, by their nature, anticipate negative effects on the 
ability to pay debts to the Bank, entry into a resolution procedure for financial institutions or default 
for central governments 

(h) the death of the debtor. 

Estimation of expected credit loss 

Loans and advances to customers 

Expected credit loss is the difference between the total contractual cash flows that are owed to the 
Group în accordance with the contract and all cash flows that the Group expects to receive on an 
discounted basis at the original effective interest rate (or the effective interest rate adjusted by credit 
for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets). 

Cash flows include cash flows from the sale of the collateral held or other credit enhancements that 
are an integral part of the contractual terms. Expected credit losses are an estimate of the losses the 
Group expects to derive from an event, such as the debtor's inability to pay. 

Depending on the credit risk, the Group recognizes the expected credit loss as follows: 

(i) For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial ass~ts, only accumulated changes in 
Ioan losses for losses over the full life from the initial recognition are recognized; 

(ii) For financial assets, other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets for 
which credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition or which have been impaired, the 
expected loss is measured at an amount equal to expected losses over the life of the asset 
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(iii) For financial assets, other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets for 
which credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the expected loss is measured 
at an amount equal to the expected loss for 12 months. 

Expected credit losses over a 12-month period represent the portion of the expected credit loss over 
the life of the financial asset from possible default events within 12 months of the reporting date. 
This is not the loss for exposures expected to default in the next 12 months or the expected cash 
outflow over the next 12 months. 
The Group recognizes the expected credit loss over the life of the financial asset if there is a significant 
increase in credit risk from the initial recognition, taking into account all reasonable and justifiable 
information, including forecasts. 
For the purpose of calculating the expected loss for non-impaired exposures, the Group incorporates 
the macroeconomic effect on probability of default (PD) and loss given default (LGD). The 
methodology for estimating probability of default (PD) implies: 

• using an adjusted Weibull function to estimate cumulative PD curves; 
• using a Vasicek model for incorporating forward looking. 

Forward looking adjustments are based on the correlation between the macroeconomic indicators 
(GDP evolution, interest rate -ROBOR 3M evolution) and the companies' default rate, respectively 
between GDP evolution and average net salary increase adjusted by inflation rate and the individuals' 
default rate. The default rate is observed at the banking system level (NBR data, as the Bank does not 
have enough own data to estimate correlations). 

The projections of macroeconomic indicators considered by Group refers to GDP projections 
published by the World Bank, the inflation projections published by National Bank of Romania and 
the increase of average salary (in 2023) similar with the average of increase from last ten years and 
75% from this average in 2024. 

The Group uses a total LGD model that involves calculating the cumulative recovery rates observed 
on each segment, based on which the parameters of a logistic function are estimated. The forward 
looking adjustment is made taking into account the correlation between PD and LGD and estimated 
forward looking adjustments for PD. 
In order to determine expected losses on an individual or collective basis, the assets to which the 
impairment requirements of IFRS 9 apply are divided into significant and insignificant, at the time of 
the analysis, on the basis of criteria set by the Group and reviewed annually. 
The significant financial assets to which the impairment provisions apply in accordance with IFRS 9, 
are subject to an individual analysis to identify the associated risk level, and where impairment 
indicators are identified, the expected loss is determined on the basis of an estimation of future cash 
flows, in two scenarios. 
For insignificant financial assets and significant financial assets for which no indications of 
impairment were identified, the expected loss is determined based on a collective analysis. 
The methodology and assumptions used to measure impairment are constantly reviewed by the 
Group. At each reporting date, the Group assesses and recognizes the provisions for expected credit 
losses of a financial asset or group of financial assets that are not held at fair value through profit or 
loss, a contract assets, a Ioan commitment, or financial guarantee contract to which the impairment 
provisions apply in accordance with IFRS 9. 
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In order to determine the expected losses on individual or collective basis, all loans and receivables 
are divided into significant and insignificant, at the date when analysis is performed. 

For loans and receivables for which no impairment and no SICR has been identified, expected loss 
shall be determined over their lifetime from default events occurring within 12 months after the 
reporting date, on the basis of a collective analysis. 

For loans for which there is significant increase in credit risk compared to the time of granting, 
expected credit loss is estimated over the life of the financial asset, on the basis of a collective analysis 
(for Ioan portfolios with similar credit risk). 

The expected loss amount is the present value of the difference between the contractual cash flows 
and the expected cash flows (a cash shortfall), which includes both principal and interest cash flows. 

In order to estimate the expected credit losses for credit exposures without impairment indicators, 
loans are grouped into similar credit risk portfolios, depending on the client category, the type of 
credit in the case of individuals, respectively the field of activity (NACE code) in in the case of legal 
persons. 

Each stage is a separate category and will be assessed for the purpose of estimating expected loss as 
follows: 

► loans in stage 1 - expected loss estimates for a period of 12 months; 
► loans in stage 2 - the estimated loss throughout their lifetime; and 
► loans in stage 3 (impaired) - the estimated loss throughout their lifetime. 

ln order to calculate the expected loss for each portfolio, PDs and LGDs will be applied to the exposure 
amount of the loans at default for each portfolio. Changes in future cash flow projections should reflect 
and be consistent with changes in observable data from one period to the next (e.g. GDP change in 
relation to the state of default or other factors that indicate changes in the probability of recording 
losses by the Group and their size). 

The methodology used to estimate future cash flows is periodically reviewed by the Group to reduce 
any differences between estimated losses and actual loss experience based on the results of the model 
validation process. 

The historical loss experience has to be adjusted on the basis of current observable information to 
reflect the effects of current conditions that have not affected the period on which historical loss 
experiences are based and to remove the effects of historical conditions that no longer exist. 

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease is related to an 
objective event that occurred after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized 
impairment is reversed directly through the loss allowance account. Reversal is recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss. 
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Restructured loans 

The restructured loans are related to credit agreements for which restructuring measures have heen 
applied. 

Restructuring operations are considered to he situations in which the horrower has heen granted 
concessions as a resuit of the fact that is faced with financial difficulties in repaying the committed 
loans, or at least one of the following situations: 

a) the granting of concessions, irrespective of the existence / ahsence of outstanding amounts, in 
the conditions of financial difficulties of the dehtor; 

h) the contract was classified hefore the restructuring as non-performing or would have heen 
classified as non-performing if it had not heen modified; 

c) the contractual change implies a total or partial cancellation of the deht; 
d) at the same time with the granting of the concession or at a date close to granting it, following 

the granting of a new Ioan, the dehtor makes principal or interest payments related to another contract 
with the Group, which was classified as non-performing or would have heen classified as non­
performing in ahsence of refinancing; 

e) at the same time with the granting of the concession or at a date close to granting it, following 
the granting of a new Ioan, the dehtor makes principal or interest payments related to another contract 
concluded with the Group, which has recorded outstanding amount for at least 30 days at least once 
in the last 3 months prior to refinancing; 

t) a change involving the extinguishment of the ohligation hy taking over the collateral when the 
change represents a concession; 

g) the modified contract had more than 30 days past due (without heing non-performing) at least 
once in the last 3 months prior to the restructuring or would have heen in this situation if it had not 
been modified. 

The financial difficulty does not refer to events of a temporary nature, it must he identified hased on 
the analysis of the client's activity. 

Loans suhject to restructuring operations are classified as performing or non-performing assets 
starting with the date of the restructuring, hased on the levei of diminishing financial ohligation (DO). 
If the diminished financial ohligation that is considered to he caused hy postponement of principal, 
interest, or fees is lower than 1%, the Ioan will he classified as forhorne performing. If the DO level is 
higher than 1%, the Ioan will he classified as nonperforming. If, after 12 months, the conditions for the 
exiting of the exposures from the non-performing category are met simultaneously, the Ioan will he 
classified as performing assets with restructuring measures. These loans are monitored within a 
minimum 24-month ohservation period starting with the date of restructuring (for forhorne 
performing) or starting with the date of exit from the category of non-performing loans for 
classification in the performing / non-performing loans category. Any additional restructuring 
measures applied within the ohservation period, as well as any overrun of the 30-day deht service over 
the period, lead to the classification of the restructured Ioan in the category of non-performing loans. 

If at the time of the restructuring request analysis the DO is helow the materiality threshold (1%) and 
the Bank has reasonahle uncertainties regarding the ability to fully repay the new ohligations in a 
timely manner, the credit is classified as non-performing. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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2 SUMMARY OF MATERIALACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Exiting from the restructured exposures categocy occurs when the following conditions are met 
cumulatively: 

a) the restructured exposure is considered to be performing, even if it has been reclassified from 
the non-performing exposures categocy as a resuit of the debtor's financial statement analysis showing 
that the conditions for the non-performing categocy are no longer met; 

b) from the date on which the restructured exposure was considered to be performing, a 
minimum of 2 years has passed; 

c) during half of the probation period, payments took place regularly (principal and cumulative 
interest payments) that cannot be considered insignificant; 

d) at the end of the probation period, no exposure to the debtor is past due for more than 30 

days. 

The Group monitors changes to the contractual clauses in order to establish those changes that resuit 
in the derecognition of the credit. Analysis for derecognition requires a qualitative analysis and, if 
necessacy, a quantitative analysis according to IFRS 9 principles. 

Write-off loans 

Financial assets are written-off, in whole or in part, when the Group exhausted all practicai recovecy 
efforts and has concluded that there is no reasonable expectation of recovecy 
The criteria considered by the Group for assessing the need for derecognition are: 
- loans granted to customers in bankruptcy /insolvency /foreclosure, with debt service of more than 
180 days, without collateral/guarantees issued by financial institutions; 
- unsecured exposures to deceased individual customers; 
- loans secured by guarantees for which more than ten auctions have been held, the period elapsed 
since then is more than 4 years and no prospects for the recovecy of collateral; 
- loans granted to clients in legal proceedings for which the existing legal situation / litigation leads to 
the improbability of recovering claims/recovecy of collateral in a measurable horizon. 

For loans that are 100% covered by impairment adjustments/expected loss adjustments, the Group 
may derecognize them by directly reducing their gross carrying amount while simultaneously 
recording the respective receivables in off-balance sheet accounts. Subsequently, the Group records 
any collection of amounts from debtors in "Recoveries from loans previously written off" accounts 
with direct effect on the profit or loss account. 

Off balance sheet commitments 

The Bank analyzes off-balance-sheet commitments, considering them in the same risk category as the 
balance sheet exposures. The provision for expected losses for off-balance sheet commitments is 
calculated on the basis of a conversion factor that describes how the use of credit limits will be 
increased or how the guarantees issued in loans from the beginning of the observation period to the 
time of default will be converted. The PD/LGD corresponding parameters to the homogeneous 
portfolio in which that exposure is assigned shall be applied to the determined equivalent of the 
exposure balance. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Assets valued atfair value through other comprehensive income 

The expected losses for financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, 
other than equity instruments designated by the Group as being measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income, are recognized in other comprehensive income Bank and do not reduce the 
carrying amount of the financial asset in the financial information. 

lnvestments in equity instruments 

Investments in equity instruments classified by the Group at initial recognition in the category of 
financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are not subject to 
impairment provisions for the recognition and measurement of the provision for expected 
impairment losses. 

2.10 Lease payments 

The Group has entered into leases for real estate buildings and land. Lease liabilities are recognised 
in respect of the Group's obligations to make future lease payments and 'Right of Use' assets are 
recognised that represent the Group's right to use the underlying assets. 

The Group's accounting policy is not to apply the requirements of IFRS 16 to leases of intangible 
assets. 

The Group did not apply the "short term leases" exemption, as provided in IFRS 16 Appendix A. 

The Group applies the "low value assets" exemption for all those rent contracts for which the value of 
the underlying assets is below USD 5,000. 

The Group does not apply the practica! approach set out in paragraph 15 of IFRS 16 regarding the 
lessee's possibility not to separate non-leasing from leasing components, and therefore has treated 
each lease component and service component ofthe contract separately. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

In identifying a non-leasing component, the Group determines whether it transfers a good or service 
to the lessee. 

a) Non-leasing components (services) 
Expenses related to services which are separate components other than leasing (services): 
maintenance of the common areas in case of real estate leases, electricity and other utilities, marketing 
services, management fees, the price of which is billed separately from the rent of the underlying asset, 
are recorded in the profit and loss account as operating expenses. 

b) Not separable non-lease components 
Property /building tax costs paid on behalf of the lessor being not separable non-lease components, 
are not non-leasing separate components because no good or service is transferred to the Group. 

c) VAT treatment 
The VAT component is not part of the lease liability because it does not involve the transfer of a good 
or service. The Group will record the VAT when it is invoiced and will become due (will not he 
capitalized over the lease period). 

Leaseterm 
The lease term is considered as the non-cancellable period for which the Group has the right to use an 
underlying asset, together with periods covered by an option to extend the lease, if the Group is 
reasonably certain to exercise that option and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if 
the Group is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. 

Recognition and measurement 

Initial measurement 
For all the contracts in scope ofIFRS 16, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a corresponding 
lease liability. 

The lease liability is measured as the present value of the lease payments during the lease that are not 
paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that 
rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee shall use the 
lessee's incremental borrowing rate. 

At the commencement date of a lease, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost 

The Group includes in the cost of the right-of-use asset the following: 
a. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability; 
b. lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received; 
c. Initial direct costs. 

For each reporting period, the Bank will calculate the lease liabilities in the original currency of the 
contract and convert them in RON by using the exchange rate from the reporting day. The Group will 
recognise any exchange rate differences in the statement of profit or loss. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

The right of use asset is nota monetacy item and it is recognised in RON, the Group's functional 
currency. As such, the right of use asset is not subsequently measured to account for any exchange 
rates differences, as it is the case for lease liability. 

Subsequent measurement 

After the commencement date, the right-of-use asset is measured by applying a cost model. 

The value of right-of use asset is decreased by any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 
impairment adjustments and adjusted for as a resuit of any re-measurement of the lease liability. 
The Group will calculate the amortization of the right to use the asset on a straight-line basis over the 
shorter period between the lease term and the useful life of the right-of-use asset. 

After the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability by: 
increasing the carcying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; 
reducing the carcying amount to reflect the lease payments made and 
remeasuring the carcying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect 
revised in-substance fixed lease payments. 

Please refer to Notes 22 and 32 for further details. 

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash balances on hand and nostro accounts with banks, 
including current account with the National Bank of Romania. Cash is recorded at nominal value and 
cash equivalents are recorded at amortised cost in the balance sheet. 
Cash and cash equivalents are short-term investments which are readily convertible to cash and which 
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of balances with less than three months maturity from the 
origination date, including cash and non-restricted balances with the central bank, current accounts 
with banks and short-term placements with banks. 

2.12 Derivatives 

Derivatives are held for risk management purposes and are measured at fair value in the statement of 
financial position with the changes in fair value recorded in the statement of profit or loss. 

Derivatives include currency swaps contracts and currency forward transactions on the exchange rate 
and on debt instruments. The positive fair value of the derivatives is carried as asset and the negative 
fair value is carried as liability. 

Changes in the fair value of derivatives are included in profit or loss for the year (Net gains/Ooss) on 
derivatives). The Group does not apply hedge accounting. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

2.13 Loans and advances to banks 

Amounts due from other hanks are recorded when the Group horrows money to counterparty hanks 
with no intention of trading the resulting unquoted non-derivative receivahle due on fixed or 
determinahle dates. Amounts due from other hanks are carried at amortised cost. 

2.14 Investment property 

Investments properties are properties held hy the Group în order to ohtain rental income and are not 
used hy the Group în the current activity. 

Investment property îs initially measured at cost, taking into account any costs directly attrihutahle to 
the acquisition (such as fees for legal services, real estate agent fees and notary fees, transfer fees and 
charges of the property). After the initial recognition, an investment property îs measured at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and adjustments for impairment, according to IAS 16. The difference 
hetween the net proceeds from the sale and the net carrying amount of the asset îs recognized în profit 
or loss upon derecognition. 

Investment properties that meet the criteria to he classified as held for sale în accordance with IFRS 5 
are assessed în accordance with IFRS 5. 

Rental income îs recorded în profit or loss for the year within other operating income. 

Suhsequent expenditure îs capitalised only when it îs prohahle that future economic henefits 
associated with it will flow to the Group, and the cost can he measured reliably. All other repairs and 
maintenance costs are recognised when incurred. 

The Group records as investment property the following tangihle assets: 
a) 100% surplus space for sale or rental; 
h) Mixed-use spaces that cannot be sold separately are entirely classified as investment 

property only if the surplus space îs at least 70%; 

c) Mixed-use spaces that can he sold separately and have a gross book value less than 
RON 2,000,000 will he classified as investment property or tangible assets hased on 
which part from that space (surplus or hanking) îs more significant; 

d) For the remaining mixed spaces that can he sold separately, only the surplus îs 
classified as investment property; for this îs required to estahlish the gross value hased 
on the value distribution report. 

Revaluation reserve from the transfer date of property and equipment în investment property îs 
reclassified to retained earnings at the date of investment property derecognition. 

If an investment property îs introduced în the usual hanking activity, it îs then reclassified to the plant, 
property and equipment account. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

2.15 Tangible assets 

(i) Recognition and valuation 

Land and buildings are presented at reevaluated value less accumulated depreciation. The other items 
from the tangible assets category are presented at their historical cost less accumulated depreciation 
and the adjustments for impairment losses. Capital expenditure on property and equipment under 
construction îs capitalized and depreciated once the assets enter into use. 
Land and buildings are subject to periodica} revaluation to ensure that the carrying amount does not 
differ materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the end of the reporting 
period. 
Evaluations are made by certified externai and internai evaluators. 
If there îs no market based evidence of fair value, fair value îs estimated using an income approach. 
lncreases în the carrying amount arising on revaluation are credited to other comprehensive income 
and increase the revaluation reserve în equity. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same 
asset are recognised in other comprehensive income and decrease the previously recognised 
revaluation reserve în equity to the limit of the cost; all other decreases are charged to profit or loss 
for the year. 

The revaluation reserve for property and equipment included in equity is transferred directly to 
retained earnings when the revaluation surplus is realised on the retirement or disposal of the asset. 

Upon revaluation of tangible assets, accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated 
from the gross carrying amount of the asset and the gross carrying amount after the recording of 
revaluation is equal to its revaluated amount. 

(ii) Subsequent costs 
The Group recognizes in the carrying amount of an item of property and equipment the cost of 
replacing part of such an item when that cost is incurred if it is probable that the future economic 
benefits embodied with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. All other expenditures are recognized în the statement of profit or loss as an expense îs 
incurred. 

(iii) Depreciation 
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each item of the 
tangible assets components or of important categories of tangible assets that are recorded separately. 
Land is not subject to depreciation. 

(iv) Derecognition 
Gains and/ or losses from derecognition of tangible assets îs determined as the difference between 
revenues from sales of tangible assets and the expenses with their disposal and / or their retirement 
and are recognized in profit or loss for the year (within other operating income or expenses). 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

The estimated useful lives by categories are as follows: 

Categories 

Buildings 
Equipment 
Vehicles 
Furniture 
Other tangible assets 

Depreciation methods and useful lives are reassessed at each reporting date. 

2.16 Intangible assets 

Years 

50 

3 - 20 

6 
14 

4 - 22 

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and 
impairment losses. Intangible assets include software and licences. 

Costs associated with developing or maintaining software programs are recognized as an expense when 
incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the production of identifiable and unique software 
products controlled by the Group, and that will probably generate economic benefits exceeding costs 
beyond one year, are recognized as intangible assets. 

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the 
software, from the date that it is available for use. The estimate useful life for software is 4 years. 

2.17 Impairment of non-financial assets 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of the asset or its cash-generating unit 
exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that 
generates cash tlows independently from other assets and groups. Impairment losses are recognised 
in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to 
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit on a pro rata basis. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its 
fair value less the costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated fu ture cash tlows are discounted 
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that retlects current market conditions and the 
risks specific to the asset. 

2.18 Debt securities issued 

Debt securities issued are classified as financial liabilities. The debt securities issued are initially 
recognized at fair value to which possible transaction costs are added and then measured at amortized 
cost using the effective interest rate method. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 fonn an integral part of these financial statements. 
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2.19 Deposits from banks and customers 

Deposits from banks and customers are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
Deposits from banks are recorded when the Bank receives money or other assets from other 
counterparty banks. 
Customer accounts are non-derivative liabilities to individuals, state or corporate customers. 

2.20 Borrowings from banks and other financial institutions 

The loans obtained from banks and other financial institutions include loans from international banks 
and financial institutions and are measured at amortised cost. 

2.21 Sale and repurchase agreements of securities 

Sale and repurchase agreements ("repo agreements"), which effectively provide a lender's return to 
the counterparty, are treated as secured financing transactions. Securities sold under such sale and 
repurchase agreements are not derecognized. The securities are not reclassified in the statement of 
financial position unless the transferee has the right by contract or custom to sell or repledge the 
securities, in which case they are reclassified as pledged securities. The corresponding liability is 
presented within deposits from banks. 

Securities purchased under agreements to resell ("reverse repo agreements"), which effectively 
provide a lender' s return to the Bank, are recorded as loans and advances from banks or loans and 
advances to customers, as appropriate. The difference between the sale and repurchase price, adjusted 
by interest and dividend income collected by the counterparty, is treated as interest income and 
accrued over the life of repo agreements using the effective interest method. 

Securities lent to counterparty banks for a fixed fee are retained in the financial statements in their 
original category in the statement of financial position unless the counterparty has the right by 
contract or custom to sell or repledge the securities, in which case they are reclassified and presented 
separately. 

Securities borrowed for a fixed fee are not recorded in the financial statements, unless these are sold 
to third parties, in which case the purchase and sale are recorded in profit or loss for the year within 
net gains arising from trading securities. The obligation to return the securities is recorded at fair 
value în other borrowed funds. 

2.22 Provisions 

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of a past event to transfer economic benefits in order to settle the obligation and 
the amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated. 
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2.23 Contingent assets and liabilities 

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. They are disclosed in notes unless 
the possibility of an outflow of economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in 
the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 

2.24 Financial guarantees 

The Group issues financial guarantees and commitments to provide loans. 

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group to make specified payments to reimburse 
the holder for a loss they incur because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in 
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument and represents a credit risk. 

Financial guarantee liability is initially recognised at its fair value which is normally highlighted by 
the amount of fees received. 

This amount is amortized throughout the life of the commitment, except for commitments to origina te 
loans if it is probable that the Group will enter into a specific lending arrangement and does not expect 
to sell the resulting Ioan shortly after origination; such Ioan commitment fees are deferred and 
included in the carrying value of the Ioan on initial recognition. At the end of each reporting period, 
the commitments are measured at the higher value between (i) the amount initially recognized less, 
where appropriate, the cumulative amount of revenue recognized in accordance with IFRS 15 and (ii) 
allowance for losses caused to the end of each reporting period. 

ln cases where the fees are charged periodically in respect of an outstanding commitment, they are 
recognised as revenue on a time proportion basis over the respective commitment period. 

2.25 Segment reporting 

The Bank discloses information at segment levei to enable users of its financial statements to evaluate 
the nature and financial effects of the business activities in which it engages and the economic 
environments in which it operates. 
An operating segment is a component of the Bank: 
(a) that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses 
(b) whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity's chief operating decision maker to 
take decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and 
(c) for which discrete financial information is available. 
Segment reporting is based on the following business lines of the Bank: corporate, authorities of public 
local administration, individuals, small and medium entities (referred to as "SME") and treasury, the 
latter including financial institutions. 
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2.26 Employee benefits 

Short term benefits 

Short-term employee benefits include wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions. 
Short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense when services are rendered. The Group 
includes in short-term benefits the accruals for the employees' current year profit sharing which can 
be paid within twelve months from the end of the period. 

Pension plans/ social and pension contributions 
The Group, in the normal course of business, makes payments to the Romanian state funds on behalf 
of its employees for the pension fund and health care fund. All the employees of the Group are 
members and are also legally obliged to make defined contributions (included in the social security 
contributions) to the Romanian state pension plan. Ali related contributions to the Romanian state 
pension plan are recognized as an expense in the profit and loss statement for the period when 
incurred. The Group does not operate any independent pension scheme and, consequently, has no 
other obligation in respect of pensions. 

Post- employment benefits 

The Group may offer employees retirement benefits. If the Group grants retirement benefits, it will 
recognize a liability in the financial statements. 

2.27 Share capital 

Ordinaiy shares are classified as equity. 
Share capital has been adjusted to reflect the impact of IAS 29 up to 1 Januaiy 2004 when Romania 
ceased tobe a hyperinflationaiy economy. 

2.28 Trade and other payables 

Trade payables are accrued when the counterparty has performed its obligations under the contract 
and are measured at amortized cost. 

2.29 Corrections of errors 

Prior period errors are omissions and misstatements contained in the financial statements for one or 
more prior periods that resuit from the non-use or erroneous use of reliable information that was 
available at the time the financial statements for those periods were approved and could have been 
used. obtained and taken into account, reasonably, in the preparation and presentation of the annual 
financial statements. 
Such errors include the effects of mathematical errors, errors in applying accounting policies, ignoring 
or misinterpreting events and fraud. 
The correction of significant errors related to previous financial years is carried out on account of the 
retained earnings and the correction of insignificant errors related to previous financial years as well 
as the errors related to the current financial year are carried out on account of the profit or loss 
account. 
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2.30 Corrections of errors in the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 
December 2022 

Where necessary, the comparisons have been adjusted to the disclosures in accordance with the IFRS 
of the current year. 

The statement of financial position as at 1 January 2022 was not disclosed in this set of financial 
statements given that the lines in the financial statements are not materially affected by these 
reclassifications. 

During 2023 the Group identified that the offsetting criteria are not met for the below transactions 
and balances, and as at 31 December 2022 these amounts should not be offset as some of the 
transactions may have tobe returned to customer accounts. Therefore, the Group decided to correct 
the classification presenting the amounts on a gross basis. 

The effect of reclassifications for presentation purposes on the Statement of Financial Position was as 
follows for the amounts as at 31 December 2022: 

Statement of financial position 

31 December 2022 31 December 2022 

Reported Correction Restated 
Cash and cash equivalents 10,069,054 
Loans and advances to banks and public 
institutions 6,119,076 
Loans and advances to customers 29,224,037 
Other financial assets 79,497 

Total assets 61,748,716 

Customer accounts 52,430,729 

Other financial liabilities 89,799 

Total liabilities 57,855,372 

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 

31 December 2022 
Reported Correction 

Commission income 369,785 2,969 
Commission expense (55,909) (45,954) 
Net commission income 313,876 (42,985) 
Other operating income 22,754 (2,968) 

Operating income 1,839,357 (45,953) 
Other operating expenses (401,729) 45,953 
Operating expenses (1,332,577) 45,953 
Net Profit for the year 424,326 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 fonn an integral part of these financial statements. 
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35,033 10,104,087 

255 6,119,331 
18,772 29,242,809 
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63,529 61,812,246 

2,064 52,432,793 

61,465 151,264 

63,529 57,918,902 

31 December 2022 
Restated 

372,754 
(101,863) 
270,891 

19,786 

1,793,404 
(355,776) 

(1,286,624) 

424,326 

This version of the financial statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. Ali possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation of infonnation, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedence over this 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

a) Introduction 

The most important types of financial risks to which the Group is exposed are credit risk, liquidity 
risk, market risk and interest rate risk other than trading portfolio. Market risk includes currency risk 
and equity price risk. This note provides information regarding Bank's exposure to eveiy risk 
mentioned above, the objectives and policies of the Bank and evaluation and risk management 
processes. 

Risk management framework 

The Board of Directors of the Bank has the overall responsibility for the establishment and monitoring 
of the Bank's risk management framework. In this way, the Board of Directors of the Bank analyses, 
reviews and approves, at least annually, the Bank's risk management strategies and policies to reflect 
changes in internai and externai factors, as well as changes in the economic environment in which the 
Bank operates. The Board of Directors of the Bank also reconsiders and approves the risk profile, 
setting acceptable levels for significant risks and ensures that the necessaiy steps are taken to identify, 
assess, monitor and control significant risks, including for outsourced activities. 

The Executive Committee, the Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO), the Risk Management 
Committee and Operational Risk Management Committee function, within the limits of the powers 
delegated by the Board of Directors of the Bank, which are responsible for developing and monitoring 
the Bank' s risk management policies in areas specified by them. Ali committees report regularly to the 
Board of Directors. 

The Bank' s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks to which the 
Bank is exposed, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to risk 
limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market 
conditions, products and services offered. 

The Bank, through its training, management standards and procedures, aims to developa disciplined 
and constructive control environment, in which all employees understand their roles and obligations. 
The Bank's Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the compliance with the Bank's risk 
management procedures. The Audit Committee is assisted in fulfilling these functions by Internai 
Audit. Internai Audit undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and 
procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee. 

b) Creditrisk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss of the Group if a customer or a counterparty of a financial 
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. 

Credit risk associated with trading and investing activities is managed through the Bank's market risk 
management process. The risk is mitigated through selecting counterparties with good credit rating 
standings, monitoring their activities and ratings and through the use of exposure limits and when 
appropriate, the obtaining of collaterals. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 fonn an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

On 13.05.2016 the "Law on payment of immovable property with the aim of extinguishing the 
obligations under the credit" came into force. 

As at 31.12.2023, the Bank received notifications regarding the law on full settlement of mortgage / 
home equity loans and has under analysis 11 loans with an on-balance sheet exposure of RON 3,275 
thousand, for which the Bank made adjustments for expected credit loss of RON 2,310 thousand, 
respectively real estate guarantees of RON 4,630 thousand. The above-mentioned situations are 
analysed for the legality of notifications but in case of settlement of mortgage, the estimated impact 
on the portfolio of loans and financial position of the Bank is insignificant. 

As at 31.12.2022, the Bank received notifications regarding the law on full settlement of mortgage / 
home equity loans and has under analysis 13 loans with an on-balance sheet exposure of RON 6,083 
thousand, for which the Bank made adjustments for expected credit loss of RON 4,980 thousand, 
respectively real estate guarantees of RON 6,154. The above-mentioned situations are analysed for the 
legality of notifications but in case of settlement of mortgage thousand, so that the estimated impact 
on the portfolio of loans and financial position of the Bank is insignificant. 

Until now, the Bank has taken over the payment as a result of the provisions of Law 77/2016: 9 

buildings and 10 lands. During 2023 no debt repayments were made, representing receivables 
residuals recorded in offbalance sheet accounts. 

An analysis of the ratio between mortgage loans and related real estate guarantees (LTV) at the 
reporting date is presented in Note 3. 

As at 31 December 2023, the Group recorded a portfolio of loans granted to individuals that can 
benefit from the law on full settlement of mortgage with a value of RON 4,100,407 thousand, with 
collateral value of RON 8,458,648 thousand. Adjustments for expected credit loss related to this 
portfolio have a value of RON 51,758 thousand. 

As at 31 December 2022, the Group recorded a portfolio of loans granted to individuals that can 
benefit from the law on full settlement of mortgage with a value of RON 4,237,374 thousand, with 
collateral value of RON 8,153,038 thousand. Adjustments for expected credit loss related to this 
portfolio have a value of RON 45,620 thousand. 

The Group's primary exposure to credit risk arises from its lending activity and other transactions in 
which the Group recognizes financial assets. The maximum amount of credit exposure in this regard 
is represented by the carrying amounts of the assets recognised in the balance sheet. 

The Group is exposed to credit risk from various other financial assets, including derivative 
instruments and debt investments, for which the maximum current credit exposure is equal to the 
carrying amount of these assets in the balance sheet. In addition, the Group is exposed to off balance 
sheet credit risk through commitments to grant loans for which the maximum exposure is the 
commitment value. 

In order to minimise this risk, the Group bas established exposure limits and procedures in order to 
screen the customers before granting the loans and to monitor their ability to repay the principal and 
interest during the lifetime of the Ioan. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 forrn an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 
Credit risk is diminished by the amount of collateral received. The adjustment value for impaired 
loans is based on the management's analysis at the balance sheet date after taking into account the 
potential cash flows from the execution of the collateral, net of the costs of obtaining and selling them. 
Management closely monitors the evolution of the portfolio and the cash flow forecast such to ensure 
it reflects the revised estimates of expected future cash flows in the impairment assessments 

Credit risk management 
The Board of Directors of the Bank has delegated, through the Executive Committee, the responsibility 
of monitoring the credit risk to its Credit Committee (including Restructuring Committee). 
Separately, The Risk Management Division, reporting to the Executive Committee, is responsible for 
oversight of the Bank's credit risk, including: 

Formulating credit policies in consultation with business units, covering collateral 
requirements, credit assessment, risk grading and reporting, documentary and legal procedures and 
compliance with regulatory and statutory requirements. 

Establishing the authorisation structure for the approval and renewal of credit facilities, 
approval of changes in the contract terms (restructuring). Authorisation limits are allocated to levels 
of credit approvers. Greater credit facilities require approval by the highest level of the Credit 
Committee, the Executive Committee or the Board of Administrators as appropriate. 

Reviewing and assessing credit risk. The Credit Committee assesses all credit exposures 
in excess of designated limits, prior to facilities being approved or recommended for approval by the 
Board of Directors and/ or committed to customers. Renewals and reviews of facilities are subject to 
the same review process. 

Limiting concentration of exposure to counterparties, geographical areas and industries 
(for loans and advances to customers) and by issuer, credit classification category, market liquidity 
and country (for investment securities). 

Reviewing compliance of business units with agreed exposure limits, including those for 
selected industries and product types. 

Providing regular reports on the credit quality of portfolios to the Board of Directors 
and taking appropriate corrective actions. 

Providing advice, guidance and specialist expertise to business units to promote best 
practice throughout the Bank for credit risk management. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 
(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 
Concentration of credit risk that arises from financial instruments exists for groups of counterparties 
or other third parties when they have similar economic characteristics that would cause their ability 
to meet contractual obligations to he similarly affected by changes in economic or other conditions. 
The major concentration of credit risk in relation to the Group's loans and advances is disclosed below. 
The disclosure of exposures and specific adjustments for expected losses are grouped by portfolios, 
having the below characteristics: 

CAG Legal entities Agriculture 

CSA Individuals - personal needs loans fully collateralised with real 
estate collaterals 

CSN Individuals - personal needs loans without real estate collaterals 
or not fully covered 

CTS Bridge loans for subsides 
IP Individuals - Mortgage loans 
OW Cards/Overdraft 
CAP Public local administrations 
CCM Legal entities Commerce 
CCO Legal entities Construction 
CIN Legal entities Industry 
CSS Legal entities Services 

The table below presents the Group/Bank's loans commitments and financial guarantees net of 
provision outstanding as at 31 December 2023, split by stages: 

Group/Bank 
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 Total 

Crediting commitments 
Exposure 4,083,060 215,208 48,775 4,347,042 
Provision 21,080 5,591 2,529 29,201 
Net crediting commitments 4,061,980 209,616 46,245 4,317,842 
Guarantee commitments 

Exposure 1,792,627 292,304 42,929 2,127,860 
Provision 7,949 2,440 5,261 15,650 
Net guarantee 1,784,678 289,864 37,668 2,112,210 
commitments 

The table below presents the Group/Bank's loans commitments and financial guarantees net of 
provision outstanding as at 31 December 2022, split by stages: 

Group/Bank 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI 

Crediting commitments 
Total 

Exposure 4,055,681 334,753 53,300 13 4,443,747 
Provision 19,998 4,956 6,936 

Net crediting commitments 4,035,683 329,797 46,364 
Guarantee commitments 

Exposure 1,581,223 319,441 57,714 

Provision 4,478 2,208 6,993 

Net guarantee commitments 1,576,745 317,233 50,721 
The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

The Group/Bank monitors the concentration of credit risk by geographical regions. An analysis of 
concentrations of credit risk exposures at the reporting date is shown below (amounts net of expected 
losses): 

Group/Bank 
Adjustments for 

Gross exposure expected credit loss 
31 December 2023 31 December 2023 

Bucuresti-Ilfov 11,689,097 806,731 

Center 2,297,128 167,895 

North-East 3,255,792 158,086 

North-West 4,780,444 219,892 

South-East 4,507,935 186,807 

South-Muntenia 2,755,733 123,379 

South-West Oltenia 2,618,073 98,277 

West 1,607,654 126,240 

Total 33,511.857 1.887,307 

Adjustments for 
Gross exposure expected credit loss 

31 December 2022 31 December 2022 

Bucuresti-Ilfov 10,807,001 605,310 

Center 2,015,138 157,048 

North-East 2,902,297 100,919 

North-West 4,389,404 241,794 

South-East 4,262,371 164,636 

South-Muntenia 2,501,975 179,428 

South-West Oltenia 2,439,462 80,729 

West 1,555,136 118,883 

Total 30,872,784 1,648.747 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Net exposure 
31 December 2023 

10,882,366 

2,129,233 

3,097,706 

4,560,552 

4,321,128 

2,632,354 

2,519,796 

1,481,414 

31,624,549 

Net exposure 
31 December 2022 

10,201,691 

1,858,090 

2,801,378 

4,147,610 

4,097,735 

2,322,547 

2,358,733 

1,436,253 

29,224.037 
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

The split of the Group/Bank's gross loans and advances to customers by class and category, as at 
31 December 2023 (gross amounts): 

Group/Bank 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total 

Individuals - personal needs 
loans fully collateralised with 166,064 24,665 40,951 231,680 

real estate collaterals 
Individuals - personal needs 
loans without real estate 1,613,148 40,955 120,518 1,774,621 

collaterals or not fully covered 
Individuals - Mortgage loans 6,271,045 544,376 85,956 6,901,377 

Cards/ Overdraft 459,849 ~ 15,609 480,z63 

Total loans for individuals 8.510.106 615.301 263.034 - 9.388,441 = 

Legal entities Agriculture 2,635,037 306,470 204,874 3,146,381 

Public local administrations 2,357,837 147,405 48,088 2,553,330 

Legal entities Industry 4,369,540 830,104 362,409 123,649 5,685,702 

Legal entities Commerce 2,717,940 422,356 235,383 3,375,679 

Legal entities Construction 1,739,094 118,981 428,897 2,286,972 

Legal entities Services 4,614,758 1,298,518 493,269 6,406,545 

Bridge loans for subsides 615,530 42,982 10,295 668,8oz 

Total corporate loans and 19.049,z36 3,166.816 1.z83.215 123.649 24,123.416 

advances 

Total gross loans and advances 27 559 843 3,782.117 2,046.249 123 649 33.511.857 

19.886 988 
Collaterals 

3.400 251 1 671 709 123.649 25.082.592 

The collaterals value, presented în the tables from pages 50 - 63 includes the collaterals value 
accepted to be taken into account as a risk reducing factor în order to determine adjustments for 
expected losses; în case of Ioan with guarantees issued by guarantee funds/ Eximbank with terms 
regarding the risk sharing în the enforcement process of the other guarantees related to the Ioan, the 
value of the guarantees îs the one resulted after pari-passu principie application. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

The split of the Group/Bank's gross loans and advances to customers by class and category, as at 
31 December 2022 (gross amounts): 

Group/Bank 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 

Individuals - personal needs 
loans fully collateralised with real 198,248 29,361 44,832 

estate collaterals 
Individuals - personal needs 
loans without real estate 1,389,888 51,998 121,701 

collaterals or not fully covered 
Individuals - Mortgage loans 6,613,963 633,834 58,440 

Cards/ Overdraft 341,791 ~ 15,801 

Total loans for individuals 8.543.890 721.551 240,274 

Legal entities Agriculture 2,085,004 286,618 200,785 

Public local administrations 2,601,911 395,792 8,656 

Legal entities Industry 3,852,526 526,713 353,693 

Legal entities Commerce 2,218,137 259,830 250,086 

Legal entities Construction 1,449,955 145,675 286,862 

Legal entities Services 3,941,716 1,404,156 552,307 

Bridge loans for subsides 404,880 20,728 Âl5.9l 

Total corporate loans and 16,554.129 3,039.512 1,656.980 

advances 

Total gross loans and advances 25.098.019 3 761063 1.892,254 

Collaterals 18,269,652 3.184.293 1.595,467 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

The Group/Bank's expected credit loss related to loans and advances to 
31 December 2023: 

Groun{Bank 
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 

Individuals - personal needs 
loans fully collateralised with real 
estate collaterals 1,070 407 23,778 
Individuals - personal needs 
loans without real estate 
collaterals or not fully covered 17,031 479 57,597 
Individuals - Mortgage loans 8,183 3,485 32,559 
Cards/ Overdraft ~ ~ ~ 

Total adjustments for expected 
credit loss for individuals ~ ~ 123.188 
Legal entities Agriculture 27,679 12,013 118,562 
Public local administrations 23,578 1,474 11,261 
Legal entities Industry 88,773 81,898 198,645 
Legal entities Commerce 31,488 22,958 140,033 
Legal entities Construction 35,947 4,501 277,201 
Legal entities Services 97,029 172,294 313,563 
Bridge loans for subsides ~ 28 6,152 
Total adjustments for expected 
credit loss for companies 304,z83 295,166 1,065,417 
Total adjustments for expected 
credit loss 334.489 299.661 1,188,6Q5 
Gross loans and advances to 2:z,559,843 3,:zs2.11z 2 046,249 

clients 
Net loans and advances to clients 27.225,354 3.482.456 85z,643 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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POCI Total 
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44,227 
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

The Group/Bank's expected credit loss related to loans and advances provided to customers as at 
31 December 2022: 

GrounLBank 
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 

Individuals - personal needs 
loans fully collateralised with 
real estate collaterals 1,415 510 23,353 
Individuals - personal needs 
loans without real estate 
collaterals or not fully covered 11,258 697 64,727 
Individuals - Mortgage loans 6,420 3,746 21,893 
Cards/ Overdraft ~ _18.s 10,904 
Total adjustments for expected 
credit loss for individuals ~ ~ 120.877 
Legal entities Agriculture 14,361 11,361 113,883 
Public local administrations 26,042 3,955 2,793 
Legal entities Industry 74,252 51,707 228,566 
Legal entities Commerce 26,727 15,633 135,122 
Legal entities Construction 22,005 9,338 160,573 
Legal entities Services 79,234 172,001 313,760 
Bridge loans for subsides ..1Z9 18 ~ 
Total adjustments for expected 
credit loss for companies 242.800 264.013 958.592 
Total adjustments for expected 
credit loss 264.605 269.151 1,oz9.469 
Gross loans and advances to 
clients 25,098.019 3.z61,063 1.89z,254 
Net loans and advances to clients 24,833.414 3.491.912 818,285 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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76,682 
32,059 
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

Presentation of the Group/Bank's Ioan commitments given as at 31 December 2023: 

GrounLBank 
31 Decernber 2023 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 

Individuals - personal needs 
loans without real estate 76,492 62 48 
collaterals or not fully covered 
Individuals - personal needs 34 
loans fully collateralised with 
real estate collaterals 
Individuals - Mortgage loans 35,267 51 

Cards/ Overdraft 549,340 6,432 1,784 
Gross total for individuals 661,133 6,546 1,832 
Provision 720 44 67 
Net total individuals 660,413 6,502 1,765 
Legal entities Agriculture 848,923 48,702 13,082 
Public local administrations 156,960 3,546 23,660 
Legal entities Industry 573,698 66,153 689 
Legal entities Commerce 477,740 58,098 441 

Legal entities Construction 684,824 13,625 4,546 
Legal entities Services 651,003 18,210 4,524 
Bridge loans for subsides 28,778 327 
Gross total corporate 3,421,927 208,662 46,943 
Provision 20,360 5,548 2,462 
Net total corporate 3,401,567 203,114 44,480 
Gross total 4,083,060 215,208 48,775 
Provision 21,080 5,591 2,529 
Net total 4,061,980 209,616 46,245 

Presentation ofthe Group/Bank's financial guarantees given as at 31 December 2023: 

GrounlBank 
31 Decernber 2023 Stage 1 Stage 2 

Financial guarantees given 1,792,627 292,304 

Provision 7,949 2,440 
Net total 1,784,678 289,864 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

Presentation of the Group/Bank's Ioan commitments given as at 31 December 2022: 

GrounLBank 
31 December 2022 Stage 1 Stage2 Stage3 

Individuals - personal needs loans 
without real estate collaterals or not 37,595 82 19 
fully covered 
Individuals - Mortgage loans 47,828 64 
Cards/ Overdraft 434,103 6,840 2,478 
Gross total for individuals 519,526 6,986 2,497 
Provision 538 52 89 
Net total individuals 518,988 6,934 2,408 
Legal entities Agriculture 858,549 120,263 8,249 
Public local administrations 112,714 51,952 
Legal entities Industry 780,368 54,758 21,263 
Legal entities Commerce 508,683 15,454 1,219 
Legal entities Construction 502,009 20,697 8,040 
Legal entities Services 760,492 64,386 12,045 
Bridge loans for subsides 13,340 257 
Gross total corporate 3,536,155 327,767 50,816 
Provision 19,460 4,904 6,850 
Net total corporate 3,516,695 322,863 43,966 
Loans to credit institutions 4,055,681 334,753 53,313 
Gross total 19,998 4,956 6,939 
Provision 4,035,683 329,797 46,374 
Net total 37,595 82 19 

Presentation of the Group/Bank's financial guarantees given as at 31 December 2022: 

GrounLBank 
31 December 2022 Stage 1 Stage2 
Financial guarantees given 1,581,223 319,441 

Provision 4,478 2,208 
Net total 1,576,745 317,233 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 
(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

(i) The Group/Bank's loans and advances to customers for which credit risk has not increased 
significantly since initial recognition (Stage 1): 

Group/Bank 

Internai rating Lowrisk Moderate risk Total 
31 December 2023 

Individuals - personal needs 
loans fully collateralised with real 
estate collaterals 157,615 8,449 166,064 
Individuals - personal needs 
loans without real estate 
collaterals or not fully covered 1,356,762 256,386 1,613,148 
Individuals - Mortgage loans 5,876,937 394,108 6,271,045 
Cards/ Overdraft 4,05,598 54,251 459,879 
Total gross loans to individuals :z,:z96 912 n3.194 ___8_1510,106 
Adjustment for expected credit 
loss for individuals 26,037 3,668 29,705 
Total net loans to individuals 7,770,875 709,526 8,480,401 

Legal entities Agriculture 2,188,775 446,262 2,635,037 
Public local administrations 2,357,837 2,357,837 
Legal entities Industry 4,164,681 204,859 4,369,540 

Legal entities Commerce 2,375,186 342,754 2,717,940 
Legal entities Construction 1,609,969 129,125 1,739,094 
Legal entities Services 3,478,633 1,136,125 4,614,758 
Bridge loans for subsides 528,863 86,66z 615,530 
Total loans to corporate 16,:zo3,944 2.345.:z92 19,049.:z36 
Adjustment for expected credit 
loss for companies 265,450 39,333 304,783 
Total net loans to corporate 16,438,494 2,306,459 18,744,953 

Total gross 24.500,856 3.058,986 2:z,559.842 
Total adjustments for expected 
credit loss 291,487 43,001 334,488 
Total net loans 24,209,369 3,015,985 27,225,354 

Collaterals 1:z.440,862 2.446,126 19,886,988 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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97,033 
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~ 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 
(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

GrounLBank 

Internai rating Lowrisk Moderate risk Total 
31 December 2022 

Individuals - personal needs 
loans fully collateralised with real 
estate collaterals 187,528 10,720 198,248 
Individuals - personal needs 
loans without real estate 
collaterals or not fully covered 1,127,966 261,922 1,389,888 
Individuals - Mortgage loans 6,172,440 441,523 6,613,963 
Cards/ Overdraft 310,370 ~ 341,791 
Total gross loans to individuals z,z98,304 ¾5,586 8,543,890 
Adjustment for expected credit 
loss for individuals 18,898 ~ 21,805 
Total net loans to individuals 7,779,406 742,679 8,522,085 

Legal entities Agriculture 1,816,683 268,321 2,085,004 
Public local administrations 2,601,911 2,601,911 
Legal entities Industry 3,311,902 540,624 3,852,526 

Legal entities Commerce 2,098,552 119,585 2,218,137 
Legal entities Construction 1,319,521 130,434 1,449,955 
Legal entities Services 2,966,053 975,663 3,941,716 
Bridge loans for subsides 366,844 38,036 404,880 
Total loans to corporate 14,481,466 2,022,663 16,554.129 
Adjustment for expected credit 
loss for companies 208,172 34,028 242,800 

Total net loans to corporate 14,272,694 2,038,635 16,311,329 

Total gross 22,2z9,zzo 2,818,249 25,098,019 
Total adjustments for expected 
credit loss 227,670 36.935 264,605 
Total net loans 22,052,100 2,781,314 24,833,414 

Collaterals 16.5z2,254 2,19z.398 18,269.652 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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10,819 

60,943 
12,721 

-9.J29 
93.612 

660 

92,952 
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-5,SQQ 

4z1,220 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

During the analysis process, both qualitative factors (the quality of the shareholders, the assessment 
of the levei of qualification and continuity within the company of the management, the concentration 
of the clients, the debtor's experience in managing the borrowed funds) and quantitative factors 
(current liquidity, solvency, return on turnover, general indebtedness, hedging rate) are considered. 

Taking into account the qualitative and quantitative factors considered for the assessment of default 
risk, customers are classified at the time of granting Ioan in . one of the five financial performance 
classes graded from A to E, where A is the best class, E - the worst class. 

The financial performance of corporate clients is updated every 6 months based on updated financial 
statements ln the case of individuals, the financial performance is determined on the basis of the 
scoring from the granting of the Ioan and is revalued during the course of the loans according to the 
information obtained regarding the fluctuation of income. 

Stage 1 loans to customers in the top two financial performance classes (A and B) are considered low­
risk loans, the other Stage I loans are considered tobe moderate-risk loans. 

(ii) Loans and advances for which credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition 
but which are not impaired (Stage 2) 

Based on past experience, outstanding loans with a debt service of more than 30 days at the end of 
the current month, or the debt service exceeded 30 days according to the new definition of "default", 
loans included in the observation list, restructured performing loans, the exposure of a client for which 
changes in the credit/ client situation have been identified as compared to the situation at the credit 
granting date without these constituting a default event or predicting the non-recovery of the claim in 
full without recourse to collateral enforcement, are classified as loans for which credit risk has 
increased significantly since initial recognition if no impairment indicators have been identified 
leading to their classification as impaired loans. 

Based on the internai collective assessment methodology, the Group determines adjustments for 
expected loss over the life of the loans for which credit risk has increased significantly since initial 
recognition. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 
(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

The Group/Bank's gross amounts ofloans and advances classified in Stage 2 based on debt service are 
as follows: 

GrounLBank 

31..= 
31 December 2023 o days 1-30 days 6odays 

Individuals - personal needs loans fully 
collateralised with real estate collaterals 17,253 5,282 1,779 
Individuals - personal needs loans without 
real estate collaterals or not fully covered 11,849 7,038 11,970 
Individuals - Mortgage loans 502,991 32,728 6,421 
Cards/ Overdraft ___L9zg 1,664 _gza 
Total loans to individuals 53~bQ65 46,z12 ~ 
Expected credit loss to individuals ...3.i734 -414 ~ 

Total net loans for individuals 530,331 46,298 20,905 

Legal entities Agriculture 276,972 13,260 12,517 

Public local administrations 130,093 109 

Legal entities Industry 748,882 50,938 27,754 
Legal entities Commerce 364,653 28,341 8,898 

Legal entities Construction 109,571 3,802 903 
Legal entities Services 1,234,108 55,543 3,418 

Bridge loans for subsides 40,466 902 1,321 
Total corporate loans 2,904,:245 152,286 5492Q 
Expected credit loss to corporate 276,045 12,344 ~ 
Total net loans for corporate 2,628,700 140,442 50,995 

Total gross 3,438,81Q 199,498 :z6,Q68 
Total expected credit loss 2zg,zzg 12,758 4,168 
Total net loans 3,159,031 186,740 71,900 
Collaterals 3,14Q,14Q 166,142 ~ 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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20,464 422,356 

4,705 118,981 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 
(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

Grou~LBank 
1-30 

31 December 2022 odays days 

Individuals - personal needs loans fully 
collateralised with real estate collaterals 20,313 6,592 
Individuals - personal needs loans without 
real estate collaterals or not fully covered 20,077 6,716 
Individuals - Mortgage loans 584,688 36,700 
Cards/ Overdraft ~ 2,160 
Total loans to individuals 62z.631 52.168 
Expected credit loss to individuals ~ -452 
Total net loans for individuals 623,415 51,711 

Legal entities Agriculture 261,471 15,871 

Public local administrations 346,027 49,352 
Legal entities Industry 514,681 3,742 
Legal entities Commerce 210,213 1,693 

Legal entities Construction 115,172 17,461 

Legal entities Services 1,382,085 12,842 

Bridge loans for subsides 20,483 g4_5 

Total corporate loans 2,850.132 101.206 

Expected credit loss to corporate 253,426 -4.d4.4 
Total net loans for corporate 2,596,706 96,762 

Total gross 3.4zz.z63 153.374 
Total expected credit loss 257,642 A,9Q! 

Total net loans 148,47 
3,220,121 3 

Collaterals 3.006.495 93.004 

31..:: 
60 days 

1,580 

14,226 
8,448 

..992 

25 251 
281 

24,970 

7,738 

6,547 
18,010 

9,206 

5,465 

46.966 

~ 

43,741 

~ 
__3.mQ 

68,711 
~ 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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413 395,792 
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41.208 3.039.512 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

(iii) The Group/Bank's depreciated loans and advances (Stage 3 and POCI), loans and advances to 
customers that present objective impairment indicators according to accounting policy 2.7 
(vi): 

1-30 31-60 61-90 91-180 181-360 Over 
31 December 2023 oday days days days days days 360 days Total 

Individuals - personal needs 
loans fully collateralised with 10,597 2,040 981 248 3,180 3,296 20,610 40,951 

real estate collaterals 
Individuals - personal needs 
loans without real estate 10,528 345 274 160 47,421 33,045 28,744 120,518 

collaterals or not fully covered 
Individuals - Mortgage loans 21,776 1,061 445 289 7,228 18,564 36,593 85,956 

Cards/Overdraft ..9.....4ZZ ...55 .5Q ...9.3. llQ5 ..!.913 2,850 -15..QQ9 

Total gross loans to individuals ~ ~ ~ =19Q ~ ~ ~ 263 033 

Expected credit loss to 
22,882 

individuals 
1,828 888 ..3.4.Z -15AQ3 ..3Q..9.Q5. ~ 123,188 

Total net loans for 29,495 1,673 868 443 25,914 37,921 139,845 

individuals 43,530 

Legal entities Agriculture 46,026 1,941 So 23,927 26,038 107,492 204,874 

Public local administrations 46,765 1,323 48,088 
28,022 1,012 46 73,479 15,368 223,907 486,058 

Legal entities Industry 144,225 
Legal entities Commerce 71,659 3,897 5,472 6,421 10,365 29,198 108,371 235,383 

Legal entities Construction 94,436 1,328 44,286 1,887 26,373 60,664 199,923 428,897 

Legal entities Services 92,318 45,519 1,065 13,024 81,004 75,972 184,367 493,269 

Bridge loans for subsides ...3.,_Q!g 100 - _gQ3 ..5.,..9Q5 1.016 --1Q495 -
Total gross loans to corporate 

382.237 19z 009 ~ ~ 214z81 213.146 826.399 1906 865 entities 
Expected credit loss to corporate 187,550 -9..!.,.'Z54 AL.41! ..9.479 101,889 129,463 568,723 1,129,969 
Total net loans for 

194,687 12,198 112,893 83,683 257,676 776,897 corporate 105,255 10,504 

Total gross 434 614 200.511 ~ 22.168 273,774 269 964 915.196 2,169.898 

Total expected credit loss 210,431 ~ ~ ~ ..!!Z35! 

Total net loans 224,183 106,928 11,372 12,641 156,423 

Collaterals 400,190 198,4zz 31..5.!5 _RQ_3.9 ~ 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

1-30 31-60 61-90 91-180 
31 December 2022 oday days days days days 

Individuals - personal needs 
loans fully collateralised with 9,415 3,124 747 555 3,613 
real estate collaterals 
Individuals - personal needs 
loans without real estate 11,147 277 395 375 38,679 
collaterals or not fully covered 
Individuals - Mortgage loans 17,334 1,600 179 677 9,431 
Cards/Overdraft ~ Ml ...5.9 _7Q _b53.2 

Total gross loans to individuals ~ ~ ~ 1683 ~ 
Expected credit loss to 

20,466 2,238 ...4Q'.Z ..5IZ ~ individuals 
Total net loans for 25,216 3,004 973 1,106 37,365 
individuals 
Legal entities Agriculture 19,846 19,684 1,500 3,762 9,162 
Public local administrations 1,433 6,893 
Legal entities Industry 247,620 1,701 1,336 1,095 11,030 

Legal entities Commerce 99,092 51,018 899 2,570 37,325 
Legal entities Construction 82,404 45 80 86,222 

Legal entities Services 240,449 11,713 13,415 28,255 73,578 
Bridge loans for subsides ...h32Z ...!9 - -- -
Total gross loans to corporate 

692 221 ~ ~ ~ 224.210 entities 
Expected credit loss to corporate 310,419 ~ -1QA82 __gg_,g_:zg -94.9.41 
Total net loans for 

381,802 60,730 6,663 15,683 129,269 corporate 
Total gross 737 903 ~ ~ ~ 277470 

Total expected credit loss 330,885 25,688 ~ 20,656 110,836 

Total net loans 407,018 63,734 7,636 16,789 166,634 

Collaterals 685 231 ~ ~ ~ 210.861 

181-360 Over 
days 360 days 

5,444 21,934 

33,003 37,825 

6,544 22,675 

~ -3...323 
~ ~ 

~ ~ 

20,218 32,015 

52,913 93,918 

330 
89,264 117,595 
19,088 40,094 
67,840 50,271 

70,719 114,178 
182 -3.&!3 

300.006 419 399 

195,082 339,656 

104,924 79,743 

342,236 505196 

222,594 393,438 

125,142 111,758 

247 998 ~ 

Upon initial recognition of loans and advances, the fair value of collateral is based on valuation 
techniques commonly used for the corresponding assets. In subsequent periods, the fair value is 
updated by reference to market price or indexes of similar assets. 

Fair value of the real estate and other type (inventory or equipment) collaterals at the end of the 
reporting period was estimated through haircuts applied to the value established by internai Valuation 
Department of the Bank. Applied haircuts depend on type of collateral, date of latest collateral 
valuation report, client's legal procedures (if any), collaterallocation, selling costs and time to sell. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

The types of collaterals accepted by the Group/Bank as at 31 December 2023 are presented in the 
table below: 

Type of collateral (%) Collaterals Collaterals for 
Colia te ral forbalance offbalance 

value sheet sheet 
exposures exposures 

Guarantees received from 7,580,466 27,46 7,580,466 
public administration and 
related entities 
Guarantees received from other 204,377 0,74 203,084 1,293 
financial Institutions 
Real estate 

15,751,279 57,05 14,587,352 1,163.927 

Pledge over (movable assets, 3,181,521 11,52 2,711,694 469,827 
inventory, cash collateral) 
Other (assignment of 
receivables) 892,015 3,23 554,015 338,000 
Total 

27,609,658 100,00 25,636,611 1,973,047 

The types of collaterals accepted by the Group/Bank as at 31 December 2022 are presented in the 
table below: 

Tme of collateral (%) Collaterals Collaterals for 
Colia te ral forbalance 

value sheet 
exposures 

Guarantees received from 
public administration and 5,233,568 

20.2 
5,233,568 

related entities 
o 

Guarantees received from other 
185,128 

financial lnstitutions 
0.71 175,790 

Real estate 16,237,799 62.67 14,879,589 
Pledge over (movable assets, 

3,568,666 13.77 2,771,931 
inventory, cash collateral) 
Other (assignment of 685.570 2.65 515,216 
receivables) 
Total 2s,910,z31 100 23.5z6,094 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

Analysis of the impact of the economic tu.rbulences on the loan portfolio and 
on the evolution ofthefinancial market 

The Group/Bank has identified trends, uncertainties, demands, commitments or events that are 
reasonably likely to have a negative impact on the Ioan portfolio, like: 
• The ongoing Russian-Ukrainian war bas a lasting impact on the future economic growth in the 
region and bas prompted the European Union institutions to actively change the strategic 
development plans in the energy sector with consequences on the EU funds size which have been 
complemented by the new EU funds package (Next GenerationEU). However, the new strategy comes 
with new rules that are still currently under discussion, but which are expected to affect in the short 
term the economic growth dynamics in the region, mainly because of the conditioning to reduce the 
energy consumption in EU in the very short term. Considering pre-existing supply chain problems and 
high inflation which drives up costs, the macroeconomic context is expected to translate into reduced 
credit demand, savings' pace and altogether slower business activity of the banking sector. Therefore, 
the ability of some customers to repay their loans is alsa being affected and the current trend of lower 
non-performing loans ("NPL") rate in the Romanian banking sector could he reversed. 
• In terms of general trends regarding the financial services industry, the sector is mainly impacted by 
the uncertainty of the fu ture macroeconomic environment development, in the context of the ongoing 
war and adverse effects brought by the geopolitica} context - increasing inflationary pressures and the 
prolonged period of elevated interest rate. The activity in the financial services sector is affected by the 
instability and volatility on the financial markets, and by the potential general economic downturn, 
for which the probability bas risen in the past months, based on the high frequency indicators in the 
Eurozone. The initial effect of higher interest rates bas a positive impact on the net interest income of 
the banking sector. However, this development could he more than offset by lower extension of credit, 
higher risk costs, to which we add the negative impact from mark-to-market of securities held at fair 
value through profit or loss or through other comprehensive income. 

Assumptions and techniques used in estimating adjustments for expected credit losses: 

As at 31 December 2023, the average probability of default over 12 months estimated for the Ioan 
portfolio and used for determining adjustments for expected credit loss (before applying the post 
model adjustment coefficients presented on page 68) is: 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

12-month 
Group average 

CAG (Legal entities Agriculture) CAG 2.96% 
CAP (Public local administrations) CAP 1.40% 
CCM (Legal entities Commerce) CCM 4.61% 
CCO (Legal entities Construction) cco 6.14% 
CIN (Legal entities Industry) CIN 5.60% 
CSA (Individuals - fully collateralised 
personal needs Ioans) CSA 2.79% 
CSN (Individuals - personal needs loans 
without collateral or not fully covered) CSN 3.12% 

CSS (Legal entities Services) css 5.74% 
CTS (Bridge loans for subsidies) CTS 0.55% 
IP (Individuals - Mortgage loans) IP 0.36% 

OW (Cards/Overdraft) ow 2.92% 

The macroeconomic indicators used to adjust the observed PD curves are: 
1. Models for loans to private individuals 

- change in GDP, 6 months lag; 
- net average salary growth, adjusted with the inflation rate, 6 months lag. 

2. Models for loans to legal entities 
- change in GDP, 6 months lag; 
- ROBOR 3M rate, 12 months lag. 

To compute the cumulative probability of default curve (cPD) by incorporating the current forecasts 
for the macroeconomic indicators, the following scenarios have been used: 

- base scenario with a probability of 60% taking into account the GDP, average net salary and ROBOR 
3M rate as follows: 

- for GDP: estimates as per WORLD BANK Global Economic Prospects January 2024, for 2024 
economic growth of 3.30% and economic growth of 3.80% in 202s; 

- an increase in the average net salary adjusted with inflation, in 2024 equal to the average 
growth in the last 10 years and in 2025 equal to 75% of the average growth in the last 10 years, 
respectively increase of 3.88% in 2024 and increase of 4.19% in 2025; 

- ROBOR 3M rate - interna! forecast provided by the Strategy and Macroeconomic Analysis 
Department. 
- downside scenario with a probability of 30% taking into account the GDP, average net salary and 
ROBOR 3M rate as follows: 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Scenario 

Scenario 1 

Scenario 2 

Scenario 3 

Scenario 

Scenario 1 

Scenario 2 

Scenario 3 

- for GDP, the base scenario shifted downwards by 0.5 standard deviations (based on GDP 

evolution between 2005- 2023), for 2024 economic growth of 1.46% and economic growth of 1.96% 

in 202s; 

- an increase in the average net salacy adjusted with inflation, in 2024 75% of the average growth 
in the last 10 years and in 2025 equal to the minimum growth in the last 10 years, respectively decrease 
of 0.11% in 2024 and decrease of 0.92% in 2025; 

- ROBOR 3M rate - the base scenario shifted upwards by the uncertainty interval of the 
inflation forecast. 
- upside scenario with a probability of 10% taking into account the GDP, average net salacy and 
ROBOR 3M rate as follows: 

- for GDP, the base scenario shifted upwards by 0.25 standard deviations (based on GDP 

evolution between 2005- 2023), for 2024 economic growth of 4.22% and economic growth of 4. 72% 

in 2025; 

- an increase in the average net salacy adjusted with inflation - annual growth equal to the 
average growth in the last 10 years, respectively increase of 5.50% in 2024 and increase of 9.20% in 
2025; 

- ROBOR 3M rate - the base scenario shifted downwards by the uncertainty interval of the 
inflation forecast. 

Expected evolution of GDP 

Scenario Probability 2023 2024 2025 

Scenario 1 30% 1.80% 1.46% 1.96% 

Scenario 2 60% 1.80% 3.30% 3.80% 

Scenario 3 10% 1.80% 4.22% 4.72% 

Expected evolution of RO BOR 3M 

31.12.2023 31.03.2024 30.06.2024 30.09.2024 31.12.2024 31.03.2025 30.06.2025 

6.22% 7.17% 7.32% 7-42% 7.12% 7.52% 7.12% 

6.22% 6.17°/4 5.92% 5.42% 4.92% 5.22% 4.72% 

6.22% 5.27% 4.42% 3.52% 2.72% 2.92% 2.32% 

Expected evolution of inflation 

31.12.2023 31.03.2024 30.06.2024 30.09.2024 31.12.2024 31.03.2025 30.06.2025 

8.00% 8.70% 8.20% 7.70% 7.00% 5.90% 6.00% 

7.50% 7.70% 6.80% 5.70% 4.80% 3.60% 3.60% 

7.00% 6.80% 5.30% 3.80% 2.60% 1.30% 1.20% 
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Expected evolution of the average net salacy 

Scenario 2023 2024 2025 

Scenario 1 14.62% 7.78% 4.85% 

Scenario 2 14.62% 10.38% 7.78% 

Scenario 3 14.62% 10.38% 10.38% 

Expected evolution of the average net salacy adjusted with inflation 

Scenario 2023 2024 2025 

Scenario 1 3.82% -0.11% -0.92% 

Scenario 2 3.94% 3.88% 4.19% 

Scenario 3 4.06% 5.50% 9.20% 

In addition to the inherent estimation uncertainty, the economic effects of the pandemic and the 
Russian-Ukrainian war have caused increased uncertainties, in particular regarding macroeconomic 
forecasts and their probabilities of occurrence, and therefore actual results may differ materially from 
the estimated ones. The Group believes that these forecasts represent the best estimate of possible 
results. 
Sensitivity analysis of adjustments for expected losses determined by considering 100% probability 
for each scenario as at 31.12.2023 (RON thousand): 

Base Upside Downside 
scenario scenario scenario 

Balance sheet exposure Actual 100% 100% 100% 

Individuals 9,388,441 9,388,441 9,388,441 9,388,441 

Corporate entities 24,123,416 24,123,416 24,123,416 24,123,416 

Total 33,511,857 33,511,857 33,511,857 33,511,857 

Base Upside Downside 
Adjustments for expected scenario scenario scenario 
credit losses Actual 100% 100% 100% 

Individuals 157,389 156,845 155,874 159,490 

Legal entities 1,729,919 1,722,811 1,708,260 1,752,184 

Total 1,887,307 1,879,656 1,864,133 1,911,674 
Variables added to the parameter estimation models - ROBOR 3M interest rate and the increase of 
the average net salacy adjusted with inflation - allow a more accurate evaluation of the impact on 
borrowers caused by the rising inflation and interest rates. 
Considering the perspective of the economic situation in the context of the increase în energy / gas 
prices, as well as the difficulties în the supply/ distribution chain, the Russian-Ukrainian war, the 
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increase in inflation and the prolonged period of elevated interest rates, the Bank made some 
adjustments to the post-model expected credit loss ratios for loans classified in S1 and S2. 
Overlay coefficients for loans classified in S2 were validated based on updated information at the end 
of 2023. 
The levei of the coefficients was similar to the one estimated for 31.12.2022. 
For the loans classified as S1, there were introduced overlay coefficients for the portfolios for which, 
during 2023, the default observed rates were significantly above the probability of default estimated 
in December 2022; the value of 1.5 was determined as an average levei of exceeding the probabilities 
estimated by the realized rates (exceeding in the range 1.2-1.7) 
The bank used the following post model adjustment coefficients of expected credit losses for exposures 
classified as S1 and S2: 

Homogenous nortfolio ECL adjustment ECL adjustment 

coefficient S1 coefficient S2 

CSS (Legal entities Services) 2.52 

CIN (Legal entities Industry) 2.25 

CCO (Legal entities Construction) 1.5 2.25 

CCM (Legal entities Commerce) 2.25 

CAG (Legal entities Agriculture) 1.5 2.25 

CAP (Public local administrations) 2.25 

CSN (Individuals - personal needs loans without 1.5 

real estate collaterals or not fully covered) 

IP (Individuals - Mortgage loans) 1.5 

The quantitative effect of the post model adjustment coefficients was an increase in expected loss 
adjustments by approx. RON 200.96 million 

For individuals, the expectations of interest rate increases were taken into account in the classification 
of performing exposures. The impact of a 3 pp increase in benchmark rates was retlected in the 
increase in the levei of indebtedness. A significant increase in credit risk is expected when: 

• for unsecured loans, the monthly payment instalment increases by more than RON 150; 
• for secured loans granted as of the beginning of 2019, the monthly payment instalment 

increases by more than RON 500 and the levei of indebtedness exceeds 60%. 
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Based on these criteria, a total exposure of RON 544.69 million was classified in Stage 2 with an 
increase in adjustments for expected losses of approx. RON 3.72 million. As at 31.12.2023 the total 
exposure decreased to RON 456,34 million, ofwhich RON 3,70 million migrated to Stage 3. 
Assumptions and techniques used in estimating adjustments for expected credit losses: 
The 12-month average probability of default, estimated at the levei of the Ioan portfolio as at 
31.12.2022 and used to determine the adjustments for expected losses (before applying the post model 
adjustment coefficients presented on page 71) is: 

CAG (Legal entities Agriculture) 
CAP (Public local administrations) 
CCM (Legal entities Commerce) 
CCO (Legal entities Construction) 
CIN (Legal entities Industry) 
CSA (Individuals - personal needs loans 
fully collateralised with real estate 
collaterals) 
CSN (Individuals - personal needs loans 
without real estate collaterals or not fully 
covered) 
CSS (Legal entities Services) 
CTS (Bridge loans for subsides) 
IP (Individuals - Mortgage loans) 
OW (Cards/Overdraft) 

Group 
CAG 
CAP 
CCM 
cco 
CIN 

CSA 

CSN 
css 
CTS 
IP 
ow 

12-month 
average 

2.91% 
1.35% 
4.62% 
6.13% 
5.36% 

3.06% 

3.60% 
5.58% 
0.54% 
0.39% 
3.19% 

The macroeconomic indicators used to adjust the observed PD curves were: 
1. Models for loans to private individuals 

- change in GDP, 6 months lag; 
- net average salary growth, adjusted with the inflation rate, 6 months lag. 

2. Models for loans to legal entities 
- change in GDP, 6 months lag; 
- RO BOR 3M rate, 12 months lag. 

To compute the cumulative probability of default curve (cPD) by incorporating the current forecasts 
for the macroeconomic indicators, the following scenarios were used : 
- base scenario with a probability of 60% taking into account the GDP, average net salary and ROBOR 
3M rate as follows: 

- for GDP: estimates as per WORLD BANK Global Economic Prospects January 2023, for 2023 
economic growth of 2,6% and economic growth of 4,2% in 2024; 

- an increase in the average net salary adjusted with inflation, in 2023 equal to the average 
growth in the last 10 years and in 2024 equal to 75% of the average growth in the last 10 years, 
respectively decrease of 0,18% in 2023 and increase of 2,17% in 2024; 

- ROBOR 3M rate - internai forecast provided by the Strategy and Macroeconomic Analysis 
Department. 
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- downside scenario with a probability of 30% taking into account the GDP, average net salary and 
ROBOR 3M rate as follows: 

- for GDP, the base scenario shifted downwards by 0.5 standard deviations (based on GDP 
evolution between 2005-2022), for 2023 economic growth of 0,73% and economic growth of 2,33% 

in 2024; 

- an increase in the average net salary adjusted with inflation, in 2023 75% of the average growth 
in the last 10 years andin 2024 equal to the minimum growth in the last 10 years, respectively decrease 
of 3,50% in 2023 and decrease of 2,42% in 2024; 

- ROBOR 3M rate - the base scenario shifted upwards by the uncertainty interval of the 
inflation forecast. 
- upside scenario with a probability of 10% taking into account the GDP, average net salary and 
ROBOR 3M rate as follows: 

- for GDP, the base scenario shifted upwards by 0.25 standard deviations (based on GDP 
evolution between 2005-2022), for 2023 economic growth of 3,53% and economic growth of 5,13% in 
2024; 

- an increase in the average net salary adjusted with inflation - annual growth equal to the 
average growth in the last 10 years, respectively increase of 0,94% in 2023 and increase of 6,88% in 
2024; 

- ROBOR 3M rate - the base scenario shifted downwards by the uncertainty interval of the 
inflation forecast. 
In addition to the inherent estimation uncertainty, the economic effects of the pandemic have caused 
increased uncertainties, in particular, regarding macroeconomic forecasts and their probabilities of 
occurrence, and therefore actual results may differ materially from those estimated. The Bank believes 
that these forecasts represent the best estimate of possible results. 
Sensitivity analysis of adjustments for expected losses determined by changes in macroeconomic 
factors as at 31.12.2022 (RON thousand): 

Base Upside 
scenario scenario 

Balance sheet exposure Actual 100% 100% 

Individuals 9,595,665 9,595,665 9,595,665 
Corporate entities 21,619,858 21,619,858 21,619,858 
Total 31,215,523 31,215,523 31,215,523 

Base Upside 
Adjustments for expected scenario scenario 
creditlosses Actual 100% 100% 

Individuals 139,009 138,375 137,604 
Legal entities 1,497,478 1,490,212 1,477,474 
Total 1,636,487 1,628,587 1,615,078 
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scenario 

100% 

9,595,665 
21,619,858 

31,215,523 
Downside 

scenario 
100% 

140,437 
1,516,354 

1,656,791 
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Considering the perspective of the economic situation in the context of the increase in energy / gas 
prices, as well as the difficulties in the supply / distribution chain, the Bank made some adjustments to 
the model for estimating expected credit losses, namely the application of some post-model 
coefficients for adjusting expected credit losses for loans classified in S2 depending on the industry 
risk. 
The bank used the following post model adjustment coefficients of expected credit losses for exposures 
classified S2: 

Homogenous nortfolio ECL adjustment 

coefficient S2 

CSS (Legal entities Services) 2.52 

CIN (Legal entities Industry) 2.25 

CCO (Legal entities Construction) 2.25 

CCM (Legal entities Commerce) 2.25 

CAG (Legal entities Agriculture) 2.25 

CAP (Public local admînîstratîons) 2.25 

The quantîtatîve effect of the post model adjustment coefficients was an încrease in expected loss 
adjustments by approx. RON 152.65 millîon. 

For îndividuals, the expectations of interest rate increases were taken into account in the classîfication 
of performîng exposures. The impact of a 3 pp încrease în benchmark rates was reflected in the 
încrease in the levei of indebtedness. A significant increase in credit risk is expected when: 

• for unsecured loans, the monthly payment instalment increases by more than RON 150; 
• for secured loans granted as of the beginning of 2019, the monthly payment instalment 

increases by more than RON 500 and the levei of indebtedness exceeds 60%. 

Based on these criteria, a total exposure of RON 544.69 million was classified în Stage 2 as at 
30.06.2022, with an increase in adjustments for expected losses of approx. RON 3. 72 million. As at 
31.12.2022 the total exposure decreased to RON 523.38 million, of which RON 1.63 millîon migrated 
to Stage 3. 
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Residential mortgage lending 

The tables below classify credit exposures from mortgage loans and advances to retail customers, 
(including the consumer loans secured by mortgage) by ranges of loan-to-value (LTV) ratio. L1V is 
calculated as the ratio of the gross amount of the Ioan - or the amount committed for Ioan 
commitments - to the value of the collateral. The gross amounts exclude any expected credit loss. The 
value of the collateral excludes any adjustments for obtaining and selling the collateral. The value of 
the collateral for residential mortgage loans is the fair value that is determined at least once every 
three years based on evaluation reports. 
The Group/Bank's ratio between loans and related real estate guarantees Ooan-to-value-LTV) at 31 

December 2023: 

L1V Balance sheet exposure Off balance sheet exposure 

<60% 2,471,339 1,600 

61-80% 2,850,668 2,729 

81-100% 1,568,497 1,903 

101-120% 31,182 179 

121-140% 4,253 112 

> 140% 23,647 1,354 

Total 6,949,587 7,876 

The Group/Bank's ratio between loans and related real estate guarantees Ooan-to-value-LTV) at 31 

December 2022: 

L1V Balance sheet exposure Off balance sheet exposure 

<60% 2,111,265 1,698 

61-80% 3,069,418 3,132 
81-100% 2,133,940 2,117 

101-120% 39,980 216 

121-140% 5,480 636 

> 140% ~ 4M 
Total z.382.33z ~ 

The Group holds collaterals for loans and advances granted to clients in the form of collateral deposits, 
mortgages over property, guarantees and other pledges over equipment or future collections. Fair 
value estimates take into account the value of the guarantee assessed as at the date of the Ioan and 
subsequently updated in accordance with the Group's internai policy. Incase of collective expected 
credit loss assessment, the model accounts for recovery rates which are estimated based on historical 
recovery information. Generally, no guarantees are used for loans and advances granted to banks. 
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Loans with renegotiated terms 

Restructuring activities include agreements regarding postponed payments and approved externai 
management plans. The decision regarding the restructuring of credit facilities is based on the 
economic and financial analysis of corporate clients (based on the }atest financial information held), 
and on the analysis of future payments or on the repayment capacity of the individuals (based on 
documents reflecting net realised income). 

Restructuring policies and practices are based on ratios or criteria which, in the opm10n of 
management, indicate the probability that payments continue in the future. These policies are 
reviewed continuously. Specialised departments analyse and approve, according to internai 
regulations the restructuring, the proposals submitted by the Bank units and then send them for 
approval to the Restructuring Committee/Head Quarter Credit Committee depending upon Bank's 
exposure to the client/ group of connected clients. Subsequent to restructuring, the Bank regularly 
monitors the restructured loans on a case by case basis. 

As at 31 December 2023, the gross carrying amount of restructured loans is RON 1,987,506 thousand 
(31 December 2022: RON 1,729,157 thousand), out ofwhich RON 1, 215.113 thousand loans neither 
past due nor impaired (31 December 2022: RON 1,011,735 thousand). 

Repossessed collaterals 
During 2023, the Group did not took over property in its patrimony on the basis of Law no. 77/2016 

on the payment of some buildings in order to settle the obligations assumed by credits (during 2022, 

the Group took over property in the amount of RON 99 thousand). 

The Group has recognised as inventozy as at 31 December 2022 in amount of RON 3,859 thousand 
(31 December 2021: RON 3,760 thousand) assets taken into patrimony or from the execution of 
collaterals from loans granted to clients. 

Invesbnent securities 

The Investment securities included in the Bank's portfolio are financial assets at fair value through 
other comprehensive income and financial assets measured at amortized cost (government bonds 
and treasuzy bills) and have a low credit risk. 
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The rating for Romania's long term debt confirmed by Fitch in 2024 in local currency is "BBB-", with 
a stable outlook, the F3 qualification was confirmed for debts on short term and also the country 
rating "BBB+". 

Also the rating for Romania's long term debt confirmed by Fitch in 2023 in local currency is "BBB-", 
with a stable outlook, the F3 qualification was confirmed for debts on short term and also the country 
rating "BBB+". 

Each of the rating agencies use different rating scales and the "BBB-" rating with a stable outlook is 
assigned by Fitch and also by S&P and the "Baa3" rating with a stable outlook is assigned by Moody's. 
According to interna} procedures, the short term and long term ratings provided by the three agencies 
in the report are utilised in the sense that, based on them, the analysed credit institutions are 
classified according to their risk classes assigned by the Bank. 

Loans and advances to banks 

The exposure related to loans and advances to banks is neither past due, nor impaired. 

The Group is making short term deposits with banks in the day to day activity in order to manage the 
cash surplus. The quality of the counterparties is regularly assessed in order to mitigate the credit 
risk and the management of the Bank approves the exposure limits for each counterparty. 

For the determination of exposure limits to credit institutions, their financial information (in the case 
of Romanian banks) and ratings issued by international rating agencies, in conjunction with financial 
information (in the case of credit institutions, foreign legal entities and Romanian legal entities with 
foreign parent banks), is used, leading to risk classes allocation. 

The credit institutions (with their respective ratings) with which the Bank has current accounts, 
deposits and loans and advances are the following: 
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Loans and advances to banks and public institutions - 31December 31December 

neither past due not impaired 2023 2022 

Total balance Total balance 

Current account INGBank 7,788 196,785 
due from other Barclays Bank 16,677 4,890 
banks Commerzbank 16,095 18,605 

Societe Generale, Paris 480,136 342,912 

State Treasury 1,541 99 

PKO Bank Polski, Varsovia 568 18 

OTP Bank Budapesta 898 605 

ING Bank-Olanda 57,363 

CITIBANKNY 41,406 

Other 15,696 7,909 
Deposits due from DEUTSCHE BANK AG 248,937 
otherbanks Barclays Bank 48,839 47,608 

TECHVENTURESBANKSA 9,953 

Credit Europe Bank NV 272,817 

State Treasury 5,506,366 5,005,164 

SMBC BANK EU AG, FRANKFURT 647,087 

PATRIABANK 79,619 

BCR 54,629 

BRD 173,819 

Banca Transilvania SA 247,858 

GARANTIBANK 49,530 

IDEABANK 24,803 
Collateral deposits HSBC Bank London 612 601 
due from other COMMERZBANK 1 
banks JP Morgan Securities 2,811 13,868 

JP MORGAN FRANKFURT 3,391 

BCR 4,263 

CITIBANK 97 7,979 

INGBank 2,228 

Loans and advances 
tobanks EXIM BANCA ROMANEASCA 321,141 388,907 
Reverse repo 

Banca Transilvania SA 51,831 
transactions 

Total loans and advances to banks and public institutions 8,305,674 6,119,076 

Rating Rating 

31December 31December 

2023 2022 

ShortLLong ShortLLong 

term term 

A-1/A+ A-1/A+ 

F1/A+ FI/A+ 

P-1/A1 P-1/A1 

P-1/A1 P-1/A1 

BBB-/A-3 BBB-/A-3 

P-1/A2 P-1/A2 

P-2/Baa1 P-2/Baal 

F1+/AA-

F1/A+ 

without rating without rating 

F2/A-

FI/A+ F1/A+ 

without rating 

B/BB-

BBB-/A-3 BBB-/A-3 

F1/A- F2/BBB 

without rating without rating 

F2/BBB+ 

F2/BBB+ 

B/BB+ B/BB+ 

B/BB- B/BB-

without rating without rating 

F1+/AA- F1+/AA-

P-1/A1 P-1/A1 

F1+/AA F1+/AA 

F1/AA 

F2/BBB+ F2/BBB+ 

F1/A+ F1/A+ 

F1+/AA- F1+/AA-

without rating without rating 

B/BB+ B/BB+ 

As at 31 December 2023, the amounts presented in the financial position loans and advances to banks 
and public institutions of accruals amounted of RON 8,305,674Jhousand (31 December 2022: RON 
6,119,076Jhousand). 
If the institutions have no externai rating, the bank use his internai rating scale for asses the credit 
risk, considering a levei of PD between 0.03% and 7.72%. 
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The credit institutions (with their respective ratings) with which the Group has current accounts, 
deposits and loans and advances are the following: 

Loans and advances to banks and public institutions - 31December 31 December 

neither past due not impaired 2023 2022 

Total balance Total balance 

Current account INGBank 7,788 196,785 
due from other Barclays Bank 16,677 4,890 
banks Commerzbank 16,095 18,605 

Societe Generale, Paris 480,136 342,912 

State Treasury 1,541 99 

PKO Bank Polski, Varsovia 568 18 

OTP Bank Budapesta 898 605 

ING Bank-Olanda 57,363 

CITIBANKNY 41,406 

Other 15,956 7,909 
Deposits due from DEUTSCHE BANK AG 248,937 
otherbanks Barclays Bank 48,839 47,608 

TECHVENTURESBANKSA 9,953 

Credit Europe Bank NV 272,817 

State Treasury 5,506,366 5,005,164 

SMBC BANK EU AG, FRANKFURT 647,087 

PATRIABANK 79,619 

BCR 54,629 

BRD 201,207 

Banca Transilvania SA 254,197 

GARANT! BANK 49,530 

IDEABANK 24,803 
Collateral deposits HSBC Bank London 612 601 
due from other COMMERZBANK 

banks JP Morgan Securities 2,811 13,868 

JP MORGAN FRANKFURT 3,391 

BCR 4,263 

CITIBANK 97 7,979 
INGBank 2,228 

Loans and advances 
tobanks EXIM BANCA ROMANEASCA 321,141 388,907 
Reverse repo 

Banca Transilvania SA 51,831 transactions 

Total loans and advances to banks and public institutions 8,339,662 6,119,07:6 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Rating Rating 

31December 31December 

2023 2022 

ShortlLong ShortlLong 

term term 

A-1/A+ A-1/A+ 

F1/A+ F1/A+ 

P-1/A1 P-1/A1 

P-1/A1 P-1/A1 

BBB-/A-3 BBB-/A-3 

P-1/A2 P-1/A2 

P-2/Baa1 P-2/Baal 

F1+/AA-

F1/A+ 

without rating without rating 

F2/A-

F1/A+ F1/A+ 

without rating 

B/BB-

BBB-/A-3 BBB-/A-3 

F1/A- F2/BBB 

without rating without rating 

F2/BBB+ 

F2/BBB+ 

B/BB+ B/BB+ 

B/BB- B/BB-

without rating without rating 

F1+/AA- F1+/AA-

P-1/A1 P-1/A1 

F1+/AA F1+/AA 

F1/AA 

F2/BBB+ F2/BBB+ 

F1/A+ F1/A+ 

F1+/AA- F1+/AA-

without rating without rating 

B/BB+ B/BB+ 

This version of the financial statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedence over this 
translation. 



CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

c) Market risk 

Market risk is the present or future risk of recording losses related to balance and off-balance sheet 
due to adverse movements in market price (such as: stock prices) of interest rates and foreign 
exchange rates. 

Market risk has two major components respectively price risk and currency risk. 

Price risk is the risk of significant losses from the sale of the government bond portfolio (FVfOCI­
Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive lncome), and currency risk is the risk of losses due to 
exchanges rates fluctuations. 

The Group assesses market risk in terms of elements which define it, such as: the share of government 
securities investments in the total placements, the volume of loans to non-banks customers, the 
volume of operations in foreign currency, the important position which the Bank holds on the market 
deposits towards population availability in conjunction with the analysis of endogenous and 
exogenous factors. 

For the assessment of market risk, starting with April 2022, the Bank holds and monitors on a daily 
basis domestic government securities within a small trading book portfolio (the maximum limit is 
RON 200 million equivalent, out of which maximum RON 25 million equivalent for maturities above 
10 years, maximum RON 60 million equivalent for maturities between [5-10) years and maximum 
RON 75 million equiv. for maturities between [2-5) years). 

The positions held to trade are represented by the positions of short-term resale and/or with the 
intention of bene-fiting from differences on short-term, real or expected, regarding the buying and 
selling prices or as a resuit of other price changes or interest rate. 

The strategy in relation to market risk management policy is to have a portfolio with low sensitivity 
to changes in government securities prices, changes in VaR (Value at Risk) indicator and exchange 
rate and achieve the objectives set through the risk profile. These are mainly achieved by monitoring 
the price of government securities on the market as indicator of price risk as well as by determination 
and monitoring the VaR indicator and of foreign exchange position of the Bank, as indicators of the 
currency risk. 

The implementation of the policy and the achievement of the market risk management objectives 
shall be achieved by constantly monitoring: 

• The key indicators underlying the determination of the risk profile, respectively "the levei of 
hypothetical loss that would resuit from the immediate sale of the portfolio of government 
securities classified as financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income -FVfOCI" for price risk and "Total net foreign exchange position" for currency risk; 

• Levei II indicators, monitored daily, respectively trading book position for government 
securities for price risk and indicators for currency risk represented by the individual net 
currency position and currency portfolio risk measurement indicator - Value at Risk (VaR) 
methodology. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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The level of risk limits accepted by the Group for the key indica tors, as well as the ranges taken into 
account in the assessment of their values, have been determined in the light of the Bank's market risk 
policy, assessed as significant risk, in conjunction with the limits imposed by the BNR/EBA 
regulations, with historical trends in the values of these indicators, the size and structure of the assets 
and liabilities taken into account in their determination, the results of the various forecasts made, 
budgetary provisions, etc. 

By monitoring the price risk, the Group intends to reduce the loss which would record it in case of 
hypothetical immediate sale of the entire portfolio of government securities classified as "financial 
assets measured at fair value through other items of comprehensive income", so that the impact of 
the loss is minimal vis-a-vis honouring other obligations. 

By monitoring foreign exchange risk, the Bank intends to achieve an optimal correlation portfolio 
between the value of foreign exchange-denominated assets and liabilities and the compensation of 
foreign exchange trading, and respectively, to maintain a balance between long and short net open 
positions so that both volatility impact of the exchange rate, as well as maximum probable loss tobe 
recorded, to be minimal. 

Also, for the risk measurement of currency portfolio, the Group uses the methodology for 
determining VaR (Value-at-Risk), through which the Bank wishes the classification in the maximum 
loss likely to be recorded in total, within a certain period of time and with a certain probability of 
confidence. Interna! regulations relating to the market risk are presented for approval to the Risk 
Management Committee. 

The Group's and Bank's financial assets and liabilities held in RON andin foreign currencies at 
31 December 2023 can be analysed as follows: 

Group 
RON EUR Others 

Balance sheet financial assets 
Total 

Cash and balance at Central Bank 9,752,143 2,092,671 127,007 11,971,822 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 71,457 
Loans and advances to banks and public 

5,948,090 2,258,239 
institutions 

Financial assets measured at fair value through 
7,788,552 12,658,725 

other comprehensive income 
Investments in debt instruments at amortized cost 7,469,494 2,061,057 
Loans and advances to customers 23,816,958 7,675,355 
Other financial assets zs,zz6 -9.i14Z 
Total financial assets 54,922,471 26,zss,zgs 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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21,141 92,598 

133,333 8,339,662 

332,618 20,779,895 

59,351 9,589,902 

132,237 31,624,550 
-1.,.M8 86,671 

806,834 82,485,100 
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

RON EUR Others Total 
Derivative financial assets 
N otional am o unt of derivatives 
- SWAP per exchange rate 

215,494 1,293,396 308,815 1,817,705 

Total derivative assets 215.494 1.293.396 308.815 1.817.705 

RON EUR Others Total 
Balance sheet financial liabilities 
Derivatives 3,872 3,872 
Deposits from banks 1,498,031 164,203 871 1,663,105 
Deposits from customers 46,133,337 25,469,034 1,141,706 72,744,078 
Other borrowed funds 43,680 135,375 179,055 
Debt securities issued 174,729 1,962,527 2,137,255 
Subordinated liabilities 1,434,229 1,434,229 
Other financial liabilities 343,423 11.214 _&753 358,391 

Total financial liabilities 49,627.429 27,742,354 1,150.203 79,519.986 

RON EUR Others Total 
Derivative financial liabilities 
Notional amount of derivatives - 1,294,616 525,815 1,820,431 
SWAP per exchange rate 
Total derivative liabilities 1,294,616 525,815 1,820.431 

On balance sheet net financial 5,295.041 (986,559) (343,369) 3,965,113 
assets/ (liabilities) 

Derivative financial assets/ (1,ozg,122) z6z,s81 308,815 (2,726) 
(liabilities) 

RON EUR Others Total 
Letters of guarantee issued for 1,895,744 228,318 ~ 2,122,860 
customers 
Undrawn Ioan commitments 3,486,278 898,042 59,427 4,347.042 

The Group's and Bank's financial assets and liabilities held in RON andin foreign currencies at 
31 December 2022 can be analysed as follows: 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Balance sheet financial assets 
Cash and balance at central bank 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss 
Loans and advances to banks 
Financial assets measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income 
Investments in debt instruments at 
amortized cost 
Loans and advances to customers 
Other financial assets 
Total financial assets 

Group 
RON 

6,289 

5,459,145 

8,279,716 

2,744,084 

22,279,851 

~ 
45,931.922 

RON 

EUR 

526,857 

1,885,709 

1,982,404 

6,764,671 
8,666 

14,064,597 
EUR 

1,088,428 

Other 

125,092 

16,341 

133,947 

203,829 

44,455 

198,210 

627 

721,501 
Other 

147,953 

Total 

10,104,087 

6,119,331 

10,369,254 

4,770,943 

29,242,809 
88,966 

60,718.020 
Total 

Derivative financial assets 
N otional amount of derivatives 
- SWAP per exchange rate 
Total derivative assets - 1,088,428 147,953 1.236.381 

Total 
Balance sheet financial liabilities 
Derivatives 
Deposits from banks 
Deposits from customers 
Other borrowed funds 
Debt securities issued 
Subordinated liabilities 
Other financial liabilities 
Total financial liabilities 

Derivative financial liabilities 
Notional amount of derivatives 
- SWAP per exchange rate 
Total derivative liabilities 
On balance sheet net financial 
assets/(liabilities) 
Derivative financial assets/ 
(liabilities) 

Letters of guarantee issued for customers 
Undrawn Ioan commitments 

RON EUR Other 

24,626 310 14 24,950 
2,697,460 18 771 2,698,249 

36,702,865 14,818,363 911,563 52,432,793 

46,318 231,924 278,242 

174,529 479,107 653,636 
1,439,628 1,439,628 

146,295 --3,-434 -1,535 151,264 

41,231,721 15,533,156 913,885 57,678,762 
RON EUR Other Total 

1,119,755 148,422 1,268,177 

1,119,755 148,422 ---- 1.268.177 

3,039,258 4,700,201 (1,468,559) (192,384) 

(1,119.755) 940,006 147,953 (31,796) 

RON EUR Other Total 
1,787,813 167,224 3,341 1,958,378 

3,486,278 898,042 59,427 4,443,747 
The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 
Bank 

RON 
Balance sheet financial assets 
Cash and balance at Central Bank 9,752,138 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 71,457 

Loans and advances to banks and public institutions 5,914,102 

Financial assets held at historical cost 5,000 

Financial assets measured at fair value through other 
7,788,552 

comprehensive income 
Investments in debt instruments at amortized cost 7,455,739 
Loans and advances to customers 23,816,958 

Other financial assets 68,945 
Total financial assets 54,872.891 

RON EUR 
Derivative financial assets 
Notional amount of derivatives 

EUR Others Total 

2,092,671 127,007 11,971,816 

21,141 92,598 

2,258,239 133,333 8,305,674 

5,000 

12,658,725 332,618 20,779,895 

2,061,057 59,351 9,576,147 

7,675,355 132,237 31,624,550 

-9.i142 ~ z9,840 

26,z55,z94 806,835 82.435.520 
Others Total 

- SWAP per exchange rate 
215,494 1,293,396 308,815 1,817,705 

Total derivative assets 215.494 1,293.396 
RON EUR 

Balance sheet financial liabilities 
Derivatives 
Deposits from banks 1,498,031 164,203 
Deposits from customers 46,134,000 25,469,100 
Other borrowed funds 43,680 135,375 
Debt securities issued 174,728 1,962,527 
Subordinated liabilities 1,434,229 
Other financial liabilities 315,018 11,214 

Total financial liabilities 49.599.686 2z,z42.419 

RON EUR 
Derivative financial liabilities 
N otional amount of derivatives - SWAP per 

525,815 
exchange rate 1,294,616 
Total derivative liabilities 1.294.616 525.815 
On balance sheet net financial 5,273.205 (986,625) 
assets/ (liabilities) 
Derivative financial assets/ (1,079.122) z6z.581 
(liabilities) 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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308,815 1.81:z,:205 
Others Total 

3,872 3,872 

871 1,663,105 

1,141,706 72,744,806 

179,055 
2,137,255 
1,434,229 

_&753 329.985 

1,150.202 z8.492.3oz 

Others Total 

1,820,431 

1,820.431 

(343.36z) 3,943.213 

308,815 (2.726) 
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Letters of guarantee issued for customers 
Undrawn Ioan commitments 

RON 

1,895,744 
3,486,278 

EUR 
228,318 

898,042 

Others 

3,798 

59,427 

Total 
2,127,860 

4,347,042 

The financial assets and liabilities held in RON and in foreign currencies at 31 December 2022 can 
be analysed as follows: 

Balance sheet financial assets 
Cash and balance at central bank 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss 
Loans and advances to banks 

Financial assets measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income 
Investments in debt instruments at 
amortized cost 
Loans and advances to customers 
Other financial assets 
Total financial assets 

Derivative financial assets 
N otional amount of derivatives 
- SWAP per exchange rate 
Total derivative assets 

Balance sheet financial liabilities 
Derivatives 
Deposits from banks 
Deposits from customers 
Other borrowed funds 
Debt securities issued 
Subordinated liabilities 
Other financial liabilities 
Total financial liabilities 

Derivative financial liabilities 
N otional amount of derivatives 
- SWAP per exchange rate 
Total derivative liabilities 

Bank 
RON 

6,289 

5,459,145 

8,279,716 

2,744,084 

22,279,851 

29&23 
45,931.922 

RON 

EUR 

2,895,831 

526,857 

1,885,709 

1,982,404 

6,764,671 
8,666 

14,064,597 

EUR 

1,088,428 

Other 

125,092 

16,341 

133,947 

203,829 

44,455 

198,210 

627 

721,501 

Other 

147,953 

- 1,088,428 147,953 
RON EUR Other 

24,626 

2,697,460 

36,702,865 

46,318 

174,529 
1,439,628 

146,295 
41,231,721 

RON 

1,119,755 

1,119,755 

310 14 
18 771 

14,818,363 911,563 

231,924 

479,107 

-3A3.4 ...L535 

15,533.156 913,885 
EUR Other 

148,422 

14 8 ,422 ----

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 fonn an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Total 

10,104,087 

22,630 

6,119,331 

10,369,254 

4,770,943 

29,242,809 

88,966 

60.118 .020 

Total 

1,236,381 

1.236.381 
Total 

24,950 
2,698,249 

52,432,793 
278,242 

653,636 

1,439,628 

151,264 

57,678.762 
Total 

1,268,177 

1,268.177 
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 
On balance sheet net financial 4,zoo.201 (1,468.559) 
assets/ (liabilities) 

Derivative financial assets/ 
(liabilities) (1,119.755) 940,006 

RON EUR 
Letters of guarantee issued for customers 1,787,813 167,224 
Undrawn Ioan commitments 3,486,278 898,042 

(192,384) 3,039,258 

147.953 (31,'796) 

Other Total 
3,341 1,958,378 

59,427 4,443,747 

The main currency held by the Bank is EUR. The open currency positions represent a source of 
currency risk. 
d) Interest rate risk other than trading portfolio 

Interest rate risk is the current or future risk that profit and equity are negatively affected by adverse 
changes in interest rates. 

Starting with April 2022 the assessment of interest rate risk takes into account that the Bank carries 
aut and monitors on a daily basis trading book activity, with a small trading book portfolio having a 
ceiling of RON 200 million equivalent for domestic government securities. 

The interest rate risk management is identified, quantified, monitor, managed and reported for all 
Bank's activities with potentîal înterest rate movements at the banking book levei (for actîvities other 
than tradîng book). 

Also, startîng with May 2022, the Bank re-acquîred the status of primary dealer of government 
securities. 

The maîn source of înterest rate risk îs the correlation between the structure of the Bank's asset 
portfolio and the type of înterest rate (taking into account the maturity date - în the case of fixed 
interest rates instruments - and the bullet maturity and/ or principal and interest flows for fixed rate 
current loans) and the date of price updating - în the case of variable interest rates). 

The interest rate risk management policy îs to optimize the gap between sensitive assets and 
liabilities regarding interest rate movements, both overall and per various time frames, so that the 
impact of interest rate changes on net interest income îs minimal. 

The Bank aims to properly manage assets and liabilities bearing interest as well as to promote its 
products, in order to achieve a portfolio with low sensitivity to changes în înterest rates and achîeve 
the targets set through the risk profile. 

The risk profile assumed for interest rate risk is managed by the limitations set for the key indicators 
based on the risk appetite that the Bank assumes for business contînuity purposes. 
The key îndicators determined by the Bank, continuously monitored and underlying the 
determination of the interest rate risk profile are: 

• the potential change în economic value due to changes în interest rate levels based on the 
standardîzed method; 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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• relative GAP per interest rate (calculated în RON equivalent per maturicy band as a percentage 
between the absolute GAP on interest rate and total interest-bearing assets - principal 
accounts); 

• the difference between the average active interest rate în foreign currency loans granted to 
individuals and corporate entities and the cost of funds plus the risk margin. 

The levei of risk limits accepted by the Group for the key indicators, as well as the ranges taken into 
account in the assessment of their values, have been determined in the light of the Bank's strategy 
for interest rate risk, assessed as significant risk, in conjunction with the limits provisioned by the 
NBR/EBA regulations, with historical trends in the values of these indicators, the size and structure 
of the assets and liabilities taken into account in their determination, the results of the various 
forecasts made, budgetacy provisions, etc .. 

The Group assesses the compliance with the interest rate risk profile assumed according to the 
appetite for interest rate risk; the levei of risk is quantified on the basis of a system of scoring key 
indicators related to interest rate risk according to their levels and the weightings allocated according 
to the importance of the indicators on the basis of historical analysis and professional expertise. 

Also, in order to prevent situations of non-compliance with internai limitations, the Bank monitors 
the dynamic evolution of the Group's assets and liabilities that are sensitive to interest rate 
movements, performs forecasts, projections and simulations, "stress testing" type scenarios. 

Through its risk management policy, the Group continuously monitors and controls the levei ofkey 
indicators for interest rate risk în relation to appetite for risk, the Group aims to establish a moderate 
interest rate risk profile as the maximum allowed, profile in which it fit during 2023. 

For the management of interest rate risk, în addition to the key indica tors determining the interest 
rate risk profile, the Group shall monitor on a monthly / quarterly basis the following levei II 
indicators, namely: 

• EVE (Economic Value of Equicy) according to six standardized shock scenarios for the 
detection of extreme values, according to NBR/ EBA regulations in force; 

• The break-even threshold levei in conjunction with the average interest gap; 

• The negative resuit obtained from the forecasts to capture the effect of the potential change of 
interest rates over net gains from interests. 

Internai regulations on interest rate risk other than trading portfolio are presented for approval to 
the Risk Management Committee. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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The following table shows the interest rates per annum obtained or offered by the Group and the 
Bank for its interest-bearing assets and liabilities during financial year 2023: 

RON EUR 
Range Range 

Min Max Min Max 
Assets 
Cash and balance at Central Bank 0.69 0.82 0.02 0.11 

Investments with N ational Bank of Ro mania 6.00 6.oo 
Investments with other banks 6.00 6.75 1.70 4.10 
Treasury certificates 5.99 6.94 2.75 3.84 
Loans and advances to customers (*) 5.96 23.34 5.00 12.70 
Investment securities 5.95 8.05 3.65 6.81 
Liabilities 
Deposits from banks 5.75 6.90 1.60 3.91 

Deposits from customers - 12.80 4.75 
NBR refinancing loans 8.00 8.oo 

Borrowings from banks and other financial institutions 7.74 8.27 0.35 
Debt securities issued 9.00 9.00 7.50 7.50 
Subordinated liabilities 9.84 11.23 

(*) During the year 2023, in respect to credit cards, the Bank has practiced zero interest rate for 
payments of the interest within 59 days, exclusively for transactions at merchants (transactions non 
rates and/ or rates posted on their due account), with the condition of the full payment of the credit 
limit used for the specific trading cycle. 

The following table shows the interest rates per annum obtained or offered by the Group and the 
Bank for its interest-bearing assets and liabilities during financial year 2022: 

RON EUR 
Range Range 

Assets Min Max Min 
Cash and balance at Central Bank 0.13 0.70 
Investments with N ational Bank of Ro mania 2.00 5.75 
Investments with other banks 1.00 7.20 (0.63) 
Treasury certificates 6.90 8.04 2.65 
Loans and advances to customers (*) 1.95 . 23.57 2.25 
Investment securities 3.88 9.93 0.18 
Liabilities 
Deposits from banks 0.95 7.54 (0.55) 
Deposits from customers - 10.00 

NBR refinancing loans 3.50 4.75 
Borrowings from banks and other financial institutions 4.41 8.75 -
Debt securities issued 9.00 
Subordinated liabilities 6.29 11.23 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Max 
0.02 

1.95 
2.90 

9.32 

4.27 

1.50 
2.50 

0.349 
7.50 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 
The following table shows the Group's and the Bank's interest re-pricing analysis as at 31 December 
2023 with financial assets and liabilities categorised by the earlier of the re-pricing or contractual 
maturity date. 

Group 

tmonth 3months 1year-
< tmonth 3 months -1 year 5 years > 5years 

Financial assets 
Cash and balances with 
Central Bank 11,971,822 

Financial derivatives 

Loans and advances to banks 
and public institutions 7,304,008 20,235 601 369,782 

Loans and advances 
to customers 8,577,331 526,801 15,493,463 6,285,150 427,318 
Financial assets held for tradin 
and measured at fair value 31,065 19,904 20,488 
through profit and loss 
Financial assets mandatorily a1 
fair value through profit or los~ 
Financial assets at fair value 
through other comprehensive 612,989 3,622,474 10,027,277 5,336,855 1,148,147 
income 

Investments in debt 

instruments at amortized cost 
8 403,612 5,577,500 3,608,782 

Other financial assets 

Total financial assets 28,466.150 4,169.518 25.956.018 17.589.191 5,204.735 

Financial liabilities 
Financial derivatives 

Deposits from banks 1,657,824 5,238 

Deposits from customers 25,781,144 12,694,419 18,782,584 2,829,554 5,536,517 
Subordinated borrowing 1,434,229 
Borrowings from banks and 

25,158 2,726 82,358 68,813 other financial institutions 

Debt securities issued 2,137,255 
Lease liabilities 2,879 5,498 23,584 53,060 13,702 

Other financial liabilities 

Total financial liabilities 28,901,234 12,702,643 18,893,764 5,088,682 5,550,219 
Interest rate gap (435,084) (8,533,125) 7,062,254 12,500,509 (345,484) 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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·Non 
interest 
bearing 

-

1,294 

645,035 (*) 

314,487 (**) 

19,847 

32,153 

86,671 

1,099.487 

3,872 

43 
7,119,860(***) 

358,391 

7,482,166 
(6,382,679) 

This version of the financial statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedence over this 
translation. 

Total 

11,971,822 

1,294 

8,339,661 

31,624,550 

71,457 

19,847 

20,779,895 

9,589,902 

86,671 

82,485.099 

3,872 

1,663,105 

72,744,078 

1,434,229 

179,055 

2,137,255 

98,723 

358,391 

78,618,708 

3,866,391 



CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31. DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

Bank 

tmonth 3months 1year-
< tmonth 3months - tyear svears 

Financial assets 
Cash and balances with 
Central Bank 11,971,816 

Financial derivatives 

Loans and advances to banks 
and public institutions 7,290,857 369,782 

Loans and advances 
to customers 8,577,331 526,801 15,493,463 6,285,150 
Financial assets held for tradin 
and measured at fair value 31,065 19,904 
through profit and loss 
Financial assets mandatorily a1 
fair value through profit or losf 
Financial assets at fair value 
through other comprehensive 612,989 3,622,474 10,027,277 5,336,855 
income 

Investments in debt 

instruments at amortized cost 
389,685 5,577,500 

Financial assets held at 

historical cost 

Other financial assets 

Total financial assets 28,452,993 4,149,275 25,941,670 17,589,191 

Financial liabilities 
Financial derivatives 

Deposits from banks 1,657,824 5,238 

Deposits from customers 25,781,270 12,695,021 18,782,584 2,829,554 

Subordinated borrowing 1,434,229 
Borrowings from banks and 

25,074 1,821 79,221 72,939 other financial institutions 

Debt securities issued 2,137,255 

Lease liabilities 2,879 5,498 23,584 53,060 

Other financial liabilities 

Total financial liabilities 28,901,276 12,702,340 18,890,627 5,092,808 
Interest rate gap (448,283) (8,553,065) 7,051,043 12,496,383 

C*J the amount comprises current accounts at other banks. 

Non 
interest 

> svears bearing 

1,294 

645,035 (*) 

427,318 314,487 (**) 

20,488 

19,847 

1,148,147 32,153 

3,608,782 

5,000 

79,840 

5,204,735 1,097,656 

3,872 

43 

5,536,517 7,119,860(***) 

13,702 

329,985 

5,550,219 7,453,760 
(345,484) (6,356,104) 

C**J the amount comprises exposures for corporate clients who entered insolvency or bankruptcy for which according to law 

nominal interest cannot be charged any longer. 

C***J the amount comprises current accounts, deposits and other discontinued savings products for which interest is not applied. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Total 

11,971,816 

1,294 

8,305,674 

31,624,550 

71,457 

19,847 

20,779,895 

9,576,147 

5,000 

79,840 

82,435,520 

3,872 

1,663,105 

72,744,806 

1,434,229 

179,055 

2,137,255 

98,723 

329,985 

78,591,030 

3,844,490 



CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 
The following table shows the Group's and the Bank's interest re-pricing analysis as at 31 December 
2022 with financial assets and liabilities categorised by the earlier of the re-pricing or contractual 
maturity date. 

Group 

1month 3months 1year-
< tmonth 3 months -1 year 5 years > syears 

Financial assets 

Cash and balances with 
Central Bank 10,069,054 

Loans and advances to banks anc 
public institutions 5,005,325 76,615 436,404 

Loans and advances 
to customers 6,985,365 461,615 14,784,840 6,523,780 293,289 
Financial assets held for trading 
and measured at fair value 263 6,026 
through profit and loss 
Financial assets mandatorily at 
fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets at fair value 

through other comprehensive 3,391 4,013,115 5,594,661 731,813 
income 

Investments in debt 
600,615 2,382,612 1,787,716 instruments at amortized cost 

Other financial assets 
Total financial assets 22,059,744 465,006 19,475,185 14193Z,z20 2,818,844 

Financial liabilities 
Financial derivatives 

Deposits from banks 2,693,063 5,168 

Deposits from customers 20,854,257 6,611,482 14,206,001 1,600,241 1,978,639 
Subordinated borrowing 1,439,628 
Borrowings from banks and 

16,882 8,575 97,836 other financial institutions 154,949 

Debt securities issued 653,636 
Lease liabilities 2,353 4,583 21,583 59,218 8,738 

Other financial liabilities 

23,566,555 8,064,268 
14,330,5 

2,468,044 1,987,377 Total financial liabilities 88 
Interest rate gap (1,506,811) (7,599,262) 5,144,597 12,469,676 831,467 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Non 
interest 
bearing 

600,732 (*) 

175,148 (**) 

16,341 

26,274 

79,497 
897,992 

24,950 

18 

7,180,109(***) 

89,799 

7,294,876 

(6,396,884) 

This version of the financial statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedence over this 
translation. 

Total 

- 10,069,054 

6,119,076 

29,224,037 

6,289 

16,341 

10,369,254 

4,770,943 

79,497 
60,654,491 

24,950 

2,698,249 

52,430,729 

1,439,628 

278,242 

653,636 

96,475 
89,799 

57,711,708 
2,942,783 



CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

Bank 

1month 3months 1year-
< 1month 3 months -1 year 5years 

Financial assets 

Cash and balances with 
Central Bank 10,069,054 

Loans and advances to banks anc 
public institutions 5,005,325 76,615 436,404 

Loans and advances 
to customers 6,985,365 461,615 14,784,840 6,523,780 
Financial assets held for trading 
and measured at fair value 263 
through profit and loss 
Financial assets mandatorily at 
fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets at fair value 

through other comprehensive 3,391 4,013,115 5,594,661 
income 

Investments în debt 
600,615 2,382,612 instruments at amortized cost 

Other financial assets 
Total financial assets 22,059,744 465,006 19,475,185 14,93z,z20 
Financial liabilities 
Financial derivatives 

Deposits from banks 2,693,063 5,168 

Deposits from customers 20,854,257 6,611,482 14,206,001 1,600,241 

Subordinated borrowing 1,439,628 
Borrowings from banks and 

16,882 8,575 97,836 other financial institutions 154,949 

Debt securities issued 653,636 
Lease liabilities 2,353 4,583 21,583 59,218 

Other financial liabilities 

23,566,555 8,064,268 
14,330,5 

2,468,044 
Total financial liabilities 88 
Interest rate gap (1,506,811) (7,599,262) 5,144,597 12,469,676 

C*l the amount comprises current accounts at other banks. 

Non 
interest 

> 5years bearing 

600,732 (*) 

293,289 175,148 (**) 

6,026 

16,341 

731,813 26,274 

1,787,716 

79,497 
2,818,844 897,992 

24,950 

18 

1,978,639 7,180,109(***) 

8,738 

89,799 

1,987,377 7,294,876 

831,467 (6,396,884) 

C**l the amount comprises exposures for corporate clients who entered insolvency or bankruptcy for which according to law 

nominal interest cannot he charged any longer. 

C***l the amount comprises current accounts, deposits and other discontinued savings products for which interest is not applied. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Total 

- 10,069,054 

6,119,076 

29,224,037 

6,289 

16,341 

10,369,254 

4,770,943 

79,497 
60,6541491 

24,950 

2,698,249 

52,430,729 

1,439,628 

278,242 

653,636 

96,475 
89,799 

57,711,708 
2,942,783 



CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 
Sensitivity analysis 
Interest Rate Sensitivity: the table below summarises the impact on the Bank's income statement and 
other comprehensive income resulting from a reasonably possible shift of the yield curve calculated 
using an interest rate gap model. Based on the fluctuation of the interest rate in the prior year and 
of other analysis made by the Bank, the potentially reasonable change is shown below. 
Foreign Exchange rates Sensitivity: the table below summarises the impact of a potentially 
reasonable change in the value of RON against foreign currencies on the Bank's income statement 
and other comprehensive income calculated by applying the change to monetacy financial 
instruments denominated in foreign currencies held by the Group and the Bank as at 31 December 
2023 and 31 December 2022. 

31 December 2023 

Interest rate +/-1% 

Foreign exchange 
5% appreciation / 
depreciation 
of functional CCY 

31 December 2022 

Interest rate+/- 1% 
Foreign exchange 

5% appreciation / 
Depreciation 
of functional CCY 

Sensitivity of Sensitivity of other 
Total sensitivity profit for the year comprehensive income 

-455,475/ 

+443,268 

-/+66,597 

+/-221,723 -233, 752/+221,546 

-/+66,597 

Sensitivity of Sensitivity of other 
Total sensitivity profit for the year comprehensive income 

-219,548/ +212,100 +/-25,872 -193,676/+186,227 

At 31 December 2023, if market interest rates had been 100 basis points higher / lower for RON and 
100 basis points higher/ lower for EUR and 100 basis points higher/ lower for USD, with all other 
variables held constant, profit for the year would have been RON 455,475 thousand (2022: RON 
219,548 thousand) lower and RON 443,268 thousand higher (2022: RON 212,100 thousand). The 
impact was calculated on the basis of monthly average balances with variable interest. 

The impact on the result would have been RON 233,752 thousand (2022: RON 193,6760 thousand) 
lower, respectively RON 221,546 thousand higher (2022: RON 186,227 thousand). The calculation 
was based on the market value at 31.12.2023 of debt instruments measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income. 

At 31 December 2023, if RON had strengthened/weakened by 500 basis points against relevant 
foreign currencies (all other variables held constant), profit for the year would have been RON 66,597 
thousand higher/ lower (2022: RON: 5,037 thousand higher/lower). Impact was calculated by 
applying a+/- 5% higher/lower exchange rate against the EUR and USD closing rate. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

e) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is an important part, along with other significant risks, to financial risk management 
system in terms as far as the Group operates in developed financial markets. 

Liquidity risk is the current or future risk that profit and equity are negatively affected by the inability 
of the Group to meet its obligations at maturity, given potential causes: insufficient liquid assets, the 
Bank's inability to liquidate assets, inability to obtain adequate funding. 
The Bank has adequate liquidity potential when, in the hypothetical unpredicted/critical situation, it 
is able to obtain the necessary funds (by borrowing additional resources, sale of assets, participation 
in REPO auctions organized by the central bank, etc.) immediately and at a reasonable cost, that will 
not affect the Group's profitability. 
The liquidity risk management policy is the transposition into internai regulation of the internai 
liquidity assessment requirements (ILAAP) and takes into account all interna! liquidity adequacy 
assessment processes as a EBA requirement. The policy and profile are an integral part of the 
regulations relating to the management ofliquidity risk, being developed in order to demonstrate the 
soundness, effectiveness and comprehensiveness of ILAAP (respectively the treatment of liquidity 
risk according to the scale and complexity of the Group's activities). 
The liquidity risk management policy comprises a decision-making structure for risk management, 
a model for the approach to funding and liquidity insurance, the accepted risk profile for liquidity 
risk exposure, and planning procedures after alternative action scenarios, including for 
contingencies. 
The internai risk liquidity adequacy assessment policy aims at integrating at least the following into 
the general liquidity management practice: the liquidity planning process, the maintenance of an 
appropriate level of liquidity to cover risks to which the Group is likely to be subject, the monitoring 
of liquidity risk indicators, the identification of vulnerabilities and the assessment of potential 
hazards in a timely manner, in conjunction with ongoing actions to prevent such situations, the 
process of reaching conclusions and decision-making, including under stressed conditions. 
Through liquidity risk management policy, part of a robust and specific framework for liquidity risk 
management, including the process of identification, assessment/ quantification, monitoring, 
mitigation and control, the Group shall pursue to have a balanced portfolio of assets and liabilities of 
the Group, to ensure optimum liquidity, an adequate management of assets and liabilities, necessary 
for the maintenance of an adequate liquidity, as well, including an optimal liquidity reserve and 
ensuring the risk profile accepted by the Group. 
Interna! regulations on liquidity risk are presented for approval by the Risk Management Committee. 
The table below presents the financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2023 according to their 
remaining contractual maturities. The amounts included in the table are contractual cash flows 
which are not discounted, gross accruals for loans and financial guarantees. Future cash flows which 
are not discounted are different to the amounts from the balance sheet because the amount from the 
later represents discounted cash flows. The financial derivatives are included in contractual value to 
be paid or received, except the situations when the Group is expected to clase the exchange position 
before its maturity and in this case the instruments are presented according to estimated future cash 
flows. 
The table below presents an analysis of non-derivative assets at their carrying amount and according 
to their contractual maturities. The impaired loans are presented at their carrying amount net of 
provision and according to the expected timing of collection. 

The accornpanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 
Derivatives are presented according to their contractual maturity. When the amount to he paid is not 
fixed, the amount disclosed is determined based on the existing conditions at the reporting period. 
The payments in foreign currency are revaluated using the exchange rate at the reporting period end. 

Group 

Gross 
1- 3months 1year-

Carrying Amount 

Intlow/ 
3months -1year 5years 

amount 

31 December 2023 outtlow < 1 month 

Assets 

Cash and balances with central bank 11,971,822 11,971,822 11,971,822 

Loans and advances to banks and public 
8,339,662 8,656,534 7,062,964 69,052 887,639 

institutions 

Loans and advances to customers 31,624,550 45,452,841 755,085 976,178 5,206,074 16,824,158 

Financial assets held for trading and 
84,387 

measured at fair value through profit or Im 
71,457 32,120 23,115 

Financial assets mandato:ry at fair value 
19,847 19,847 

through profit or loss 

Financial assets measured at fair value 

through other comprehensive income 
20,779,895 21,915,053 616,202 3,654,588 9,751,563 6,225,582 

Investments in debt instruments at 
9,589,902 12,483,316 8 415,033 6,612,519 

amortized cost 

Financial derivatives, out of which: 

- receivable 1,294 1,241,986 1,241,986 

-payable 1,240,692 1,240,692 

Other financial assets 79,fulQ ~ 79,fulQ - - -- - -
Total financial assets 82,478,268 100,664,934 20,48z,2oz 4,699,826 16,292,429 29,685,374 
Liabilities 

Deposits from banks 1,663,105 1,663,467 1,658,109 5,358 

Deposits from customers 72,744,078 73,796,837 29,900,151 25,261,166 17,343,930 1,280,494 

Subordinated liabilities 1,434,229 2,553,370 68,458 203,142 814,800 
Borrowings from other banks and other 

25,160 2,726 82,439 68,965 financial institutions 179,055 179,290 

Debt securities issued 2,137,255 4,274,510 75,537 4,198,973 

Financial derivatives, out of which: 

- receivable 3,872 577,106 486,656 49,842 40,608 

-payable 580,978 490,364 49,897 40,717 

Lease liabilities 98,723 108,914 2,880 5,506 23,663 54,009 

Other financial liabilities 358..391 333d53 333...453 - - -- - -
Total financial liabilities z8,618,zo9 83,913,713 32,067,456 25,269 453 lZ 658,532 6,417,350 

Net liquidity gap 3,859,559 1z,zs1,221 (11,580,249) (20,569,627) (1,366,103) 23,268,024 
Loan commitments 4 34zo42 4 34ZQ42 4 :34zo42 - -

Guarantee letters issued by the Bank 2 12:l 860 212:l 860 212:l 860 - -

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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-

> 5years 

21,691,346 

29,152 

1,634,965 

5,455,756 

--
28,811,219 

1,466,970 

22,856 

--
1,489,826 

27,321,393 
-

-

This version of the financial statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedence over this 
translation. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

Bank 

Gross 
1- 3months 1year-

Carrying Amount 

Intlow/ 
3months -1year 5years 

amount 

31 December 2023 outtlow < 1month 

Assets 

Cash and balances with central bank 11,971,816 11,971,816 11,971,816 

Loans and advances to banks and public 
8,305,674 8,330,143 

institutions 
7,049,793 48,641 594,830 

Loans and advances to customers 31,624,550 45,187,578 789,443 982,105 5,321,402 17,002,644 

Financial assets held for trading and 
84,387 

measured at fair value through profit or lrn 
71,457 32,120 23,115 

Financial assets mandatmy at fair value 
19,847 19,847 

through profit or loss 

Financial assets measured at fair value 

through other comprehensive income 
20,779,895 21,915,053 616,202 3,405,858 10,000,293 6,225,582 

Financial assets held at historical cost 5,000 5,000 

Investments in debt instruments at 

amortized cost 
9,576,147 12,469,247 400,972 6,612,519 

Financial derivatives, out of which: 

- receivable 1,294 1,241,986 1,241,986 

-payable 1,240,692 1,240,692 

Other financial assets ~ 29.fulQ 29.fulQ - -- -
Total financial assets 82,435,520 100,064,205 20,508,388 4,436,604 16,349,617 29,863 860 
Liabilities 

Deposits from banks 1,663,105 1,663,467 1,658,109 5,358 

Deposits from customers 72,744,806 73,797,572 29,900,277 25,261,775 17,343,930 1,280,494 

Subordinated liabilities 1,434,229 2,553,370 68,458 203,142 814,800 
Borrowings from other banks and other 

25,074 1,821 79,303 73,092 financial institutions 179,055 179,290 

Debt securities issued 2,137,255 4,274,510 75,537 4,198,973 

Financial derivatives, out of which: 

- receivable 3,872 577,106 486,656 49,842 40,608 

-payable 580,978 490,364 49,897 40,717 

Lease liabilities 98,723 108,914 2,880 5,506 23,663 54,009 

Other financial liabilities 329,985 ~ ~ 

Total financial liabilities 78,591,030 82,910,980 32,064,028 25,269,157 17,655,396 6,421,477 

Net liquidity gap 3,844,490 17,153,225 (11,555,640) (20,832,553) (1,305,779) 23,442,383 
Loan commitments ~ :Hz 0~2 4 34:Z Q~2 4 34Z 042 - - -

Guarantee letters issued by the Bank 2 12;?; 860 2122 860 2 12;?; 860 - - -

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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21,091,984 

29,152 

1,634,965 

5,455,756 

--
28,211,857 

1,466,970 

22,856 

-= 
1,489,826 

26,722,031 
-

-
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(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 
Group 

1- 3months 

Gross 

Carrying Amount 

amount Inflow/ 

31 December 2022 outflow < 1month 3months - 1year 

Assets 

Cash and balances with central bank 10,069,054 10,069,054 10,069,054 

Loans and advances to banks and 

public institutions 
6,119,076 6,160,090 5,057,579 50,898 15,308 

Loans and advances to customers 29,224,037 41,502,788 965,228 413,116 8,657,744 

Financial assets held for trading and 

measured at fair value through profil 6,289 10,252 368 

orloss 

Financial assets mandatory at fair 
16,341 16,341 

value through profit or loss 

Financial assets measured at fair vali 

through other comprehensive incom 
10,369,254 11,634,059 18,368 22,097 4,136,945 

Investments in debt instruments at 

amortized cost 4,770,943 5,794,757 17,223 16,504 739,435 

Other financial assets Z9..49Z Z9..49Z Z9..49Z 

Total financial assets 60,654,491 75,266,838 16,206,949 502,615 13,549,800 

Liabilities 

Deposits from banks 2,698,249 2,698,820 2,693,431 5,389 

Deposits from customers 52,430,729 53,072,098 32,912,512 5,788,273 13,784,250 

Subordinated liabilities 1,439,628 2,848,360 79,256 225,859 
Borrowings from other banks and 

278,242 278,792 16,883 8,576 97,938 other financial institutions 

Debt securities issued 653,636 809,291 48,789 

Financial derivatives, out of which: 

- receivable 1,292,912 1,292,912 742,849 499,700 50,363 

-payable 1,317,862 1,317,862 757,367 507,970 52,525 

Lease liabilities 96,475 104,212 2,355 4,589 21,653 

Other financial liabilities --89.299 ~ 89..z99 
Total financial liabilities sz,zn,zo8 59,926,322 35,808,754 5.809,zo8 14,186.040 

Net liquidity gap 15,340,516 (19,601,805) (5,307.093) (636 240) 

Loan commitments 4 443 Z4Z 4 443 Z4Z 4,443,747 

Guarantee letters issued by the Bank l 958 328 l 958 328 1,958,378 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 
Bank 

1- 3months 

Gross 

Carrying Amount 

amount Infl.ow/ 

31 December 2022 outfl.ow < 1month 3months -1year 

Assets 

Cash and balances with central bar 10,069,054 10,069,054 10,069,054 

Loans and advances to banks and 

public institutions 
6,119,076 6,160,090 5,057,579 50,898 15,308 

Loans and advances to customers 29,224,037 41,502,788 965,228 413,116 8,657,744 

Financial assets held for trading ar 

measured at fair value through 6,289 10,252 368 

profit or loss 

Financial assets mandatory at fair 
16,341 16,341 

value through profit or loss 

Financial assets measured at fair 

value through other comprehensiv, 10,369,254 11,634,059 18,368 22,097 4,136,945 

income 

Investments in debt instruments a1 

amortized cost 4,770,943 5,794,757 17,223 16,504 739,435 

Other financial assets Z9..4.9Z Z9..4.9Z Z9..4.9Z --
Total financial assets 60,654,491 zs,266,838 16,206,949 502,615 13,549,800 

Liabilities 

Deposits from banks 2,698,249 2,698,820 2,693,431 5,389 

Deposits from customers 52,430,729 53,072,098 32,912,512 5,788,273 13,784,250 

Subordinated liabilities 1,439,628 2,848,360 79,256 225,859 
Borrowings from other banks 

278,242 278,792 16,883 8,576 97,938 and other financial institutions 

Debt securities issued 653,636 809,291 48,789 
Financial derivatives, out of 
which: 

- receivable 1,292,912 1,292,912 742,849 499,700 50,363 

-payable 1,317,862 1,317,862 757,367 507,970 52,525 

Lease liabilities 96,475 104,212 2,355 4,589 21,653 

Other financial liabilities --89.199 fu!.199 fu!.199 - -- -
Total financial liabilities sz,z11,zos 59,926,322 35,808,z54 s,809,zos 14,186,040 

Net liquidity gap 15,340,516 (19 601,805) (5,302,093) (636,240) 

Loan commitments 4 443 Z4Z 4 443 Z4Z 4,443,747 

Guarantee letters issued by the Bar l 958 J:Z8 l 958 3:28 1,958,378 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

Credit commitments are presented on the basis of earliest possible contractual maturity. For 
financial guarantees contracts and Ioan commitments the maximum amount îs allocated to the 
earliest period în which the financial instrument can be called. 
The management believes that although a substantial proportion of deposits have their maturity în 
less than three months, diversification of these deposits as the number and types of deposits as well 
as previous experience of the Bank indicates that these deposits provide a stable source of financing 
long-term. 
To manage liquidity risk, the Bank holds liquid assets comprising cash and cash equivalents and 
financial assets for which there is an active and liquid market. These assets can be sold în a short time 
to meet liquidity requirements. 
The implementation of the policy and the achievement of liquidity risk targets îs achieved, primarily 
and without limitation, by monitoring and continuous follow-up of risk limits of key ratios Oiquidity 
and funding ratios) and levei II indica tors- Early W arning Indicators. 
The Bank's classification în the liquidity risk profile îs managed by assessing key risk ratios based on 
the risk appetite that the Bank assumes for business continuity on prudential and sound principles, 
i.e. the LCR- Liquidity Coverage Ratio (all reporting currencies); NSFR- Net Stable Funding Ratio 
(RON equivalent); Quick liquidity indicator (RON equivalent), the share of the unencumbered 
government securities portfolio în total on-balance sheet obligations (RON equivalent), encumbered 
assets ratio (RON equivalent) and debt-to-equity ratio (RON equivalent). 

Through its risk management policy and risk profile, the bank monitors and controls the levei of risk 
limits for key liquidity risk ratios in relation to appetite for risk, the Bank aimed to achieve a medium 
liquidity risk profile as the maximum allowed. 

The level of risk limits accepted by the Bank for the key indicators, as well as the intervals taken into 
account in the valuation of their values, have been determined in the light of the Bank's liquidity risk 
management, assessed as significant risk, in conjunction with limits imposed by the NBR/EBA 
regulations, with historical trends in the values of these indica tors, the size and structure of the assets 
and liabilities taken into account in their determination, the results of the various forecasts made, 
budgetary provisions, etc. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

Taking into account the Bank's strategy and based on the size of the Bank's assets and liabilities, their 
maturity and structures etc., the main levei II indicators, early waming indicators, which are 
quantifiable, assessed, monitored and analysed are presented as follows: 

• Liquid assets - by monitoring liquid assets (split between most liquid, less liquid and the 
least liquid based on their relative liquidity levei) it is observed, on different levels, the assets' 
gradual ability to generate liquidity; 

• Government Securities dividend by Total Assets ratios- for the purpose of monitoring the 
portfolio of government securities held by the Bank, the component of liquid assets; 

• Indicators: loans to non-bank customers/ deposits received from non-bank customers; liquid 
spot assets/total deposits attracted on demand; the rate of monthly decrease of sources 
drawn from non-bank customers, loans with outstanding amounts of more than 31 days 
(inclusive)/total assets, by monitoring them with a view to identifying as a matter of urgency 
the increased vulnerability in terms of liquidity position or funding needs and so on; 

• Forecasts of hypothetical evolution of the LCR ratio - the dynamic LCR on different time 
horizons in order to prevent crisis or unexpected cases; 

• The weight of pledged/unpledged government securities in the total government securities 
portfolio, in order to monitor the evolution of government securities portfolio structure. 

t) Capital management 

The Bank's objectives regarding capital management represent a broader concept than the term 
"equity" that is found in the statement of financial position and are represented by: 

a. capital of the Bank must comply to requirements provided by national regulations 
and to those provided by EBA (European Banking Authority); 

b. capital of the Bank must ensure the continuation of the Bank's activity in the 
following period, to ensure the revenues of the shareholder and benefits to other 
related parties of the Bank; 

c. capital of the Bank must ensure a powerful basis to allow the development of the 
business. 

Starting 1 January 2014, the Bank computes own funds and own funds requirements according to 
Regulation No. 575/ 2013 of European Parliament and of the Council from 26 June 2013 on prudential 
requirements for credit institutions and investment firms and NBR Regulation No. 5/20.12.2013 

related to prudential requirements for credit institutions. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

Starting 1 January 2018, the Bank exercised the option of applying for a transitional period of 5 years 
of the transitory measures regarding the inclusion of a portion of the adjustments for the increased 
expected credit loss in the Bank's basic levei 1 own funds. 

ln the internai process of capital adequacy to risks for 2023, the Bank envisaged maintaining a total 
own funds rate aiming to meet the following requirements cumulatively: 
a) maintaining a global capital requirement (OCR) of 18.58%, consisting of: 

the target rates of own funds due to the pillar II adjustments (Basel III), representing SREP 
capital requirements (TSCRs) tobe met permanently: 

■ rate of own funds tier 1 basis: 7.08%; 

■ rate of own funds tier 1: 9.44%; 
■ total own funds rate: 12.58%. 

combined capital buffer requirement equivalent to 6.0% of total risk exposure amount, as a 
resuit of the aggregation of the requirement for the capital conservation buffer (2.5%) and 
the 0-SII buffer requirement (0.5%) and systemic risk buffer (2%) and the anticyclic buffer 
requirements (1%) 

b) maintaining an internai additional capital buffer representing 2.5% to support possible future 
capital requirements adjustments. 

In regard of the capital management the Bank assesses capital adequacy in accordance with the 
"Policy for the internai assessment of capital adequacy", NBR regulations and respectively CRD V 
regulations package. 

The Bank intends that the internai capital tobe covering both the risks for which capital requirements 
are regulated (credit risk, operational risk, currency risk, settlement risk and credit assessment 
adjustment risk) as well as significant risks identified by the Bank for which regulatory capital 
requirements are not fully covering. 

From a strategic point of view the exposures are undertaken towards counterparties with a good 
rating and under conditions of a good collateral coverage so as the capital required by the respective 
exposures be as low as possible. 
Capital adequacy ratio is monitored on a monthly basis any substantial deterioration triggering the 
need to review the portfolio of exposures and to claim if necessary a capital increase. The Bank's own 
funds and own funds ratios are calculated in accordance with the National Bank of Romania's (NBR) 
regulations in force, and within the limits imposed by EU Regulation no. 575/2013. 

At 31.12.2023 the Bank complied within the regulated indicators regarding capital adequacy, 
including MREL requirements. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

The total equity ratio was above the total capital requirements imposed by the National Bank of 
Romania in the SREP (Supervisory, Review and Evaluation Process) and over the global capital 
requirement-OCR, including capital buffers. An adequate level of capital and general financial 
indicators have been maintained, in line with the principles ofbanking prudence. 

Capital Management takes into account the evolution of the medium and long term capital and 
underlies the grounding rationale of the strategy of Business and Bank policy. 

Bank's targets regarding own funds level are set in the context of some interna! factors (e.g. risk and 
estimated profit) and some externa! factors (e.g. market expectations and macroeconomic 
environment, the crisis caused by the coronavirus infection and the change in the macroeconomic 
context) and are focused towards an annual positive financial result and its capitalization. Interna! 
capital requirement is interna! capital necessary to cover banking risks in order to ensure the 
sustainability of the Bank. 

As of 31.12.2023 the Bank registered a total own funds rate of 24.18%. 

Starting December 2022 the Bank has liabilities, other than own funds, eligible for covering MREL 
requirements, carrying out a private placement of bonds to professional investors, in lei and euros, 
with a cumulative value of approx. RON 2,061.72 million. 

As of 31.12.2023 the Bank registered a surplus of 5.90% of capital and eligible MREL liabilities, being 
in compliance with the MREL ratio. 
Other measures made by the Bank during the year 2023 to maintain a satisfying level of MREL 
requirements, along with bonds issuance, are represented by non-distribution of dividents, as well 
as measures to control the level and intensity of RWA (Risk Weighted Assets), through RWA 
management. 

Regarding climate-related risks, the Group has started a Project with the support of externa! 
consultants to align the Risk Strategy to relevant ESG factors, as well as to prepare the Group for 
CSRD, NFRD and taxonomy reporting requirements. The Project is coordinated by Risk and Product 
Departments, is ongoing and it will also cover elements related to incorporating ESG in credit risk 
assessment and measurement/parameters (PD, LGD, FLI scenarios), inclusion of ESG factors in 
stress testing and risk scenarios, implementing a system for GHG emissions quantification. 
The Bank is in a process to develop a new rating model for Ioan origination that aim to assess how 
borrower performance is linked to climate change and plans to use these models in pricing credit 
risk. Also, the group plans to limit the exposure to industries exposed to increased transition risks. 
The Group is organising specific trainings for relevant personnel in credit origination in respect with 
ESG elements and accurate and reliable data collection and analysis. 
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS 
The Bank makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liahilities 
in the next financial year. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are hased on past 
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are considered reasonahle 
under the circumstances. In addition to historical experience and information, the Bank considered 
in the assessment of these estimates, the effects of the current conditions in the financial industry. 
Impairment losses on loans, advances and credit commitments 
The Bank reviews the Ioan portfolio on a monthly hasis to assess the expected credit losses for these 
assets in accordance with IFRS 9. 

In determining whether an expected credit loss should he recorded in the income statement, the Bank 
considers the reasonahle andjustifiahle information that affects credit risk for a financial instrument. 
This evidence may include ohservahle data indicating that there has heen an unfavourahle change in 
the group dehtors' situation or in the economic conditions at national or local level related to non­
payment of assets in the group. 
When planning future cash flows, the Bank uses estimates hased on historical loss experience for 
assets with credit risk characteristics and on the ohjective evidence of impairment similar to those in 
the portfolio, in the current conditions as well as în provisional data. 

The methodology and assumptions used in the impairment assessment are constantly reviewed (at 
least once a year) to reduce the difference hetween the expected losses and the actual losses over a 
certain period of time, making comparisons and analyses (back-testing type) of the differences 
hetween the adjustments already recorded for a certain period of time and the actual loss incurred at 
the end of that period. 

In addition, the Bank makes estimates in respect of the prohahility that the current undrawn facilities 
will he drawn in the foreseeahle future, i.e. how will convert letters / guarantee ceilings into credits. 
For commitments that are likely to hecome credit exposures, the Bank makes estimates for future 
expected credit losses. 

Given the current macroeconomic situation and its outlook, the Bank made some post-model 
adjustments to estimate the expected loss adjustments, detailed in Note 3 - Financial Risk 
Management. 

Pair Values of Financial Assets and Liabilities 

Fair value îs the price that would have heen received to sell an asset or would have heen paid to 
transfer a liability în a regulated transaction between market participants at the valuation date. The 
best evidence of fair value is the price on an active market. An active market îs one în which asset or 
liahility transactions take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide price information on 
a continuous basis. 

The fair value of financial instruments traded on an active market îs measured as the product of the 
quoted price for the individual asset or liahility and the amount held by the entity. A portfolio of 
derivatives or other assets and liahilities that are not traded on a financial active market îs measured 
at the fair value of a group of financial assets and financial liabilities based on the price they would 
have received to sell a long net position (e.g., an asset) for a particular exposure to risk or would have 
paid to transfer a short net position (e.g., a liahility) for a particular exposure to risk in an orderly 
transaction hetween the market participants at the valuation date. 
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED) 
Hierarchy analysis of the fair value of financial instruments measured at fair value: 
Levei 1: includes instruments quoted in active markets for identica} assets or liabilities; 
Levei 2: includes instruments whose fair value is determined using inputs that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and 
Levei 3: includes instruments for which the fair value is determined using inputs that are not based 
on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 
Real estate evaluation - applied evaluation methods 

• Given the characteristics and location of the Assets under Evaluation, all three evaluation 
approaches described below were applied depending on the type of asset being valued and 
the specific market information available. 

• The main approach used in the measurement was the income approach, i.e. the Income 
Capitalization Method (MCV), which is applied to most of the assets subject to valuation. 
Values earned through the income approach have been verified with information on offers 
of similar property sales on the specific market. 

• The Cost Approach (CIN) was applied for: The CEC Palace (the value of the land was 
estimated bythe MarketApproach- Direct Comparison Method (MCD), and thevalue ofthe 
Building by Net Replacement Cost (CIN), the Slanic Training Center and Accommodation 
Moldova (its land is not owned by CEC Bank, being leased) garages and wooden cottages 
located in Tuzla. The share held by the assets valued by the cost approach in total assets, 
except the CEC Palace, is very low 1%). 

• The Market Approach and the Direct Comparison Method (MCD) were applied for the 
estimation of the market value of the CEC Palace land, for the valuation of the surplus / 
independent land owned by the Bank and of the non-operating residential properties 
(Ceahlau - Neamt, Ocna Mures -Alba, Andrid- Satu Mare, Lisa - Brasov and Sarmasel­
Mures), as well as for checking the values obtained for the residential properties (apartments 
and houses located in the rural area) by applying the income approach and the unit values 
for commercial properties. 

IFRS 13 identifies three widely used evaluation techniques: 
a) Market approach 
b) Income approach 
c) Cost approach 

IFRS 13 does not require the use of a particular valuation technique but sets out principles for 
choosing an appropriate valuation technique for which sufficient, observable and relevant data is 
available. 

a) Market approach 
The market approach provides an indication of the value by comparing the subject asset with 
identica} or similar assets for which price information is available. 

b) Income approach 
The income approach provides an indication of the value by converting future cash flows into a single 
current value of the capital. This approach takes into account the revenue that an asset will generate 
over its useful life and indicates the value through a capitalization process. Capitalization involves 
the conversion of income into a capital value by applying an appropriate capitalization / discount 
rate. 

c) Cost approach 
Cost approach provides an indication of value by using the economic principie according to which a 
buyer will not pay more for an asset than the cost required to obtain an asset with the same utility, 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Page 101 of 167 
This version of the financial statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedence over this 
translation. 



CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 
(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ANO JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED) 
either by buying or building. Often, the asset under evaluation will be less attractive than the 
equivalent that could be bought or built because of age or depreciation. In this case, it may be 
necessary to apply adjustments to the cost of the equivalent asset, depending on the type of value 
requested. 
The tables below analyse the financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value at the end of the 
reporting period, on hierarchical levels: 
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value at 31 December 2023: 

Financial assets 
Other financial assets 
Financial assets heldfor trading and 
measured atfair value through profit or 
loss, of which: 
Debt securities 
Financial derivatives - Swap on exchange 
rate 

Group 
Level1 

66,038 

Levei 2 

----5.,419 

5,419 

1,294 

Level3 Total 

.ZL457 

71,457 

1,294 

Financial assets measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income, out of 
which: 

19,338,507 

19,338,507 

1,409,235 ~ 20,279,895 

- Securities 
- Equity Investments 
Financial assets mandatorily at fair value 
through profit or loss, out of which: 
- Debt securities 
N on-financial assets 
- Land and buildings 

Total assets carried at fair value 
Financial liabilities 
Other financial liabilities 
Financial derivatives - Swap on exchange 
rate 
Total liabilities carried at fair value 

1,409,235 

19.409.964 1.410.529 

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value at 31 December 2023= 
Bank 

Financial assets 
Other financial assets 
Financial assets heldfor trading and 
measured atfair value throughprofit or 
loss, of which: 
Debt securities 
Financial derivatives - Swap on exchange 
rate 
Financial assets measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income, out of which: 
- Securities 

Levei 1 

66,038 

66,038 

19,338,507 

19,338,507 

Level2 

5,419 

5,419 

1,294 

1,409,235 

1,409,235 
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20,747,742 
32,153 32,153 

~ ~ 

19,847 19,847 

589,459 589,459 

641,459 21,458,012 

3,872 

~ 

Level3 Total 

.ZL457 

71,457 

1,294 

~ 20,zzg,895 

20,747,742 
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- Equity Investments 
Financial assets mandatorily at fair value 
through profit or loss, out of which: 
- Debt securities 

N on-financial assets 
- Land and buildings 

Total assets carried at fair value 
Financial liabilities 
Other financial liabilities 
Financial derivatives - Swap on exchange 
rate 
Total liabilities carried at fair value 

--

19,40!M164 1,~110,529 

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value at 31 December 2022: 

Financial assets 
Other financial assets 
Financial assets heldfor trading and 
measured atfair value through pro.fit 
or loss, of which: 

Debt securities 
Financial derivatives - Swap on 
exchange rate 
Financial assets measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income, 
out of which: 
- Securities 

- Equity Investments 

Financial assets mandatorily at fair 
value through profit or loss, out of 
which: 
- Debt securities 

N on-financial assets 

- Land and buildings 
Total assets carried at fair value 
Financial liabilities 

Other financial liabilities 
Financial derivatives - Swap on 
exchange rate 
Total liabilities carried at fair 
value 

Group 
Levei 1 

6,289 

9,815,878 

9,815,878 

9,822,162 

Levei 2 

527,103 

527,103 

52z,103 

24,950 

24.950 
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32,153 

~ 

19,847 

585,519 

63z,519 

Levei 3 

~ 

26,273 

lQ.,341 

16,341 

598,081 

640,695 

32,153 

~ 

19,847 

585,519 
21,458,012 

Total 

6,289 

10,369,254 

10,342,981 

26,273 

lQ.,341 

16,341 

598,081 

10,989.965 

24,950 

~ 
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Bank 
Ley:el 1 Levei 2 Levei 3 Total 

Financial assets 
Other financial assets 
Financial assets held for trading and 
measured at fair value through profit 6,289 6,289 
or loss, of which: 

Debt securities 6,289 6,289 
Financial derivatives - Swap on 
exchange rate 
Financial assets measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income, 9,815,878 527,103 ~ 10,369,254 
aut of which: 
- Securities 9,815,878 527,103 10,342,981 
- Equity Investments 26,273 26,273 
Financial assets mandatorily at fair 
value through profit or loss, aut of - 12.,341 12.,341 -
which: 
- Debt securities 16,341 16,341 
N on-financial assets 

- Land and buildings 598,081 598,081 
Total assets carried at fair value 9.822.16:z 52:z,103 640,695 10,989.965 
Financial liabilities 

Other financial Iiabilities 
Financial derivatives - Swap on 

24,950 24,950 exchange rate 
Total liabilities carried at fair 
value - 24.950 - ~ - -

Assets and liabilities not measured at fair value in the balance sheet 
The following table summarizes the carrying amounts and fair values of those financial assets and 
liabilities that are not measured at fair value in the balance sheet of the Bank. Purchase prices are 
used to estimate the fair values of assets and sales prices are applied for liabilities. 
Assets and liabilities for which fair value is disclosed as at 31 December 2023: 

Group 
Total 

Total fair accounting 

Financial assets 
Cash and balance at Central 
Bank 
Loans and advances to 
banks and public 
institutions 

Level1 Levei 2 

11,971,822 

2,832,542 

Level3 

5,513,225 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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11,971,822 

8,345,767 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 
(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

Loans and advances to 31,860,575 31,860,575 31,624,550 
customers 
lnvestments in debt 8,010,429 1,627,014 9,637,443 9,589,903 
instruments at amortized 
cost 
Investment property 96,364 96,364 54,159 

Other financial assets 86,671 86,671 86,671 

Total financial assets 8,010.429 16.431378 3z.556.835 61.998.642 61.666.z66 

Financial liabilities 
Deposits from banks 1,663,105 1,663,105 1,663,105 

Deposits from customers 73,787,856 73,787,856 72,744,078 
Borrowings from banks and 179,145 179,145 179,055 
other financial institutions 

Debt securities issued 2,171,859 2,171,859 2,137,255 

Subordinated liabilities 1,434,229 1,434,229 1,434,229 

Other financial liabilities 358,390 358,390 358,390 
Total financial liabilities -= z9.236 194 358.390 z9.594.584 78.516.112 

Bank 
Total 

Total accounting 
Levelt Level2 Level3 fairvalue value 

Financial assets 
Cash and balance at Central 11,971,816 11,971,816 11,971,816 
Bank 
Loans and advances to 2,798,555 5,513,225 8,311,780 8,305,674 
banks and public 
institutions 
Loans and advances to 31,860,575 31,860,575 31,624,550 
customers 
Investments in debt 7,996,670 1,627,014 9,623,684 9,576,147 
instruments at amortized 
cost 
Investment property 96,364 96,364 54,159 

Other financial assets 79,840 79,840 79,840 

Total financial assets 2,996.6zo 16,392,385 32,550,004 61,944.059 61612,186 

Financial liabilities 
Deposits from banks 1,663,105 1,663,105 1,663,105 

Deposits from customers 73,788,584 73,788,584 72,744,806 
Borrowings from banks and 179,145 179,145 179,055 
other financial institutions 

Debt securities issued 2,171,859 2,171,859 2,137,255 

Subordinated liabilities 1,434,229 1,434,229 1,434,229 

Other financial liabilities 329,985 329,985 329,985 
Total financial liabilities -= 29,236.922 329.985 z9.566.902 78.488.435 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED) 
Assets and liabilities for which fair value is disclosed as at 31 December 2022: 

Total 
Levei 1 Levei 2 Level3 fairvalue 

Financial assets 
Cash and balance at 
Central Bank 

1,443,538 8,625,516 10,069,054 

Loans and advances to 6,119,076 6,119,076 
banks and public 
institutions 
Loans and advances to 28,728,588 28,728,588 
customers 
Investments in debt 
instruments at amortized 

4,403,070 4,403,070 

cost 
Investment property 95,379 95,379 

Other financial assets 79,497 79,497 

Total financial assets 5.846.608 14,244,592 28,903.464 49,494 664 

Financial liabilities 
Deposits from banks 2,698,249 2,698,249 

Deposits from customers 53,065,211 53,065,211 
Borrowings from banks 276,956 276,956 
and other financial 
institutions 

Debt securities issued 653,636 653,636 

Subordinated liabilities 1,439,628 1,439,628 

Other financial liabilities 89,799 89,799 
Total financial 653.636 5z.480.044 89.299 58,223,479 
liabilities 

Total 
accounting 

value 

10,069,054 

6,119,076 

29,224,037 

4,770,943 

59,872 

79,497 

50,322.479 

2,698,249 

52,430,729 

278,242 

653,636 

1,439,628 

89,799 

5z.590.283 

a) Loans and advances to banks and public institutions and cash at Central Bank 

Loans and advances to banks and public institutions include inter-bank placements and items in the 
course of collection. Cash at central banks includes the minimum reserve and current accounts held 
at the NBR. The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight deposits is equal to their canying 
amount. 

b) Loans and advances to customers 

Loans and advances are net of provisions for impairment. The estimated fair value of loans and 
advances represents the discounted amount of estimated future cash flows expected to he received. 
Expected cash flows are discounted at current market rates to determine fair value. The estimated 
fair value of fixed and floating interest bearing loans is based on discounted cash flows using 
prevailing money-market interest rates for debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(All arnounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED) 

The following table provides the description of unobservable data and the valuation techniques used 
for levei 3 in accordance with IFRS 13. 

Evaluation Significant Average Group Market value unobservable techniques in1>uts interest rate 

Legal entities PD and LGD as items Agriculture Future 6.96 % for 
exclusively 3,012,390 disco unt ed reflecting credit risk EURO;9.15% 
bridge loans for cash flows in the discount rate 

forRON 
subsides of future cash flows. 

Future PD and LGD as items 
Public local 

discounted reflecting credit risk 
7.75% for RON administrations 2,517,017 in the discount rate cash flows of future cash flows. 

Future PD and LGD as items 
7.05 % for Legal entities 

3,192,648 discounted reflecting credit risk 
EURO; 9.29% Commerce cash flows in the discount rate for RON; of future cash flows. 

Future PD and LGD as items 
6.96 % for Legal entities 

1,977,785 discounted reflecting credit risk EURO; 8.98% Construction cash flows în the discount rate forRON of future cash flows. 

Future PD and LGD as items 6.73 % for 
Legal entities 

5,251,373 discounted reflecting credit risk EURO; 8.92% 
Industry cash flows în the discount rate for RON; 8.63 % 

of future cash flows. for USD 

Individuals - Future PD and LGD as items 
6.83 % for 

personal needs 1,898,292 discounted reflecting credit risk EURO; 10.08 % 
loans cash flows în the discount rate forRON of future cash flows. 

Future PD and LGD as items 
6.94 % for Legal entities 

5,829,969 discounted reflecting credit risk 
EURO;9.34% Services cash flows in the discount rate forRON of future cash flows. 

Future PD and LGD as items 
Bridge loans for 

662,529 discounted reflecting credit risk 
8.57 % for RON subsides cash flows in the discount rate 

of future cash flows. 

Future PD and LGD as items 7.57%for 
Individuals -

7,051,513 discounted reflecting credit risk EURO;7.91% 
Mortgage loans cash flows in the discount rate for RON; 4.10 % 

of future cash flows. for USD 

Future PD and LGD as items 

Cards/ Overdraft 467,059 discounted reflecting credit risk 16.43 % for RON 
cash flows în the discount rate 

of future cash flows. 

Total 31,860,575 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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The sensitivity of the valua 
of the market value to 
unobservable in1>uts 

The individual growth of any 
unobservable inputs (PD, LGD, 
discount rate) would generate a 
lower market value. 

The individual growth of any 
unobservable inputs (PD, LGD, 
disco unt rate) would generate a 
lower market value. 
The individual growth of any 
unobservable inputs (PD, LGD, 
disco unt rate) would generate a 
lower market value. 

The individual growth of any 
unobservable inputs (PD, LGD, 
disco unt rate) would generate a 
lower market value. 
The individual growth of any 
unobservable inputs (PD, LGD, 
disco unt rate) would generate a 
lower market value. 
The individual growth of any 
unobservable inputs (PD, LGD, 
disco unt rate) would generate a 
lower market value. 
The individual growth of any 
unobservable inputs (PD, LGD, 
disco unt rate) would generate a 
lower market value. 
The individual growth of any 
unobservable inputs (PD, LGD, 
disco unt rate) would generate a 
lower market value. 
The individual growth of any 
unobservable inputs (PD, LGD, 
discount rate) would generate a 
lower market value. 
The individual growth of any 
unobservable inputs (PD, LGD, 
discount rate) would generate a 
lower market value. 

This version of the financial statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ANO JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED) 
c) Deposits from banks, deposits from customers and borrowings from banks and other financial 

institutions and subordinated debts 
The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, which includes non-interest-bearing 
deposits, as presented in the interest gap analysis, is the amount repayable on demand. The 
estimated fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits, borrowings from banks and other financial 
institutions and subordinated debt without a quoted market price is based on discounted cash flows 
using interest rates for new debts with similar remaining maturity. 

d) Debt securities issued 
The fair value of the debt securities issued is determined using BID quotations (expressed as yield) 
from Bloomberg, the BGN or BV AL source, where BGN is not available. If none of the sources is 
available, the price of the last transaction made in the last 30 days on the regulated market, if any, 
will be used. Otherwise, the yield used to determine the fair value will he based on the following 
formula: the (BID) yield of the government bond with the closest maturity plus the credit spread 
relevant to the risk category to which the issuer of the evaluated bond belongs, allowing for any 
material instrument specific credit quality deterioration, if the case. 

e) Financial assets measured at fair value through other items of comprehensive income -
Government securities 

The fair value of government securities measured at fair value through other items of comprehensive 
income is determined using BID quotations (expressed as yield) in Bloomberg, source BGN. 
Ali securities owned by CEC Bank are periodically assessed in order to evaluate their liquidity as 
tradeable instruments. For this purpose, the Bank considers 3 main measures and data provided by 
Bloomberg, as macle available via the function LQA. 
The 3 main measures for each ISIN are: 

Amount outstanding. This is 100% identifiable and is considered tobe directly correlated 
with liquidity; 
Bid-ask spread. This is generally observable and is inversely correlated with liquidity; 
Trade history. This measure becomes increasingly observable following MIFID 
requirements on APA publication. However full trading history is still largely unavailable 
as of 2023, therefore not yet included in Bank's explicit assessment mechanism. 

The additional data retrieved from Bloomberg (LQA function) is: 
Liquidity score of the instrument from (ranging from o to 100) 
Liquidity assessment are per SEC classification criteria 

The bank considers as Levei 1 all ISINs that cumulatively meet the following criteria at the date o the 
assessment: 

Total issued amount at least 1 billion EUR; 
Bid-ask spread (as retrieved from Bloomberg LQA) of maximum 70 basis points; 
Liquidity score of at least 30 (as retrieved from Bloomberg LQA); 
SEC 22E4 classification HLI (Highly liquid) 

f) Financial assets measured at fair value through other items of comprehensive income -
Shares 

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income include shares that are 
not traded on an active market (FRGC S.A. - Fondul Roman de Garantare a Creditelor pentru 
lntreprinzatori Privati, Transfond S.A. - Societatea de Transfer de Fonduri si Decontari, Biroul de 
Credit S.A., SWIFT- Societatea de Telecomunicaţii Financiare Interbancare Globale) and shares 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ANO JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Group 

Shares 

quoted in an active market (VISA Inc.). In the case of shares that are not listed on an active market, 
it is not possible to obtain the market value for those equity securities and therefore recent values in 
terms of their trading price are not publicly available. Management does not intend to sell these 
shares in the near future. The Bank determined the fair value for them using the net asset method 
based on the published financial statements, in the case of FRGC S.A. - Fondul Român de Garantare 
a Creditelor pentru Întreprinzători Privaţi and SWIFf - Societatea de Telecomunicaţii Financiare 
Interbancare Globale and the dividend method, in the case ofTransfond S.A. - Societatea de Transfer 
de Fonduri şi Decontări si Biroul de Credit S.A. 
In the case of Visa Inc.'s shares for which there is an active market, the market value is determined 
monthly based on the conversion coefficient communicated by VISA and the NYSE stock exchange 
quote. 
The following table provides the description of unobservable data and the valuation techniques 
use d fi 1 1 • d • h IFRS or eve ~ : m accor ance wit 13. 

Significant The sensitivity of the 
Market valuation of the market 
value Evaluation techniques unobserva value to unobservable ble inputs inputs 

The market value is determined by VISA's conversion The improvement and 
measured at fair coefficient and NYSE's stock exchange rate. deteriorationof the issuer's Financial value through 

32,153 For unlisted equity instruments, the market value is performance financial performance has 
other an impact on the increase determined by the net asset method based on the of the issuer comprehensive financial statements of the entities at the end of the last or decrease of the market 
income 

reporting period, as well as by the dividend method. value. 

g) Financial assets mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss - Debt securities 
The Bank's debt instruments include shares that are traded on an active market (VISA Inc.) andin 
their case, market value is determined monthly based on the conversion coefficient communicated 
by VISA and the NYSE stock exchange quote. 
The following table provides the description of unobservable data and the valuation techniques 
used for level 3 in accordance with IFRS 13. 

Significant The sensitivity of the 
Market valuation of the Group value Evaluation techniques unobservable market value to inputs unobservable inputs 

Debt The improvement and 
securities deteriorationof the 
mandatorily The market value is determined by Financial issuer's financial 
measured at 19,847 VISA's conversion coefficient and performance of performance has an 
fair value NYSE's stock exchange rate the issuer impact on the increase 
through profit or decrease of the 
or loss market value. 

The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning balances to the ending balances for 
fair value measurements in level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: 

Balance at 1 January 2023 

Total gains or losses: 
- in profit or loss 
- in other comprehensive income 

Purchases 

lssues 
Settlements 

Shares 

26,274 

6,303 

(155) 

Debt securities 

16,341 

3,506 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED) 
Transfers into levei 3 
Transfers out oflevel 3 
Exchange rate differences 
Balance at 31 December 2023 

(269) 

32,153 19,847 

h) Investments in debt instruments at amortized cost - Government securities/Corporate/ 
Municipal bonds 

The fairvalue ofthe investments in debt instruments is determined using BID quotations (expressed 
as yield) from Bloomberg, the BGN or BV AL source, where BGN is not available. If none of the sources 
is available, the price of the last transaction made in the last 30 days on the regulated market, if any, 
will be used. Otherwise, the yield used to determine the fair value will be based on the following 
formula: the (BID) yield of the government/Corporate/Municipal bond with the closest maturity plus 
the credit spread relevant to the risk category to which the issuer of the evaluated bond belongs, 
allowing for any material instrument specific credit quality deterioration, if the case. 
i) Derivative financial assets and liabilities 
As of 31 December 2023, the value of financial derivative instruments (FX swap/forward) is 
determined using interest rates ROBID/ROBOR/EURIBOR/USD DEPO/SOFR/GBP DEPO/CHF 
DEPO/SONIA displayed by Thomson Reuters or Bloomberg, as well as official exchange rates 
published by NBR in order to compute forward rates for remaining period of outstanding contracts. 
j) Other financial assets and liabilities 
The management considered that the fair value is equal to the accounting value considering that 
these financial assets and liabilities are expected to be settled within one month or with no fixed 
maturity, they are short-term and their carrying amount is not materially different from their fair 
value. 
k) Property 
Following the analysis carried out by the Bank's management regarding the market value of goods 
on the real estate market, it emerged that it did not fluctuate significantly during 2023 and that there 
are no externai indicators of impairment of assets compared to the analysis of 31 December 2022. 
Management considered that the net book value of land and buildings as at 31 December 2023 
represents a fair estimate of fair values at the reporting date. 

During the year ended 31 December 2023 (and 31 December 2022), there were no changes to the fair 
valuation at fair value in Levei 3 rating techniques. 

The following table shows the Bank's situation of the evaluation results on each applied valuation 
method. 
Bank's Real Estate Valuation - input data analysis according to IFRS 1~ as at ~1.12.2023 

Evaluation results for each evaluation method used 

Crt. 
No. 

1 

2 

3 
Total 

Surface Surface Surface 
Evaluation Properties property land built concession method (Pieces) land 

/use 
unfolded 

(mp) (mp) (mp) 

MCV 830 72,440 59,117 254,693 

CIN 19 6,114 263 10,507 

MCD 152 40,490 8,615 17,472 

1,001 119,044 67,995 282,672 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Surface 
useful Fairvalue 

(RON 
total thousands) (mp) 

201,760 541,299 

7,542 134,726 

13,324 15,165 

222,627 691,190 
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED) 
Real Estate Valuation - input data analysis according to IFRS 13 as at 31.12.2022 

Evaluation results for each evaluation method used 

Surface Surface Surface Surface 
Crt. Evaluation Properties property land built useful Fairvalue 

concession (RON No. method (Pieces) land 
/use 

unfolded total thousands) (mp) (mp) (mp) (mp) 

1 MCV 835 72,758 59,705 256,967 203,629 540,457 
2 CIN 19 6,113 263 10,507 7,543 134,408 

3 MCD 160 48,056 8,615 17,533 13,375 15,441 
Total 1,014 126,927 68,583 285,007 224,547 690,306 

Considering the valuation methodology used, it can be concluded that the input data used in 
estimating the fair value fall within the level 3 data category. 

The following table shows the valuation techniques used to measure the fair values of the properties 
as well as the significant unobservable inputs used. 

Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs 

Income Capitalization Method (MCV) Potential Gross Income Variation (PGI):-10% Cost approach (CIN) Capitalization rate variation (CR): 1% Direct Comparison Method (MCD) 

Income Capitalization Method (MCV) Potential Gross Income Variation (PGI): -7% Cost approach (CIN) 
Capitalization rate variation (CR): 0,5% Direct Comparison Method (MCD) 

Income Capitalization Method (MCV) 
Potential Gross Income Variation (PGI): -3% Cost approach (CIN) 

Direct Comparison Method (MCD) Capitalization rate variation (CR): 0,25% 

Income Capitalization Method (MCV) 
Potential Gross Income Variation (PGI): 3% Cost approach (CIN) 
Capitalization rate variation (CR): -0,25% Direct Comparison Method (MCD) 

Income Capitalization Method (MCV) 
Potential Gross Income Variation (PGI): 7% Cost approach (CIN) 

Direct Comparison Method (MCD) Capitalization rate variation (CR): -0,50% 

Income Capitalization Method (MCV) Potential Gross Income Variation (PGI): 10% Cost approach (CIN) 
Capitalization rate variation (CR): -1% Direct Comparison Method (MCD) 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 fonn an integral part of these financial statements. 

Page 111 of 167 

Fair value impact 

(106,565) (-19.7%) 

(67,702) (-12.5%) 

(31,630) (-5.85%) 

33,251 (6.15%) 

74,781 (13.84%) 

130,270 (24.1%) 
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED) 

The table below provides a reconciliation of financial assets and liabilities in the statement of 
financial position by categories of financial instruments: 

Group 

FVOCI- FVOCI 
Mandatorily debt At 

31 December 2023 at instrume equity amortized 
FVfPL instru cost 

Note FVfPL nts ments 
Cash and balance at 
central banks 13 11,971,822 
Derivatives financial 
assets 14 1,294 
Loans and advances to 
banks and public 
institutions 15 8,339,661 
Loans and advances to 
customers: 18 31,624,550 
- at amortized cost 31,624,550 
Debt instruments: 19,847 71,457 20,747,742 9,576,147 
- measured at fair value 
through profit or loss 20 71,457 
- mandatorily at fair value 
through profit or loss 19 19,847 
- at fair value through 
other comprehensive 
income 16 20,747,742 
- at amortized cost 17 9,589,903 
Equity instruments 16 32,153 
Other financial assets 25 86,671 
Total financial assets ~ ~ 2Q z4z,:z42 ~ 61 612 6oz 
Derivatives financial 
liabilities 14 3,872 
Deposits from banks 27 1,663,105 
Deposits from customers 28 72,744,078 
Borrowings from banks 
and other financial 179,055 
institutions 29 
Debt securities issued 30 2,137,255 

Subordinated liabilities 31 
1,434,229 

Lease liabilities 34 
98,723 

Other financial liabilities 36 358,390 
Totalfinancial liabilities - ~ - - zR614,835 = = = 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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At 
hist Total 
orie carrying 

al amount 
cost 

11,971,822 

1,294 

8,339,661 

31,624,550 
31,624,550 
30,415,193 

71,457 

19,847 

20,747,742 
9,589,903 

32,153 
86,671 

~ 821485 lQQ 

3,872 
1,663,105 

72,744,078 

179,055 

2,137,255 

1,434,229 

98,723 

358,390 
- zR61Rzoz = 
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Group 

FVOCI- FVOCI 
Mandatorily debt 

At 
31 December 2022 at instrume equity amortized 

FVfPL nts instru cost 
Note FVfPL ments 

Cash and balance at 
central banks 13 10,104,087 
Derivatives financial assets 14 
Loans and advances to 
banks and public 
institutions 15 6,119,331 
Loans and advances to 
customers: 18 29,242,809 
- at amortized cost 29,242,809 
Debt instruments: 16,341 6,289 10,342,981 4,770,943 
- measured at fair value 
through profit or loss 20 6,289 
- mandatorily at fair value 
through profit or loss 19 16,341 
- at fair value through 
other comprehensive 
income 16 10,342,981 
- at amortized cost 17 4,770,943 
Equity instruments 16 26,273 
Other financial assets 25 88,966 
Total financial assets ~ ~ lQ 3~21981 ~ 5Q 326136 
Derivatives financial 
liabilities 14 24,950 
Deposits from banks 27 2,698,249 
Deposits from customers 28 52,432,793 
Borrowings from banks 278,242 
and other financial 
institutions 29 
Debt securities issued 30 

653,636 

Subordinated liabilities 31 
1,439,628 

Lease liabilities 34 
96,475 

Other financial liabilities 36 151,264 
Total financial liabilities - ~ - - 5:Z1:ZSQ128:z - = = 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Total 
carrying 
amount 

10,104,087 

6,119,331 

29,242,809 
29,242,809 
15,136,554 

6,289 

16,341 

10,342,981 
4,770,943 

26,273 
88,966 

QQ1:Zl81Q2Q 

24,950 
2,698,249 

52,432,793 
278,242 

653,636 

1,439,628 

96,475 

151,264 
5:Z :Z:Z5123:z 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ANO JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Bank 

FVOCI- FVOCI- At 
Manda debt equity At historical Total carrying 

31 December 2023 torily amortized cost instrume instrum at nts ents cost 
Note FVI'PL FVI'PL 

Cash and balance at 
central banks 13 11,971,816 
Derivatives financial 
assets 14 1,294 
Loans and advances to 
banks and public 
institutions 15 8,305,674 
Loans and advances to 
customers: 18 31,624,550 
- at amortized cost 31,624,550„ 
Debt instruments: 19,847 71,457 20,747,742 9,576,147 
- measured at fair value 
through profit or loss 20 71,457 
- mandatorily at fair 
value through profit or 
loss 19 19,847 
- at fair value through 
other comprehensive 
income 16 20,747,742 
- at amortized cost 17 9,576,147 
Equity instruments 16 32,153 
Financial assets at 
historical cost 
Other financial assets 25 79,840 
Total financial assets ~ ~ 2g Z4Zi'.Z42 ~ 61,558,g2z 
Derivatives financial 
liabilities 14 3,872 
Deposits from banks 27 1,663,105 
Deposits from customers 28 72,744,806 
Borrowings from banks 179,055 
and other financial 
institutions 29 
Debt securities issued 30 

2,137,255 

Subordinated liabilities 31 1,434,229 

Lease liabilities 34 
98,723 

Other financial liabilities 36 329,985 
Total financial liabilities - ~ - - zR58z 158 - = = 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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amount 

11,971,816 

1,294 

8,305,674 

31,624,550 
31,624,550„ 

30,415,193 

71,457 

19,847 

20,747,742 
9,576,147 

32,153 

5,000 
79,840 

82,435,52Q 

3,872 
1,663,105 

72,744,806 
179,055 

2,137,255 

1,434,229 

98,723 

329,985 
zR591.g3g 
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(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Bank 

FVOCI- FVOCI 
Mandatorily debt At 

31 December 2022 at instrume equity amortized 
FVI'PL instru cost 

Note FVI'PL nts ments 
Cash and balance at 
central banks 13 10,104,087 
Derivatives financial assets 14 
Loans and advances to 
banks and public 
institutions 15 6,119,331 
Loans and advances to 
customers: 18 29,242,809 
- at amortized cost 29,242,809 
Debt instruments: 16,341 6,289 10,342,981 4,770,943 
- measured at fair value 
through profit or loss 20 6,289 
- mandatorily at fair value 
through profit or loss 19 16,341 
- at fair value through 
other comprehensive 
income 16 10,342,981 
- at amortized cost 17 4,770,943 
Equity instruments 16 26,273 
Other financial assets 25 88,966 
Total financial assets ~ ~ 1Q!3~2 981 ~ 50,326~136 
Derivatives financial 
liabilities 14 24,950 
Deposits from banks 27 2,698,249 
Deposits from customers 28 52,432,793 
Borrowings from banks 278,242 
and other financial 
institutions 29 
Debt securities issued 30 653,636 

Subordinated liabilities 31 1,439,628 

Lease liabilities 34 
96,475 

Other financial liabilities 36 151,264 
Total financial liabilities - ~ - - 5:Z,:Z:50 28:z - - = 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Page 115 of 167 

Total 
carrying 
amount 

10,104,087 
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29,242,809 
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6,289 

16,341 

10,342,981 
4,770,943 

26,273 
88,966 

~ 18020 

24,950 
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96,475 

151,264 
sz Z:Z:5 23:z 

This version of the financial statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. Ali possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedence over this 
translation. 



CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

5 NETINTERESTINCOME 

6 

Interest income calculated using the 
effective interest method arising from: 
Current accounts, deposits loans and advances to 
banks 
Treasury bills, bonds and other Investment 
securities 
Loans and advances to customers, out of which: 

Interest income on impaired loans 
Modification loss not determined by credit risk 
FGCR interest income - Government programs 

Total interest income 
Interest expense related to financial 
liabilities measured at amortized cost 
arising from: 
Savings instruments from customers 
Current accounts and term deposits from customers 
Loans and deposits from banks 
lnterest expense on lease liabilities 

Other borrowed funds 
Subordinated Ioan 
Debt securities issued 
Total interest expense 
Net interest income 

NET COMMISSION INCOME 

Commission income 
Commissions from operations with cards 
Commissions from cash transactions 
Commissions from current accounts opening 
Other commissions 
Total commissions from contracts with 
customers 
Commissions from financial guarantees and 
Ioan commitments given 
Total commissions income 

Group 

404,994 

2,759,815 

125,077 

(544) 

229 

4,086,426 

2,138,112 

69,200 

758 
302 

141,972 

101,914 

2,452.258 

1,634.169 

Group 
2023 

118,996 
62,628 

124,003 

55,298 
360,926 

36,392 

39z.31s 

468,506 

1,998,393 

93,319 
(4,418) 

2,624.941 

29 
866,229 

95,211 
562 

476 

123,145 

284 

1.085.936 

1.539.005 

2022 

104,566 

69,731 

129,729 

49,357 
353,383 

19,371 

3z2,z54 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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404,097 

921,389 

2,759,815 

125,077 

L5Ml 

4,085.301 

2,138,112 

69,200 

758 
302 

141,972 

101,914 

2,452.258 

1.633.043 

2022 

468,506 

1,998,393 

93,319 

(4,418) 

2,624 941 

29 
866,229 

95,211 

562 

476 

123,145 

284 

1.085.936 

1.539.005 

Bank 
2023 2022 

118,996 104,566 
62,628 69,731 

124,034 129,729 

55,298 49,357 
360,956 353,383 

24,097 19,371 

385.053 3z2,z54 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

NET COMMISSION INCOME (CONTINUED) 
Commission expense 
Commissions for inter-bank transactions 49,774 
Commissions for financial risk insurance 3,404 
Commissions for financial services frL3fu 
Total commission expense 120!539 

Net commission income 2:z6i'ZZ9 

37,974 49,743 
1,908 3,404 

61,980 frL3fu 
101,862 120,508 

2:zo,892 264,545 

The income from commissions and charges and commissions comes from the financial services 
offered/received by the bank and includes: commission on commitments of financial guarantees, 
commissions on card transactions, cash management fees, investment advice and financial planning, 
asset management services as well as credit risk insurance expenses for the Ioan and debt portfolio. 

Trading fees arising from transactions in securities, collection and payment services, exchanges, 
document transmission to customers, etc. are usually recorded at the time the service is provided. 

Fees related to continuous management, account management, deposit and custody services, asset 
management and payment cards are normally recognized over time during the duration of the 
contract. The income is measured on a linear basis and is distributed evenly, usually monthly, over 
the duration of the contract. 

The fees on loans granted other than those related to initiation which are part of the actual interest 
income shall be either recorded at the time the service is provided or recognized over time during the 
duration of the contract, based on the type of services provided. 

The amount of Commission income is determined on the basis of contractual terms. 

Commission income from contracts with customers are measured on the basis of consideration 
specified in a contract with a customer. 
The Bank and the Group recognizes revenue when transferring control of a service to a customer. 
The following table provides information on the nature and timing of performance obligations in 
customer contracts, including significant payment terms, as well as related revenue recognition 
policies. 

37,974 
1,908 

61,980 

101,862 

2:zo!892 

Types of services N ature and timing of performance obligations, including 
signîficant payment deadlines 

Income recognitîon 
policies în accordance 
with IFRS 15 

Retail and 
corporate banking The Bank provides bankîng services to retail and 

corporate customers, încluding current account 
management, interbank transactions, cash transactions, 
card transactions, cash collection services, tax collection 
services due to authorities, SGB issue/ change, online 
transaction services, insurance intermediation, other 
financial services. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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provided. 
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time when the 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

Cash transactions, card transactions, SGB issue/change, 
are charged to the customer's account when the 
transaction takes place. 

Account management fees, cash collection services, tax 
collection services, insurance intermediation are levied 
on a monthly basis. 

The Bank provides security custody services for which it 
Asset management charges a custody commission. 
service The custody commission is calculated monthly and 

retained from the current account of the client. 

Revenue from banking 
services is recognized 
over time as services are 
provided. 

7 NET LOSS FROM FINANCIAL DERIV ATIVES 

8 

9 

Groun Bank 
2023 2022 2023 2022 

Loss from foreign exchange derivative 5L9ZZ 154,4:zz 5L9ZZ 154,4:zz 
transactions 
Total ~ 154.4zz ~ 154,4ZZ 

Transactions includes gains and losses from forward contracts and currency swaps. 
The variation in 2023 compared to 2022 is due to the decrease in the number of currency swap 
transactions. 

OTHER OPERATING INCOME 
Groun Bank 
2023 2022 2023 

Income from other operations 7,035 7,935 6,936 
Income from dividends 1,668 6,850 1,668 

Rental income 5,508 5,001 5,508 

Total ~ ~ ~ 

STAFFCOSTS 
Groun Bank 
2023 2022 2023 

Wages and salaries 486,746 441,793 480,858 
Other social security 10,968 9,943 10,822 
contributions 
Other staff costs 43,428 35,254 43,283 
Provisions for other employee 6,234 5,890 4,237 
benefits 
Provision for employee benefits U41) (2,500) i3991 
upon the termination of the 
employment contract (i) 
Total 542,235 490.380 538,801 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 fonn an integral part of these financial statements. 
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(i) As at 31.12.2023 the Bank set up provisions for funds to support the early retirement 
programme applicable in 2024 in the amount of RON 4,601 thousand. 

FGCR is obliged to pay upon the retirement of employees a benefit equivalent to four salaries in the 
month of retirement for employees with more than 10 years of service and two salaries in the month 
of retirement for employees with less than 10 years of service. 
At 31 December 31 2023, the Group has provisions for post-employment benefits in the amount of 
RON 4,859 thousand. 

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 
Groun Bank 

2023 2022 2023 2022 

Third parties expenses (i) 36,490 34.497 36,101 34.497 
Advertising and publicity 7,565 22.321 7,413 22.321 

Materials and inventories 11,250 14.975 10,634 14.975 
Othertaxes 60,778 59.416 60,740 59.416 
Provisions for litigations and for interna} or externa} 

2,944 (743) 2,647 (743) fraud (Note 30) 
Other operating expenses 8,096 5.707 7,954 5.707 
Rent expenses 2,675 2.941 2,653 2.941 
Travel and transportation expenses 16,509 15.494 16,464 15.494 
Expenses with deposits' guarantee fund 39,925 51.911 39,925 51.911 
Repairs and maintenance of property and equipment 131,524 123.769 131,296 123.769 
Expenses with post and telecommunications 34,475 28.370 34,397 28.370 
(Gain)/ Loss on sale offixed assets and investment 

(2,402) (3.619) (2,402) (3.619) property 
Net charge for impairment of other financial and 

635 Z3Z 635 Z3Z non-financial assets (Note 23 and Note 24) 
Total 350,064 3ss.zz6 348,osz 355.zz6 
(i) At 31 December 2023, the Group's amount also includes the total fees charged by the statutory 

auditor in the amount of RON 3,063 thousand (2022: RON 3,176 thousand)as follows: 
Bank: 

FGCR: 

• total fees for the statutory audit of the consolidated and individual annual financial 
statements for the financial year 2023 in the amount of RON 1,223 thousand, (2022: 1,008 
thousand lei), of which unbilled amounts for the financial year 2023 in the amount of RON 
856 thousand (2022: RON 690 thousand); 
• total fees for other non statutory assurance services in the amount of RON 1,400 thousand 
(2022: RON 1,835 thousand); 
• other non-audit services allowed by the legislation in force in the amount of RON 276 
thousand (2022: RON 333 thousand). 

At 31 December 2023, the value includes the total fees related to the financial exercise charged by the 
statutory auditor in the amount of RON 164 thousand, representing the statutory audit of the annual 
financial statements. The Fund had no expenses with services other than those of statutory audit 
allowed by the legislation in force or other non-audit services. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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11 IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
Group 

--------'2=-0=-=2=2 --------'2=-0=2_3 --------'2=-0~2=2 

Net impairment loss on loans and 
advances to customers 
Net charge with adjustments for expected 
loss on current account and deposits with 
NBR 

Net charge/release with adjustments for 
expected losses on correspondent 
accounts, deposits and loans with credit 
institutions 
Losses from non-recoverable receivables 
not covered by adjustments for expected 
loss of credit 
Provision for Ioan commitments and 
financial guarantees given 
Recoveries from loans sold 
Recoveries from loans previously written 
off 
Income from debt recovery (Euro 
sources) FGCR 
Net loss from impairment of debt 
instruments 
Total net charge with adjustments for 
expected credit losses 

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 

485,508 

288 

3,723 

2,084 

(746) 

(14,738) 

(94,793) 

388,655 

318 

(3,798) 

3,853 

32,619 

(47,233) 

(114,184) 

334.624 

Group 
2023 

3,691 

2,084 

(746) 

(14,738) 

(94,793) 

MM 

388,666 

2022 

318 

(3,798) 

3,853 

32,619 

(47,233) 

334.624 

Bank 
2023 2022 

Current tax expense at 16 % (2022: 16%) of 
taxable 

profits determined in accordance with 
Romanian law 

78,459 89,899 77,682 89,899 

Expense / (Income) from deferred tax (see Note 

31) 

Income tax expense/ (credit) 

(2,032) (7,445) (2,022) 

82,454 ~ 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted at 
the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior periods. 
Income tax is equal with the value of payable/recoverable income tax considering the taxable 
profit/ fiscal loss over a period of time. 

Deferred tax is determined using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences 
between the tax base for calculating the tax on assets and liabilities and their book value carrying 
amount. 

Deferred tax is calculated using tax rates expected tobe applied to temporary differences in the 
accounting carrying value of assets and liabilities, based on the effective legislation at the reporting 
date. The tax rate used to calculate the current and deferred tax position at 31 December 2023 is 
16% (2022: 16%). 

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all temporary differences between the tax base and the 
carrying amount of assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date, and for unused tax credits and 
losses carried forward in the next period to the extent that it is probable that a future taxable profit, 
on which these temporary differences and unused tax credits and losses can be attributed. 

Reconciliation of profit before tax to current tax expense in the income statement 

Group Bank 
2023 2022 2023 2022 

Profit before tax 616,572 506,780 591,468 506,780 
Theoretical tax charge at statutory rate of 

98,652 81,085 94,635 
16% (2022: 16%) 

The tax effect of non-deductible expenses of 48,303 43,586 47,902 
8.10% (2022: 8.60%) 

Tax effect of non-taxable income of 4.45% (26,711) (19,758) (26,335) 
(2022: 3.90%) 

Tax deductions of 3.58% (2022: 3.46%) (21,194) (17,513) (21,194) 

Establishment and reversal of temporary 368 
differences 
Sponsorship and reinvested profit tax credit (15,755) (8,106) (15,716) 
of 2.66% (2022: 1.60%) 
ltems similar to expense and income of (1,611) 10,605 (1,611) 
0.27% (2022: (2.09%)) 

lncome tax expense / (credit) for the year 78,459 89,899 77,681 
Effective tax rate 12.73% 17.74% 13.13% 

Non-deductible expenses include negative fair value adjustments of financial assets, losses from the 
revaluation of fixed assets, fuel expenses and various other non-deductible operating expenses. 
Non-taxable income includes the reversal of provisions for financial assets which were previously 
non-deductible expenses and income coming from dividends and other sundry non-taxable income. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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13 CASH AND BALANCES AT CENTRAL BANK 
Group Bank 

31 December 31 December u December u December 
2023 2022 2023 2022 

Cash on hand 919,285 1,088,633 919,279 1,088,633 

Cash inATM's 438,488 354,905 438,488 354,905 
Mandatory minimum reserve (i) 9,972,665 7,064,606 9,972,665 7,064,606 
Other current accounts held with 
the National Bank of Romania 

642,791 1,562,061 642,791 1,562,061 
(other than mandatory minimum 
reserve) 
Expected credit losses {1,4oz) ll.,.lS1) {1,407} ll.,.lS1) 

Cash and balance at Central Bank ll19:z11822 10!069!054 ll19:z11816 1Qi069iQ54 

(i) The mandatory minimum reserve is maintained in accordance with Regulation no. 6/2002 
issued by the National Bank of Romania and the subsequent changes and amendments. 
According to this regulation, the Bank is required to maintain a minimum average balance 
of mandatory reserve throughout the reporting period (monthly basis). The amounts from 
the mandatory reserve accounts are readily available for the use of the Bank according to the 
liquidity needs and strategy, subject to achieving the minimum reserve as an average for the 
reporting period. 

At 31 December 2023 the mandatory minimum reserve was set at 8% (31 December 2022: 8%) for 
funds attracted from customers in RON and 5% (31 December 2022: 5%) for foreign currency 
denominated funds attracted. The interest rate granted by the National Bank of Romania for the 
current accounts in RON during 2023 ranged between 0.69% and 0.82% p.a. (2022 between 0.13% 

and 0.70% p.a.). For the current account in EUR, the National Bank of Romania granted during 
2023 an interest ranged between 0.02% and 0.11% p.a. (2022: between o% and 0.02% p.a.). For the 
current account in USD, the National Bank of Romania granted during 2023 an interest ranged 
between 0.08% and 0.39% p.a. (2022: between 0.01% and 0.09% p.a.). 
As at 31 December 2023 the amounts presented in the statement of financial position regarding cash 
and balance at Central Bank are current and not impaired. 

14 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR V ALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 

Group 
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 

2023 2022 2023 2022 

Financial derivatives 
Financial assets which are required 
to be measured at fair value 
through profit or loss 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Financial assets held for trading 
and measured at fair value through 
profit or loss 
Financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss 

Financial derivatives 

Financial derivatives 

2M5Z 

22,630 

Group 
3 1 December 2023 

As set Liability 

~ 3&zg 

Bank 
3 1 December 2023 

Asset Liability 

3&zg 

2M5Z 6,289 

92,598 22,630 

3 1 December 2022 

Asset Liability 

24,950 

3 1 December 2022 

Asset Liability 

24,950 

In accordance with IFRS 9, the Group's 's derivatives are measured at fair value through profit or 
loss. 
The table below sets out fair values, at the end of the reporting period, of currencies receivable or 
payable under foreign exchange forward and swap contracts entered into by the Bank. The table 
reflects gross positions before the netting of any counterparty positions (and payments) and covers 
the contracts with settlement dates after the end of the respective reporting period. 
The contracts are short-term as follows: 

Notional Notional 

3 1 December 2023 3 1 December 2022 
Contracts Contracts Contracts Contracts 

witha witha witha witha 
positive negative positive negative 

resuit resuit resuit resuit 

FX swap contracts at fair values 31 
December 
Receivable amounts-RON 174,886 40,608 1,095,636 

Payable amounts-RON (1,045,487) (249,129) 

Receivable amounts-EUR 1,045,835 248,893 197,276 

Payable amounts-EUR (195,205) (331,836) (1,119,755) 
Receivable amounts- other 
currencies 21,209 287,606 

Payable amounts-other currencies (197,783) 
Derivatives held for risk 
management ~ (3,858) - (24,626) -

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Derivative instruments concluded by the Group are, generally, traded on an over-the-counter market 
with professional counterparties in standard contractual terms and conditions. Derivative 
instruments have favourable potential (assets) or unfavourable potential Oiability) depending on 
fluctuations in market interest rates, foreign exchange rates or other variables related to their terms. 
Aggregate fair value of derivative assets and liabilities can fluctuate significantly from time to time. 
Certain monetary items denominated in a foreign currency are economically safeguarded using FX 
swap contracts as set out in the table above. The Group does not use hedge accounting for its currency 
derivative contracts. Fair value of derivatives is determined using the market quotations or 
discounted cash flow models, as appropriate. 
The increase in the volume of trading with derivatives during 2023 generated a net loss of RON 
57,927 thousand (2022: RON 154,477 thousand). 

The structure of financial assets which are required to be measured at fair value through profit or 
loss is presented in the table below: 

3 1 Decemher 2023 3 1 December 2022 

Debt instruments 
Total 

~ 

~ 

The structure of financial assets held for trading and measured at fair value through profit or loss is 
presented in the table below: 

Debt instruments 

Total 

3 1 Decemher 2023 

ZL451 

~ 

3 1 Decemher 2022 

6,289 
6,289 

Securities held for trading, measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) are securities that 
cannot be classified as measured at amortized cost or measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income. 
The classification decision for securities in the trading portfolio - FVTPL is taken at the time of the 
transaction, depending on the objectives of the Group. 

The management of the Group has assessed that the sale is essential to achieve the objectives of the 
business model, as sales are expected to be performed to achieve the objectives mentioned above. 

Based on previous experience, the Group has made sales to achieve its objectives, so it can be 
appreciated that sales are an integral part of managing the performance of these instruments. 

Thus, based on the above, the Group's business model for this treasury instrument portfolio is "held 
for sale". 
The securities include bonds denominated in RON issued by the Ministry of Finance. 
Ratings for investment securities classified as financial assets held for trading at fair value through 
profit or loss portfolio are detailed in Note 3. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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15 LOANS AND ADV ANCES TO BANKS AND PUBLIC INSTITUTIONS 
Group 

31 

Bank 

December 31December 31December 31December 
2023 2022 2023 

Current accounts held with other banks 638,468 572,118 638,468 

Term deposits with other banks and 
5,078,382 

public institutions 
7,337,691 7,304,012 

Sight deposits with other banks 40,398 40,000 

Collateral deposits with other banks 6,916 28,959 6,916 

Reverse repo transactions 51,837 
Loans and advances to credit institutions 321,301 389,098 321,301 

Expected credit losses ~ lL31fil (5.023) 

Total 8,339!662 6!119,oz6 8!3os,6z4 

As at 31 December 2023 the Bank has aterm deposit with SMBC BANK EU AG, FRANKFURT of 
RON 647,404 thousand, aterm deposit with Credit Europe Bank NV of RON 274,096 thousand 
and term deposits with the State Treasury in the amount of RON 5,507,119 thousand. 

Also, as at 31 December 2022 the Bank also held term deposit with IDEA BANK SA of RON 24,919 

thousand, aterm deposit with BARCLAYS BANK LONDON of RON 47,631 thousand and term 
deposits with the State Treasury in the amount of RON 5,005,832 thousand. 

As at 31 December 2023 the Bank has a collateral deposit concluded for VISA through the financial 
institution JP Morgan Collateral Custodian Services of RON 2,811 thousand (2022: RON 2,725 

thousand) and a collateral deposit for MasterCard through HSBC Bank London of RON 612 thousand 
(2022: RON 601 thousand), a collateral deposit for Swap through JP Morgan of RON 3,390 thousand 
(2022: RON 11,149 thousand), and a collateral deposit for Swap through CITIBANK PLC of RON 101 

thousand (2022: RON 7,982 thousand). 

The obligation for holding such collateral deposits is necessary to cover the amounts carried / settled 
periodically by the organization. Value of collateral deposits is established depending on the 
transactional volume of each organization. 
Organizations can regularly request the update of the value of deposits maintained in their favour. 
Contracts are valid during the period in which they are members of organizations licensed by VISA 
and MasterCard. 
Current accounts and sight and term deposits with other banks are at the disposal of the Bank and 
are not restricted. Credit ratings ofbanks are presented in Note 3. 
Except for reverse sale and repurchase agreements, amounts due from other banks are not 
collateralised. 
As at 31 December 2023 the Bank did not perform reverse repo transactions. 
As at 31 December 2022 the Bank made reverse repo transactions with Banca Transilvania in a gross 
amount of RON 51,837 thousand (2021: RON o) with maturity date on 23 January 2023. The Bank 
has a right to sell or repledge securities with a fair value of RON 49,881 thousand received under 
reverse sale and repurchase agreements. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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16 FINANCIALASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVEINCOME 
a) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 

Group Bank 
31 December 31December 31December 31December 

2023 2022 2023 2022 

Government bonds 20,747,742 10,342,981 20,747,742 10,342,981 
Equity investments (Note 16 

32,153 26,273 32,153 26,273 
b) 

Total 20,zzg,895 10,369,254 20,zzg,895 10,369 254 

Government bonds measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are bonds for 
which the contractual cash flows are SPPl-compliant and they are held within a business model 
whose objective is achieved by both to collect contractual cash flows and sell the assets. 

The Group's objectives for the sub-portfolio of government bonds are as follows: 
ensuring the required liquidity levei of the Group; 
ensuring the profitability of the Group's investments; 
improving the yield and maturity of the portfolio of government securities. 

Ratings for investment securities classified as financial assets measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income portfolio issued by the Ministry of Finance are detailed in Note 3, page 74. 
The evolution of securities in the category "Financial assets measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income" is shown in the following table: 

Group Bank 

2023 2022 2023 
Opening balance at 1 January 10,342,981 12,763,962 10,342,981 
Acquisitions 33,665,931 1,397,885 33,665,931 
Sales and Redemptions (23,964,202) (3,547,736) (23,964,202) 
Accrued interest income 545,650 347,943 545,650 
Interest income receivable (391,183) (457,451) (391,183) 

Foreign exchange differences 58,315 304,980 58,315 
Gain/Ooss) from changes in fair value, 

490,250 (466,602) 490,250 out of which: 
Gain/Ooss) from changes in fair value (16,810) (1,686) (16,810) from sales 
Gain/Ooss) from changes in fair value 

507,060 (464,916) 507,060 from mark-to-market 
Balance at 31 December 20,747,742 10,342,981 20,747,742 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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2022 

12,763,962 

1,397,885 
(3,547,736) 

347,943 

(457,451) 

304,980 

(466,602) 

(1,686) 

(464,916) 

10,342,981 
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16 FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT F AIR V ALUE THROUGH OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED) 

b) The Bank held the following financial equity investments measured at fair 
value through other comprehensive income at 31 December 2023= 

Name Nature of business Country 
Percentage Carrying 

held Amount 
Biroul de credit SA Credit risk monitoring Romania 4.74 2,743 

FRGCSA 
Fond for Guaranteeing Loans 

Romania 3.10 190 
for Private Investors 

TransFonD SA Interbank transfers Romania 2.69 9,038 

SWIFT Transfer of funds Belgium <0,01 519 
United 

VISA Inc. Processing card transactions States of <0,01 19,663 
America 

Total ~ 

The Bank held the following equity investments at 31 December 2022: 

Name N ature of business Country 
Percentage Carrying 

held Amount 
Biroul de credit SA Credit risk monitoring Romania 4.74 1,920 

FRGCSA 
Fond for Guaranteeing 

Romania 3.10 470 
Loans for Private Investors 

TransFonD SA Interbank transfers Romania 2.69 7,232 

SWIFT Transfer of funds Belgium <0,01 475 
United 

VISA Inc. Processing card transactions States of <0,01 16,176 

America 
Total ~ 

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the equity investments held by CEC Bank were not 
pledged. 

Equity instruments are normally measured at fair value through profit or loss. 

However, in accordance with IFRS 9.5.7.1 (b), 5.7.5, at initial recognition, the Bank may make an 
irrevocable instrumental choice to present in other comprehensive income the subsequent changes 
in the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument that is neither held for trading nor is it a 
contingent consideration recognized by a buyer in a business combination to which IFRS 3 "Business 
combinations" applies. In this situation, gains and losses are measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income, without being recycled to the profit or loss account. 

Equity instruments from the Bank's portfolio are designated at fair value through other 
comprehensive income. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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17 FINANCIALASSESTSAT AMORTIZED COST-DEBT INSTRUMENTS 
Group Bank 

31December 31December 31December 31December 
2023 2022 2023 2022 

Government bonds 8,639,636 4,539,686 8,625,879 4,539,686 
Bonds issued by credit 
institutions 677,553 111,108 677,553 111,108 

Bonds issued by non-financial 
corporations 44,<?08 43,489 44,008 43,489 
Bonds issued by local public 
administration 233,076 78,421 233,076 78,421 

Expected credit losses {4,369) (1,761) (4,369) (1,761) 

Total ~M189i902 4!ZZ0i943 9i5Z6!14z 4iZZoi943 
Investments' classification as debt instruments at amortized cost depends both on the conditions and 
characteristics of the financial assets and on the ability and effective intention of the Bank to bold 
these instruments until maturity. 
Government bonds measured at amortized cost are bonds for which the contractual cash flows are 
SPPI-compliant and they are held within a business model whose objective is to collect contractual 
cash flows. 
Between 2014 and 2023, the Group did not record sales from this sub-portfolio of government 
securities, which were held until maturity. 
As at 31 December 2023, investments in debt instruments at amortized cost include bonds which are 
pledged securities of RON 82,500 thousand (31 December 2022: RON 82,500 thousand) for 
operations with Visa, MasterCard and Sent ( electronic settlement system for small local currency 
payments). The counterparty cannot subsequently sell or pledge these assets. 
Additionally, at 31 December 2023, investments in debt instruments at amortized cost also include 
pledged securities for the borrowing with the EIB with a fair value of RON 55.286 thousand (31 

December 2022: RON 126,263 thousand). The counterparty cannot sell or pledge these investments. 
In addition, as at 31 December 2023, the Bank entered into repo-type transactions with other banks, 
supported by investments in debt instruments at amortized cost whose canying amount is RON 
1,131,698 thousand (2022: RON 320,258 thousand). The securities pledged under repo agreements 
may be sold or repledged by the counterparty. 
During 2023, the Bank did not sell investment securities classified as investments in debt 
instruments at amortized cost. 
Qualitative analysis of the financial assets measures at amortized cost - debt instruments as at 31 

December 2023 and 31 December 2022, depending on the issuer's rating: 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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FINANCIAL ASSESTS AT AMORTIZED COST - DEBT INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Group 
Non-

Credit financial Public 
31 December 2023 Government institutions com orations administration 
Debt instruments, of 
which: 8,638,483 675,311 43,064 233,045 

B+ 43,064 

BB+ 280,217 

BB- 49,986 
BBB- 8,638,483 233,045 
BBB 25,141 

BBB+ 151,578 
BAA1 168,389 

Bank 
Non-

Credit financial Public 
31 December 2023 Government institutions com orations administration 
Debt instruments, of 
which: 8,624,727 675,311 43,064 233,045 

B+ 43,064 

BB+ 280,217 

BB- 49,986 
BBB- 8,624,727 233,045 
BBB 25,141 

BBB+ 151,578 
BAA1 168,389 

Non-
Credit financial Public 

31 December 2022 Government institutions corporations administration 
Debt instruments, of 
which: 4,539,080 110,752 42,701 78,410 

B+ 42,701 
BB- 49,745 
BBB- 4,539,080 61,007 78,410 

The movement of securities în the categocy financial assets measured at amortized cost - debt 
instruments is shown in the table below: 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Total 

9,589,903 

43,064 

280,217 

49,986 

8,871,528 

25,141 

151,578 

168,389 

Total 

9,576,147 

43,064 

280,217 

49,986 

8,857,772 

25,141 

151,578 

168,389 

Total 

4,770,943 

42,701 

49,745 

4,678,497 

This version of the financial statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
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Group Hank 

2023 2022 2023 2022 

Opening balance at 1 January 4,770,943 2,332,805 4,770,943 2,332,805 
FGCR's securities at acquisition date 22 

Acquisitions 4,646,820 2,422,681 4,633,071 2,422,681 

Maturities (13) (27,114) (27,114) 

Accrued interest income 375,968 120,563 375,739 120,563 

Interest income receivable (214,054) (80,135) (213,825) (80,135) 

Foreign exchange differences 12,826 3,262 12,826 3,262 

Expected credit losses (2,609) (1,119) (2,607) (1,119) 

Balance at 31 December 9,589,903 4,770,943 9,576,147 4,770,943 

18 LOANS ANO ADV ANCES TO CUSTOMERS 

The Group's objective for the Ioan portfolio is to generate loans to collect contractual cash flows. 

The Group's expectations regarding future loans sales are in line with previous practice, respectively 
the sale of non-performing loans onor off balance sheet, under favorable price conditions. 

In accordance with IFRS 9, paragraph B4.1.3, sales due to the increase in credit risk of assets are in 
line with a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets to collect contractual cash flows. 

Considering the fact that in the previous years, the Bank has made sales to maintain a lower levei of 
nonperforming assets in its portfolio, according to the NBR's recommendations; sales are in line with 
the ownership model for collection. 

In addition, the Group does not manage the Ioan portfolio on a fair value basis or other performance 
indicators that may indicate that the business model is not in line with the objective of holding for 
collection. 

Thus, based on the above, the Group's business model for the Ioan portfolio is "held to collect 
contractual cash flows". 
The Group's loans and advances to customers are for legal entities and individuals living in Romania. 
The focus ofthe Group's portfolio ofloans granted to customers by category of clients, type of credit 
for individuals, respectively the field of activity for legal entities as at 31 December 2023 and 31 
December 2022 is: 

31 December 2023 31 December 2022 

Individuals - personal needs loans fully collateralised 
with real estate collaterals 
Individuals - personal needs loans without real 
estate collaterals or not fully covered 
Individuals - Mortgage loans 
Cards/ Overdraft 
Total loans for individuals 

231,680 

1,774,621 

6,901,377 
480,763 

9!388!~~11 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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7,306,237 
363,950 
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18 LOANS AND ADV ANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED) 

Legal entities Agriculture 3,146,381 

Public local administrations 2,553,330 
Legal entities Industry 5,685,702 

Legal entities Commerce 3,375,679 
Legal entities Construction 2,286,972 

Legal entities Services 6,406,545 
Bridge loans for subsides 668.8oz 

Total corporate loans and advances 24,123,416 
Total loans advances to customers (gross) 33.511.857 
Adjustments for expected credit loss (1,887,307) 
Total loans and advances to customers (net) 31.624.550 

2,572,407 

3,006,359 
4,848,880 

2,728,053 
1,882,492 

5,898,179 

430.199 
21,366,569 

30.sz2,z84 
(1,648.747} 

29,224.037 
The effect of changing expected loss for loans and advances to customers can be analysed on 31 
December 2023 as follows: 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 Total 
Opening balance at 1 January 264,605 269,151 1,114,991 1,648,747 

Transfer to Stage 1 37,633 (29,938) (7,695) 

Transfer to Stage 2 (14,539) 140,896 (126,357) 

Transfer to Stage 3 (8,153) (16,205) 24,358 

Increase due to new loans granted in the year 70,637 28,879 6,509 106,025 
Decreases due to closed loans in year (24,546) (40,634) (41,908) (107,088) 

Net remeasurement during the year 9,277 (51,635) 528,929 486,571 
Write-off (309,157) (309,157) 
Interest adjustments 64,582 64,582 

Other adjustments ~ l8s3} (1,095) (2,373) 

Closing balance at 31 December 334.489 299,661 1,253.157 1,88z,3oz 

During 2023 the Bank has written off loans granted to customers in gross value of RON 309,157 
thousand by directly reducing the irrecoverable loans fully covered by the allowances for expected 
losses. 
In 2023, the Bank has concluded Ioan sale agreements with third party entities. Assignments were 
made by selling individual receivables in gross carrying amount of RON 20,444 thousand on-balance 
sheet receivable and in the amount of RON 1,344 thousand off-balance sheet receivable. 
At 31 December 2023 has been registered a gain of RON 14,738 thousand. This amount is found on 
the credit position of "Net impairment loss on loans and advances to customers" in the statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The sale agreement is without recourse. 
As at 31 December 2022, the breakdown of expected credit loss for client receivables is detailed by 
customer groups according to the field of activity in Note 3. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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18 LOANS AND ADV ANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED) 

The effect of changing expected loss for loans and advances to RETAIL customers in 2023 was as 
follows: 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 Total 

Opening balance at 1 January 21,805 5,138 120,877 147,820 

Transfer to Stage 1 3,829 (407) (3,422) 

Transfer to Stage 2 (198) 4,011 (3,813) 

Transfer to Stage 3 (438) (351) 789 

lncrease due to new loans granted in the year 9,188 1 202 9,391 

Decreases due to closed loans in year (2,750) (331) (4,835) (7,916) 

Net remeasurement during the year (1,731) (3,566) 94,650 89,353 

Write-off (81,260) (81,260) 

Interest adjustments 
Other adjustments --
Closing balance at 31 December ~ ~ 123.188 1sz,3ss 

The effect of changing expected loss for loans and advances to legal entities customers in 2023 was 
as follows: 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 
Opening balance at 1 January 242,800 264,013 994,114 

Transfer to Stage 1 33,804 (29,531) (4,273) 

Transfer to Stage 2 (14,341) 136,885 (122,544) 

Transfer to Stage 3 (7,715) (15,854) 23,569 

lncrease due to new loans granted in the year 61,449 28,878 6,307 

Decreases due to closed loans in year (21,796) (40,303) (37,073) 

Net remeasurement during the year 11,008 (48,069) 434,279 

Write-off (227,897) 

Interest adjustments 64,582 

Other adjustments 14251 1853) (1,095) 

Closing balance at 31 December 304,z84 295,166 1,129.969 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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1,500,927 

96,634 

(99,172) 

397,218 

(227,897) 
64,582 

(2,323) 

1.729,919 

This version of the financial statements îs a free translation from the original, which was prepared în Romanîan. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, în all matters of 
interpretation of information, views or opinîons, the original language version of our report takes precedence over this 
translation. 



CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(Ali amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

18 LOANS AND ADV ANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED) 

The effect of changing expected loss for loans and advances to customers can be analysed as at 31 

December 2022 as follows: 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 Total 
Opening balance at 1 J anuary 186,097 163,922 1,018,479 1,368,498 

Transfer to Stage 1 23,183 (12,877) (10,306) 

Transfer to Stage 2 (13,834) 49,318 (35,484) 

Transfer to Stage 3 (5,329) (13,810) 19,139 

lncrease due to new loans granted in the year 67,145 30,618 18,368 116,131 

Decreases due to closed loans in year (38,702) (33,476) (87,984) (160,162) 

Net remeasurement during the year 46,345 86,180 373,337 505,862 

Write-off (181,165) (181,165) 

Interest adjustments 787 787 

Other adjustments -13Qfil 17w (180) {1,204) 

Closing balance at 31 December 26~b6Q5 2691151 l111~::b991 116~81:Z~Z 

During 2022 the Bank has written off loans granted to customers in gross value of RON 181,165 
thousand by directly reducing the irrecoverable loans fully covered by the allowances for expected 
losses. 

In 2022, the Bank has concluded Ioan sale agreements with third party entities. Assignments were 
made by selling portfolios, but also by selling individual receivables. Through these contracts, there 
were sold receivables from non-performing loans, individuals and legal entities, guaranteed and 
unsecured in gross carrying amount of RON 29,945 thousand on-balance sheet receivable (net 
carrying amount of RON 274 thousand on-balance sheet receivable) andin the amount of RON 
129,809 thousand off-balance sheet receivable. 
The amount of the receivables that was collected was RON 53,484, has been registered a gain of RON 
47,233 thousand. This amount is found on the credit position of "Net impairment loss on loans and 
advances to customers" in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The sale 
agreement is without recourse. 

As at 31 December 2022, the breakdown of expected credit loss for client receivables is detailed by 
customer groups according to the field of activity in Note 3. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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18 LOANS AND ADV ANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED) 

The effect of changing expected loss for loans and advances to RETAIL customers in 2022 was as 
follows: 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 
Opening balance at 1 January 18,210 2,166 132,859 153,235 

Transfer to Stage 1 2,189 (456) (1,733) 

Transfer to Stage 2 (705) 4,794 (4,089) 

Transfer to Stage 3 (356) (425) 781 

lncrease due to new loans granted in the year 7,967 42 278 8,287 

Decreases due to closed loans in year (2,189) (150) (5,931) (8,270) 

Net remeasurement during the year (3,287) (819) 63,862 59,756 

Write-off (67,043) (67,043) 

Interest adjustments 1,913 1,913 

Other adjustments lw 1141 __(g_Q) 1sfil 
Closing balance at 31 December ~ ~ 120.877 14z,820 

The effect of changing expected loss for loans and advances to legal entities customers in 2022 was 
as follows: 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 
Opening balance at 1 January 167,887 161,756 885,620 

Transfer to Stage 1 20,994 (12,421) (8,573) 

Transfer to Stage 2 (13,129) 44,524 (31,395) 

Transfer to Stage 3 (4,973) (13,385) 18,358 

Increase due to new loans granted in the year 59,178 30,576 18,090 

Decreases due to closed loans in year (36,513) (33,326) (82,053) 

Net remeasurement during the year 49,632 86,999 309,475 

Write-off (114,122) 

Interest adjustments 1,126 

Other adjustments 1m} lz!Q} (160) 

Closing balance at 31 December 242.800 264.013 994.114 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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1,215,263 

107,844 
(151,892) 

446,106 

(114,122) 
1,126 

(1,146) 

1,500.927 
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18 LOANS AND ADV ANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED) 

The table below shows off-balance sheet receivables during the year that the Bank continues to 
pursue în the recovery process. 

31 December 2023 31 December 2022 

Derecognition of loans and advances at amortized 
cost classified în Stage 3, no prospects for recovery, 
Total 

(309,157) 

(309,157) 

(49,365) 

(49,365) 

19 

The Bank did not purchase receivables portfolios or other assets during the period 2022-2023. 
The group does not expect significant recoveries. 
Approximately 90% of the off-balance sheet receivables that still have real guarantees în the 
guarantee structure were derecognized în the period 2014-2019, the prospect of continuing 
recoveries being a distant one. The real estate remaining under collateral shows an accentuated 
depreciation being unsalable or difficult to sell, a situation confirmed by the long period elapsed since 
the start of the executions. In the current economic context, în which a reduction in transactions îs 
estimated - both în the residential real estate market and in the market for other real estate, it îs 
estimated that the off-balance sheet recoveries will be reduced compared to historical values. 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Group 

Technical 
Other 

installations, 
installations Assets equipment 

:..andand and incourse of and 
mildings machinery :onstruction furniture Total 

Gross costat 1 January 2022 632,007 311,899 10,736 47,027 1,001,669 
Additions (*) 4,197 51,102 14,905 
Transfers 9,149 223 (9,374) 
Disposals (2,533) (45,262) (9) 
Reclassifications from/to property and 
equipment to/from investment 11,883 l39fil 
property 
Gross cost at 31 December 2022 654:zo3 31z,962 ~ 
Gross costat 1 January 2023 654,703 317,962 15,860 
FGCR acquisition 3,878 1,108 
Additions (*) 1,347 60,434 29,335 
Transfers 10,587 369 (10,945) 
Disposals Cs) (19,893) 
Reclassifications from/to property and 

1,788 (283) 
equipment to investment property 
Revaluation expenses (209) 

Revenue from revaluation 46 
Revaluation's impact 229 

Gross cost at 31 December 2023 672 364 359.980 ~ 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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(152) 

50.292 

This version of the financial statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedence over this 
translation. 

73,648 

(49,973) 

!M8s 

1,036,829 
1,036,829 

5,006 
93,247 

(20,050) 

1,505 

(209) 

46 
229 

1,116,603 
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19 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 

Gross costat 1 January 2022 
Additions (*) 
Transfers 
Disposals 
Reclassifications from property and 
equipment to investment property 
Gross costat 31 December 2022 
Gross costat 1 January 2023 
Additions (*) 
Transfers 
Disposals 
Reclassifications from/to property and 
equipment to investment property 
Gross cost at 31 December 2023 

....andand 
mildings 

632,007 
4,197 
9,149 

(2,533) 

11.883 

654.zo3 
654,703 

1,347 
10,587 

(s) 

1,788 

668,420 

Bank 

Technical 
installations Assets 

and in course of 
machinery =onstruction 

311,899 10,736 
51,102 14,905 

223 (9,374) 
(45,262) (9) 

l39fil 

31z.962 ~ 
317,962 15,860 
59,845 29,335 

369 (10,945) 
(19,893) 

- _(g_83} --

358.282 ~ 
Group 

Other 
installations, 

equipment 
and 

furniture 
47,027 
3,444 

2 

(2,169) 

48.304 
48,304 

2,131 
(lll 

(152) 

Total 
1,001,669 

73,648 

(49,973) 

!L48.s 

1.036.829 
1,036,829 

92,658 

(20,050) 

1,5Q5 

1.110.942 

Other 
Technical Assets installations, 

Accumulated depreciation at 1 
January 2022 
Depreciation charge for the year 
Disposals 
Accumulated depreciation from property, 
and equipment to investment property 
Accumulated depreciation at 31 
December 2022 
Accumulated depreciation at 1 

January2023 
FGCR post-acquisition PPA adjustments 
Depreciation charge for the year 
Disposals 
Accumulated depreciation from property, 
and equipment to investment property 
Accumulated depreciation at 31 
December 2023 
Net book value at 31 December 2022 
Net book value at 31 December 2023 

Land and installations in course of 
lmildings and machinery !onstruction 

32,672 213,547 

56,622 

4 
26,291 

82,898 

598.081 
589 466 

192,432 

192,432 

56 
33,583 

(19,337) 

206.734 

125.530 
153.246 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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equipment 
and furniture 

3'8,708 

1,750 
(2,047) 

--

~ 

38,411 

2 

2,109 

(155) 
--

~ 

~ 
~ 
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Total 

284,927 

49,852 

(47,479) 
lQ5 

28z,465 

287,465 

54 
62,146 

(19,492) 
lli1 

330.162 

z49.364 
786.440 
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19 PROPER1Y ANO EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 

Bank 

Technical Assets 
Land and installations in course of 
l>uildings and machinery :onstruction 

Accumulated depreciation at 1 

January 2022 

Depreciation charge for the year 
Disposals 
Accumulated depreciation from property, 
and equipment to investment property 
Accumulated depreciation at 31 

December 2022 

Accumulated depreciation at 1 

January 2023 

Depreciation charge for the year 
Disposals 
Accumulated depreciation from property, 
and equipment to investment property 
Accumulated depreciation at 31 

December 2023 

Net book value at 31 December 2022 

Net book value at 31 December 2023 

32,672 213,547 

24,039 
(254) 

lQ5 

56,622 

26,291 

M 

82.902 

598,081 
585.518 

24,063 

(45,178) 

192.432 

192,432 

33,583 
(19,337) 

206,678 

125,530 
151.604 

Other 
installations, 

equipment and 
furniture 

38,708 

1,750 
(2,047) 

~ 

38,411 

2,109 
(155) 

40.365 

~ 
~ 

(*)During 2023 the Bank purchased computers, laptops, IT equipment, workstations, servers, ATMs, 
multifunctional machines, telephones, furniture, air conditioners, power plants, thermal power 
plants, cars and electric car charging stations in amount of RON 64,912 thousand. 
There were also works of arrangement of the Bank's headquarters in amount of RON 29,335 

thousand. 

At 31 December 2023, the committee established by the Bank performed impairment tests of assets 
and applying professional judgment estimated that during 2023 there were no interna! signs for 
impairment in any group of assets, and there was no need to re-estimate the economic useful life, 
consequently, no depreciation allowance calculation and no accounting recording of impairment for 
assets depreciation was required. 

Also, because the market value of real estate assets did not fluctuated significantly during 2023 and 
there were no externa! indicators for assets depreciation compared with the analysis at 31 December 
2022, the management considered that the carcying amount of land and buildings at 31 December 
2023 represents a reliable estimate of fair values at the reporting date. 
As at 31 December 2023, CEC Bank owns 612 land properties and 859 buildings (as at 31 December 
2022, CEC Bank owned 622 land and 863 buildings). 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Total 

284,927 

49,852 

(47,479) 
lQ5 

28z,465 

287,465 

61,983 
(19,492) 

M 

329.945 

z49.364 
z80.99z 
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
Group 

2023 2022 

Gross cost as at 1 January 297,787 249,778 
FGCR acquisition 1,256 

Purchases 81,853 48,092 

Transfers 

Disposals (160) _ffi3) 

Gross cost as at 31 December 380,236 297,787 
Accumulated depreciation as 207,300 180,711 
at1January 
Post-acquisition PPA adjustments 59 
Depreciation charge 35,408 26,672 

Transfers 

Disposals (160) IB31 
Accumulated depreciation as 242.6oz 2oz,300 
at 31 December 
Net book value 138,129 90.48z 

Bank 

2023 2022 

297,787 249,778 

81,740 48,092 

{160) 183} 

329.367 292,zBz 

207,300 180,711 

35,350 26,672 

(160) IB31 
242.490 202,300 

136,Bzz 90.4Bz 

The balance of intangible assets for the Bank increased at 31 December 2023 compared to the 
previous year, by RON44.4 million, the increase being mainly explained by the purchases of 
software licenses. 
INVESTMENTPROPERTY 

GroupLBank 

Gross cost as at 1 January 

Purchases 
Reclassification from investment property to PPE 

Disposals 
Gross cost as at 31 December 
Accumulated depreciation and impairment as at 1 January 
Depreciation charge for the year 
lmpairment adjustments usage 
Accumulated depreciation for reclassifications from property and 
equipment 
Disposals 
Accumulated depreciation and impairment as at 31 
December 

Net book value 

2023 

92,051 

38 
(1,505) 

(3,145) 
~ 
32,179 
2,584 
(266) 

11 

(1,228) 

33.280 

~ 

2022 

112,060 

(11,485) 

(8,524) 

~ 

35,237 
2,750 

(2,246) 

(165) 

f3,39zl 

~ 

~ 
At 31 December 2023, the committee established by the Bank performed impairment tests of assets 
and applying professional judgment estimated that during 2023 there were no internai signs for 
impairment and there was no need to re-estimate the economic useful life în any group of assets, 
consequently, no depreciation allowance calculation and no accounting recording of impairment for 
assets depreciation was required. 
The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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21 INVESTMENT PROPER1Y (CONTINUED) 

The fair value of real estate investments on December 31, 2023 is worth 95,364 thousand lei (2022: 

RON 95,379 thousand). 

During 2023, the rent income from investment property has been in the amount of RON 4,216 
thousand (2022: RON 3,856 thousand). Direct operating expenses (building tax, repairs, 
maintenance) arising from investment property that did not generate rental income during 2023 was 
in the amount of RON 1,433 thousand (2022: RON 2,076 thousand). Direct operating expenses of 
investment properties that generated rental income during 2023 was in the amount of RON 898 
thousand (2022: RON 446 thousand). 

During 2023, the Bank had 6 investment property sales (4 buildings and 2 land) as a result of which 
recorded RON 803 thousand net income (2022: RON 3,396 thousand). 
The Bank did not acquire investment property under finance leases. 

The Bank's future amounts receivable for renta} income from rented premises contracts (without 
right of cancellation) with third parties real estate investment destination are as follows: 

Group/Bank 

Not Iater than 1 year 
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 year 
Later than 5 years 

Total 

22 RIGHT-OF-USEASSETS 

Gross cost as at 1 J anuary 
2022 

Changes in leasing contracts 
Additions 
Disposals 
Gross cost as at 
31 December 2022 
Gross cost as at 1 January 
2023 

Changes in leasing contracts 
Additions 

Disposals 
Gross cost as · at 
31 December 2023 

Group/Bank 
Commercial 

buildings Auto 

118,306 
29,507 
12,848 

(8,224) 

152.437 

152,437 
20,677 
17,409 

(10,837) 

179.686 

2,242 
(1,006) 

1,236 

~ 

31 December 2023 

8,444 
9,329 

14,816 

~ 

Eguipments Land 

3,136 
446 

~ 

3,582 
878 

~ 

7,415 
809 
789 
J4.l 

~ 

9,009 
86 

1,210 

ffi3s} 

~ 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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31 December 2022 

Total 

128,857 
30,762 
15,879 

(9,234) 

166,264 

166,264 
21,641 
15,879 

(9,234) 

4,410 
10,689 
16,367 

~ 

This version of the financial statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedence over this 
translation. 
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Commercial 
buildings Auto Egui;nments Land 

Accumulated depreciation 
as at 1 January 2022 46,620 1,967 1,337 
Depreciation charge for the year 24,704 216 1,060 591 
Disposals (4,292) .ufil .ul 
Accumulated depreciation 
as at 31 December 2022 ~ ~ ~ ~ 
Accumulated depreciation 
as at 1 January 2021 67,032 198 3,027 1,927 
Depreciation charge for the year 30,133 264 1,029 852 
Disposals (4,799) .{sl3} 
Accumulated depreciation 
as at 31 December 2023 ~ ~ ~ ~ 
Net book value at 31 
December 2022 85,405 ~ 555 ~ 
Net book value at 31 
December 2023 8z,320 ZZ4 4M ~ 

The following amounts are recognised in the statement of profit or loss: 
Group/Bank 

Interest expense on lease liabilities 

Depreciation charge for leases 

Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets 

31 December 2023 

758 

32,278 

2,545 

Total 

49,924 
26,571 

~ 

~ 

72,184 
32,278 
(s,3m 

~ 

9~1io80 

~ 

31 December 2022 

562 

26,570 

2,795 
In order to determine the lease term in the case of contracts concluded for an indefinite period or for 
which the lease term is automatically prolonged for successive specified periods or for indefinite period, 
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise the 
option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. 

Land concession contracts concluded on which the Bank built office spaces for its branches 
and agencies and for which the contract period is not mentioned at all. The Bank considered 
the lease term as the estimated useful life of the building the Bank built on the leased land. The Bank 
estimates for the building a useful life of 50 years. 

Land concession contracts having a mismatch between the contract term and the rent 
payment term 
In the case of the land concession contracts for which the rent is payable over a shorter period than the 
contract term, the Bank considered the guidance provided in IFRS 16 paragraph B36, according to 
which the lease term begins at the commencement date and includes any rent-free periods provided to 
the lessee by the lessor. Therefore, the lease term for these contracts is the full contractual term. 
Leases for office spaces which are automatically extended for successive 12 

months/indefinite periods. 
For these contracts, the Bank considers factors that create an economic incentive for the exercise of the 
option to extend the lease/the option to terminate the lease for indefinite period contracts, including the 
asset being leased and market-based factors. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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23 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 
Group Bank 

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 
2023 2022 2023 2022 

Amounts în course of settlement with 
hanks (i) 

66,669 77,035 66,669 77,035 

Amounts to he recovered from hanks and 
clients 
Other dehtors and advances for non­
current assets 
Other dehtors - FGCR 
Allowances for impairment - other 
dehtors 

4,761 

9,892 

6,643 
(1,295) 

2,084 2,084 

10,704 9,705 10,704 

(1,295) 

Total ~ 88.966 z9.840 88.966 
(i) Within 'Amounts în course of settlement with hanks' account there are included commissions 

and penalties due from corporate clients and individuals of RON 1,109 thousand (2022: RON 
36,582 thousand) as well as cash în the process of settlement, intra-cash settlements on 
customer transactions and other settlement accounts with: own operations, reconciliation 
operations, EPOS deposits/withdrawals, ATM supplies, etc. 
Other financial assets are not collateralized as at 31 Decemher 2023 and 2022. For the 
amounts detailed as at 31 Decemher 2023, the Bank intends to recover them during 2024. 

The Bank's expected loss adjustments for other financial assets can he reconciled as follows: 
31 December 2023 31 December 2022 

Balance at heginning of the year 
Derecognition of other financial assets (write­
down) 
Charge/(release) of provision to income 
statement (Note 11) 

Balance at end of the year 

24 OTHER ASSETS 

857 

Cs) 

Group Bank 

Prepaid expenses/Prepayments 
Other guarantees for rent and 
utilities (i) 
Receivahles from the state hudget 
Other assets (ii) 
Impairments of other assets 
Other dehtors 
Adjustments for expected loss -
other dehtors 
Other assets, net 

1 December 1 December 
2023 

17,923 

898 

6,021 

4,840 
(1,753) 

2,930 

[wsfil 

2022 
16,138 

3,315 
4,320 

(2,378) 

4,347 

(1.166) 

25,359 

1December 
2023 

17,867 

889 

6,021 

4,840 
(1,753) 

2,930 

[wsfil 

29,638 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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2022 

16,138 

783 

3,315 
4,320 

(2,378) 

4,347 

(1,166) 

25,359 
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24 OTHERASSETS (CONTINUED) 

(i) Guarantees for rent and utilities are advances paid by the Bank to suppliers of these services 
and blocked by these suppliers as guarantees and amounts available to the courts for FGCR. 

(ii) The amount of RON 4,840 thousand, 'Other assets' category as at 31 December 2023 is 
composed of: 
RON 1,400 thousand repossessed collaterals from foreclosed loans to customers; 
RON 2,357 thousand (31 December 2022: RON 2,357 thousand) represents the Banks 

patrimony under Law no. 77/2016 with subsequent modifications and completions regarding the 
payment of some buildings in order to settle the obligations assumed by credits; 

RON 1,083 thousand materials and other consumables. 
The assets do not meet the definition of non-current assets held for sale, and are classified as other 
assets. The assets were initially recognised at fair value when acquired. 
The Group's and Bank's impairment of other assets that can be reconciled as follows: 

Group/Bank 

Balance at beginning of the year 
Derecognition of other assets 
Charge/(release) ofprovision to income statement 
(Note 11) 

Balance at end of year 

25 DEPOSITS FROM BANKS 

Group 

31 December 2023 

3,544 
(118) 

f5rz) 

~ 

31 December 2022 
3,189 
(183) 

Bank 

53.H 
~ 

31December 31December 31December 31December 

Sight deposits 
Out of which, 
current accounts to 
other banks 
(LORO) 

2023 
266,176 

43 

2022 

180,075 

18 

2023 2022 

266,176 180,075 

43 18 

Term deposits 

Repo transactions 

289,899 

1.107.030 

744,714 

1,773,460 

289,899 

1.107.030 

744,714 

1,773,460 

Total 1.663 105 2,698.249 1,663.105 2,698.249 

As at 31 December 2023 and at 31 December 2022 all "Deposits from banks" were on a short term 
basis - maturity of under a year. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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26 DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS 

Current accounts and sight deposits 
Saving passbooks - sight 
Current accounts - individuals 

Group/Bank 

Current accounts - legal entities and other clients 
Current accounts cards - individuals, legal entities and 
other clients 
Sight deposits - legal entities 
Total current accounts and sight deposits 

Term deposits and savings 
Term saving passbooks (i) 
Term deposits - individuals 
Term deposits - legal entities and other clients 
Collateral deposits (ii) 
Other term deposits 
Total term deposits and savings 

Total 

3 1 December 2023 3 1 December 2022 

612 3,913 
3,760,615 3,625,011 

4,149,455 3,862,026 

4,608,834 3,978,240 

1,129,637 197,564 

13,649.153 11,666,z54 

14,697 78,944 
28,689,066 23,034,014 

26,937,029 14,576,755 
3,454,827 3,076,277 

34 49 
59,095.653 40.z66 039 

z2,:z44.806 52.432 Z93 

(i) Savings passbooks are sight/term savings products, in materialized form, in which the amounts 
deposited by customers, as well as the transactions subsequently ordered by them, are recorded and 
highlighted distinctly and chronologically. 

(ii) Collateral deposits are provided for: 

Group/Bank 
3 1 December 2023 3 1 December 2022 

Letter of credit 

Administration guarantees 
Consignment 

Guarantee loans 
Guarantees for good performance of commercial 
contracts 
Other collateral deposits 
Total 

17,211 1,678 

143,301 131,048 

2,528,810 2,439,593 

664,533 431,272 

50,787 39,025 

50,185 33,661 

3,454,82:z 3,o:z6,2n 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Page 143 of 167 
This version of the financial statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. Ali possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedence over this 
translation. 



CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

27 BORROWINGS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 
Group/Bank 

3 1 December 2023 3 1 December 2022 

European Investment Fund for the JEREMIE 
Initiative (i) 
European Bank for lnvestments (EIB) (ii) 
Romanian-Swiss program 
Total 

4,492 

135,375 

~ 

7,130 

179.055 2z8.242 
(i) On 2 July 2014 the Bank signed a Finance and Risk Sharing Agreement with the European 

lnvestment Fund (EIF) for the JEREMIE Initiative, amounting to EUR 10 million in RON 
equivalent. 

Total amount of the Agreement including supplements: RON 150,536,800 (EIF RON 75,268,400 
and CEC Bank RON 75,268,400). 
The outstanding amount ofthe Ioan as at 31.12.2023 is RON 4,492,114.77. 
Under the terms of the contract, the interest rate on 31 December 2023 was 7.74% (1M ROBOR + 

1,63% p.a.). The final payment term is 31 December 2026. 
(ii) Between 2013 and 2014, CEC Bank signed with the European Investment Bank (EIB) three 

Ioan agreements amounted to a total of EUR 145 million to finance facilities for small and 
medium-sized enterprises ("SMEs"), public sector entities and medium-capitalized enterprises 
and to encourage the youth employment. The loans have been fully drawn as of 31.12.2023. 

On 30 July 2020 the Bank signed a new Ioan agreement with the EIB worth EUR 50 million. to 
finance small and medium enterprises ("SMEs") and companies with average market capitalization 
("MidCaps"). 

The Ioan bears a fixed interest rate of 0.099% p.aand the final maturity is 30 September 2025. 
The outstanding amount of the Ioan as at 31.12.2023 is EUR 20,000,000. 

As at 31 December 2022 for the Ioan agreement signed with the European Bank for Investments 
(EIB) the Bank pledged financial assets measured at amortized cost as collateral, with a fair value of 
RON 55,286,272 (31 December 2022: RON 126,262,636). 

As at 31 December 2023, the conditions set out in the financing agreements with the European 
Investment Fund ("EIF") and the European lnvestment Bank ("EIB") are complied with. The 
reconciliation of the movements of loans from banks and other financial institutions with the cash 
flows generated by the financing activity are shown in the table below: 

Group/Bank 2023 2022 

Opening balance at 1 January 278,242 443,199 
Repayments of loans from banks and other financial institutions (99,158) (164,924) 

Bank and other financial institution Ioan drawdowns 

Total changes in cash flows financing (99,158) (164,924) 

Interest expenses on loans from banks and other financial institutions 

Interest payments on loans from banks and other financial institutions 
Other changes 

Balance at 31 December 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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28 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED 

Group 

3 1 December 2023 3 1 December 2022 3 1 December 2023 3 1 December 2022 

Debt securities issued 

Total 

2,137,255 

2,132,255 

653,636 

653.636 

2,137,255 

2,132,255 

The reconciliation of the Group/Bank's debt securities issued are shown in the table below: 

Group/Bank 2023 2022 

Opening balance at 1 Januazy 653,636 
Repayments of debt securities issued 
Bond issues 

Interest payments on debt securities issued 

Interest expenses on debt securities issued 
Amounts to be amortized 
Other changes 

1,402,340 
52,065 

99,397 
(19,261) 

53,208 

656,732 

284 
(3,380) 

Balance at 31 December 2,137.255 653.636 
The balance of debt securities issued as at 31 December 2023, including accrued interest, is in amount 
of RON 2,137,255 thousand (31 December 2022: RON 653,636 thousand). 
During 2022 and 2023 the Bank had four drawdowns ofMREL eligible Senior Non-Preferred bonds 
(SNPs), subscribed by professional investors through private and international placements: two 
tranches in 2022, with maturity 30 December 2025, and two tranches in 2023 with maturity 07 
Februazy 2028. 
The 30 December 2025 maturing bonds have a total nominal value of RON 175,350 thousand, 
respectively a total nominal value of EUR 97,300 thousand, bearing fixed coupon rates. According to 
the terms and conditions of the notes, the bonds were listed on February 17, 2023 on the regulated 
market of the Bucharest Stock Exchange, the BSE (the RON denominated tranche under ISIN 
XS2572123516 and the BSE trading symbol CECRO25, and the EUR denominated tranche under 
ISIN XS2572123433 and the BSE trading symbol CECRO25E). The instruments have an early 
redemption clause for tax reasons, regulatory reasons or at the option of the issuer (as of 30 
December 2024). 
The 7 February 2028 maturing bonds are denominated in EUR and were first issued on 7 February 
2023 (EUR 119,300 thousand) and supplemented on 16 November 2023 (EUR 162,600 thousand), 
under the ISIN XS2574275280 and BSE trading symbol CECRO28E. According to the terms and 
conditions of the notes, the first tranche was listed on the regulated markets of Luxembourg Stock 
Exchange (LuxSE) on 7 February 2023 and of Bucharest Stock Exchange (BSE) on 24 February 2023; 
the total amount of EUR 281,900 thousand was listed after the two fungible tranches were 
cumulated. 
The instruments have an early redemption clause for tax reasons, regulatory reasons or at the option 
of the issuer (as of 07 February 2027) and are bearing fixed coupon until 07 February 2027, that 
becomes a variable coupon payable quarterly during their last year. 
The CEC Bank issued bonds are eligible for MREL purposes (Minimum Requirement for Own Funds 
and Eligible Liabilities - MREL).The notes are issued under the base prospectus ofthe Bank's EMTN 
(Medium term Notes) Program approved by the CSSF Luxembourg (Commission de Surveillance du 
Secteur Financier Luxembourg) on 21 December 2022. Under the Program, the bank may issue 
bonds up to a total ceiling of EUR 600 million (or equivalent in other currencies). 
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29 SUBORDINATED LIABILITIES 

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the Bank complies with the subordinated Ioan 
contractual clauses with the financing party. 

Shareholder Ioan 
Total 

Group 
31December 

2023 
1,434,229 

1.434.229 

31December 
2022 

1,439,628 

1.439.628 

31 December 31 December 
2023 2022 

1,434,229 1,439,628 

1.434.229 1,439.628 

The subordinated debts include the subordinated Ioan granted by the Romanian State, through the 
Ministry of Finance, as sole shareholder, in the amount of RON 1,400,000 thousand contracted on 
23.12.2021, with an interest rate RO BOR 3 months plus 3.30% p.a. and due in 2031. 

The Ioan is issued directly by the Ministry of Finance, has a maturity of 10 years from the date of the 
drawing of 28.12.2021 and is tobe paid in full on 27.12.2031.The Ioan is not guaranteed and does not 
contain early repayment options, except in the event of insolvency or liquidation. 

The reconciliation of the movements of subordinated liabilities with the cash flows generated by the 
financing activity are shown in the table below: 

Group/Bank 

Opening balance at 1 J anuary 
Repayments of subordinated liabilities 
Subordinated liabilities drawdowns 
Total changes in cash flows financing 

Interest expenses on subordinated liabilities 
Interest payments on subordinated liabilities 
Other changes 

Balance at 31 December 

30 PROVISIONS 
Group/Bank 

2023 2022 

1,439,628 1,400,956 

141,972 
(147,371) 

(5,399) 

1,434,229 

123,145 
(84,473) 

38,672 
1,439,628 

31 December 2023 31 December 2022 
Provisions for litigations 
Provisions for internai and externai frauds 

3,100 

1,779 
433 

1,799 
Provisions for Ioan commitments and financial 
guarantees given 
Total 

~ 

4z,Bo4 
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30 PROVISIONS (CONTINUED) 
The movement in provisions for Iitigations are Iisted below: 

3 1 December 2023 

Balance at 1 January 433 
Additional provisions, including increases 

existing provisions 
to 

2,786 

Unused amounts reversed during periods lli91 
Balance at 31 December ~ 

The movement in provisions for internai and externai frauds are Iisted below: 

3 1 December 2022 

805 

71 

(4431 

433 

3 1 December 2023 3 1 December 2022 

Balance at 1 January 1,799 2,171 
Additional provisions, including increases to 
existing provisions 

12 7 

Unused amounts reversed during periods im CTZ91 
Balance at 31 December km ~ 

The Bank's movement in provisions for Ioan commitments and financial guarantees given as at 31 

December 2023 is shown below: 
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 

Opening balance at 1 January 24,476 7,164 13,932 45,572 
Transfer to Stage 1 17,303 (17,241) (63) 

Transfer to Stage 2 (4,577) 14,202 (9,625) 

Transfer to Stage 3 (8) (735) 743 
Increase due to new loans commitments 

17,800 5,511 1,589 24,900 / guarantees granted in the year 
Decreases due to closed loans commitments 

(4,277) (1,027) (482) (5,786) /guarantees in year 
Net remeasurement during the year (21,686) 142 1,688 (19,856) 

Write-off 

Interest adjustments 
Other adjustments .w 16 8 22 

Closing balance at 31 December 29.029 ~ :L:z9Q ~ 
The movement in provisions for Ioan commitments and financial guarantees given as at 31 December 
2022 is shown below: 

Stage 1 Stage 2 

Opening balance at 1 J anuary 12,136 625 

Transfer to Stage 1 3,742 (3,715) 

Transfer to Stage 2 (3,178) 3,267 

Transfer to Stage 3 (35) (1,334) 
Increase due to new loans commitments 
/guarantees granted in the year 12,505 1,236 

Decreases due to closed loans commitments 
(3,595) (591) / guarantees in year 

Net remeasurement during the year 2,899 7,671 

Write-off 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 fonn an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Interest adjustments 
Other adjustments 

Closing balance at 31 December 
Within provision for litigations are included the amounts provided for certain litigations in which the 
Bank is involved as defendant and litigations that could result in future cash outflows. Based on the 
status of the legal proceedings, a cash outflow (provisions balance as at 31 December 2023) of RON 
3.100 thousand (31.12.2022: RON 433 thousand) is estimated. The Bank's management considers 
that these legal cases will not have a significant negative impact over financial result and position of 
the Bank. See also Note 41 Contingent liabilities and commitments. 

31 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS ANO LIABILITIES 
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at 31 December 2023 are attributable to the temporacy 
differences detailed in the table below: 

Group 

Fair value of financial assets measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income - debt instruments 
Fair value of financial assets measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income - investments in equity 
instruments 
Revaluation reserve for land and buildings(i) 
Other tangible and intangible assets 
Right-of-use assets 
Provisions and other liabilities 
Total 

PPA adjustments upon purchase 
Post-acquisition PPA adjustments 
Deferred tax assets at 16 % 

Bank 

Fairvalue of financial assets measured at fairvalue through 
other comprehensive income - debt instruments 
Fair value of financial assets measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income - investments in equity 
instruments 
Revaluation reserve for land and buildings(i) 
Other tangible and intangible assets 
Right-of-use assets 
Provisions and other liabilities 
Total 

Deferred tax assets at 16 % 

Assets 
282,759 

1,764 
101.035 

385.558 
61,689 

-= 
61,689 

Assets 
282,759 

1,764 
101.035 

385 558 

61689 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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31 December 2023 
Liabilities Net 

282,759 

(16,273) (16,273) 

(369,695) (369,695) 
(13,165) (13,165) 

1,764 
101.035 

(399,133) C13.5z5l 
<63.:z!!Bl (2,099} 

2oz 2oz 
18 .18 

(63,599} f2.28zl 

31 December 2023 
Liabilities 

(16,273) 

(369,466) 
(12,936) 

C398.6z5l 

Net 
282,759 

(16,273) 

(369,466) 
(12,9366) 

1,764 
101.035 
(13.uz) 

(2,099) 
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(i) The bank owns tangible assets in the nature of buildings that it revalues every 3 yea:rs and for 
which it has recorded revaluation reserves. 
Reserves from the revaluation of tangible assets were included in the fiscal and accounting base as 
follows: 
- The revaluation reserves from 31.12.2003 were included in the fiscal and accounting value of the 
fixed assets; 
- The revaluation reserves from the years 2004, 2006, 2007, 2010, 2012, 2015, 2018, 2021 were 
included only in the accounting value of the fixed assets. 
The bank registers temporary differences between the book value and the tax value for which it 
registers deferred tax. 
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at 31 December 2022 are attributable to the temporary 
differences detailed in the table below: 

Group 
31 December 2022 

Fair value of financial assets measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income - debt instruments 
Fair value of financial assets measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income - investments in equity 
instruments 
Revaluation reserve for land and buildings 
Other tangible and intangible assets (i) 
Right-of-use assets 
Provisions and other liabilities 
Total 

Deferred tax liability at 16 % 

Bank 

Fair value of financial assets measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income - debt instruments 
Fair value of financial assets measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income - investments în equity 
instruments 
Revaluation reserve for land and buildings 
Other tangible and intangible assets (i) 
Right-of-use assets 
Provisions and other liabilities 
Total 

Assets 
771,628 

2,134 
9-Z&Q 

871678 

139,468 

Assets 
771,628 

2,134 
9-Z&Q 

8z16z8 

Liabilities Net 
771,628 

(10,238) (10,238) 

(382,002) (382,002) 

(10,286) (10,286) 

2,134 
9-Z&Q 

'402,526) 469.152 

(64,404) ~ 

31 December 2022 

Liabilities Net 
771,628 

(10,238) (10,238) 

(382,002) (382,002) 
(10,286) (10,286) 

2,134 
9-Z&Q 

(402,526) 469,152 

Deferred tax liability at 16 % 139 468 (64,404) ~ 

(i) Deferred tax on other tangible and intangible assets is due to the change in the useful life of 
certain classes of assets (Notes 19 and 20). 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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31 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

The Group's and Bank's movements in deferred tax assets/liabilities at 31 December 2023 are as 
follows: 

Recognised 

! Recognised in in other 
anuary profitor comprehensive 31 December 

2023 loss account income 2023 
Financial assets measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income - 123,460 (78,219) 45,241 
debt instruments 
Financial assets measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income - (1,638) (966) (2,604) 
investments in equity instruments 
Revaluation reserve for land and buildings (61,120) 1,813 (59,307) 
Tangible and intangible assets - changes in 

(1,647) (231) (1,878) 
accounting useful life 
Right-of-use assets 341 440 781 
Provisions and other liabilities 15,668 15,668 
Total 75.064 2,022 (79,185) (2,099) 

The Group's and Bank's movements in deferred tax assets/liabilities at 31 December 2022 are as 
follows: 

Recognised 

! Recognised in in_other 
anuary profit or !omprehensive 

2022 loss account income 
Financial assets measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income - 49,025 74,435 
debt instruments 
Financial assets measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income - (523) (1,115) 

investments in equity instruments 
Revaluation reserve for land and 

_63,336) 16 
buildings 

2,200 

Tangible and intangible assets - changes 
(1,209) (438) 

in accounting useful life 
Right-of-use assets 423 (82) 

Provisions and other liabilities 9,903 ~ 
Total (5,717) ~ 73,336 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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LEASE LIABILITIES 
Bank 

31 December 2023 

Lease liabilities 98,652 
Debts attached Z1 
Total ~ 

The analysis of maturity of lease liabilities 

31 December 2023 

Less than one month 2,880 
Between two and three months 5,506 
Between four and six months 8,111 

Between seven and nine months 7,971 
Between ten and twelve months 7,581 
Between thirteen and sixty months 54,009 
Over sixty months 22,856 
Total 108.914 

OTHER LIABILITIES 

31 December 2022 

96,408 
Q2 

9MZ5 

31 December 2022 

2,355 
4,589 
7,484 
7,232 
6,937 

60,040 

~ 

104.212 

Group Bank 
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 

2023 2022 2023 2022 

Social Contributions due to State 
19,536 19,082 

Budget 19,054 

Taxes payable to State Budget 18,480 13,549 18,385 
Employee profit participation 35,511 30,801 33,511 
Other liabilities 1,226 1,359 888 
Provision for employee benefits upon the 
termination of the employment contract 4,859 5,000 4,601 
(Note 9) 
Provision for employee benefits in the 

Q.,.143 5,820 
form of compensatory absences ~ 

Total liabilities ~ ~ 82,287 
Social Contributions due to State Budget in balance represent contributions payable until 25th of 
nextmonth. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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34 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 
Group Bank 

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 
2023 2022 2023 2022 

Deferred income from financial 
guarantees issued 2,370 1,257 2,370 1,257 
Sundry creditors 64,719 58,542 64,719 58,542 

Other financial liabilities (i) 262,927 9JA5Q 262,896 9JA5Q 
Other various creditors FGCR ~ - - -= = = 
Total 358.391 151.264 329.985 151.264 

Current 358.391 151.264 329.985 151,264 

(i) The increase was determined by the reclassification from savings passbook category 
(approximately RON 57 million) to other financial liabilities following the customers 
notification process completed by the Bank in 2023. 

35 SHARE CAPITAL 

The share capital of the Group/Bank was RON 2,499,746 thousand as at 31 December 2023 
(31 December 2022: RON 2,499,746 thousand). The Bank is 100% state owned, Ministry of Public 
Finance being the sole shareholder. The issued share capital is comprised of RON 2,290,661 thousand 
consisting of 22,906,616 registered shares with a value of RON 100/share. 

Group Bank 
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 

2023 2022 2023 2022 

Share capital as per Trade Registry 2,290.661 2,290 661 
IAS 29 inflation adjustment 209,085 209.085 
Total share capital 2.499.:246 2.499 Z46 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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36 REV ALUATION RESERVES 

Revaluation reserves are non-distributable until their realization through the tangible assets sale/ 
disposals to which they refer. 

Group 
Revaluation 

FGCR 
revaluation 

reserve 
reserve Deferred related to 

gross tax the parent Total net 

Balance as at 1 January 2022 646.183 (79,433) - 566,250 == 

The revaluation reserve representing the 
surplus realized (7,520) 710 (6,810) 

Net resuit from revaluation (Note 19) 16 16 

Balance as at 31 December 2022 638,663 (z8,zoz) - 559.956 == 

Balance as at 1 January 2023 638.663 C28,202l - 559.956 = 
The revaluation reserve representing the 
surplus realized (1,700) 191 (1,510) 

Acquisition adjustments FGCR 
revaluation reserve related to the parent 229 229 
Balance as at 31 December 2023 636.963 (78.516) ~ 558.675 

Bank 
Revaluation 

reserve Deferred 
gross tax Total net 

Balance as at 1 January 2022 646.183 (29,433} 
The revaluation reserve representing the 
surplus realized (7,520) 710 
Net resuit from revaluation (Note 19) 16 

Balance as at 31 December 2022 638.663 C28,202l 

Balance as at 1 January 2023 638,663 C28,202l 
The revaluation reserve representing the 
surplus realized (1,700) 190 
Net resuit from revaluation (Note 19) 

Balance as at 31 December 2023 636.963 (28,512} 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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37 RESERVES FOR FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR V ALUE MEASURED THROUGH 
OTHERITEMSOFCOMPREHENSIVEINCOME 

Group/Bank 
3 1 December 2023 3 1 December 2022 

Reserve for financial assets at FVOCI (net of 
deferred tax) 

Total 

{221,078) (639,567} 

(221.078) 

This note discloses the movements in the reserves for financial assets at fair value measured 
through other items of comprehensive income. 

Group/Bank 
lteserve for investntents measured 

at FVOCI 

Government Equity 
bonds investment Gross 

Balance as at 1 January 2022 (304,703) 3,268 (301,435) 
Net gain/0oss) from changes in fair value from 
mark-to-market (Nota 16 a) (464,916) 6,970 (457,946) 
Net gain/0oss) from changes in fair value from 
sales (Nota 16 a) (1,686) (1,686) 

Adjustments for depreciation of securities 13m ~) 

Balance as at 31 December 2022 (771.627) ~ (761.389) 

Reserve for investments measured 
at FVOCI 

Government Equity 
bonds investment 

Balance as at 1 January 2023 <221,622) ~ 
Net gain/0oss) from changes in fair value from 
mark-to-market (Nota 16 a) 507,060 6,035 
Net gain/0oss) from changes in fair value from 
sales (Nota 16 a) (16,810) 

Adjustments for depreciation of securities 1.388 
Balance as at 31 December 2023 (279,989) ~ 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Gross 

(761,389) 

513,095 

(16,810) 

1,388 

<263,216) 

Total 
>eferred 

tax 
48,502 

73,050 

270 

121.822 

Total 
>eferred 

tax 
121.822 

(81,874) 

2,690 

42,638 
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Total 
Net 

(252,933) 

(384,896) 

(1,416) 
--13gg) 

(639,567) 

Total 
Net 

(639,567) 

431,221 

(14,120) 

1,388 

(221,028) 
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38 OTHER RESERVES 
Group 

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 
2023 2022 2023 2022 

Statutory legal reserve (i) 256,315 226,742 256,315 226,742 
General banking risk reserve (ii) 
Reserve from goods received free of 

65,841 65,840 65,841 65,840 

~ ~ ~ 6935 
charge 

Total 325.088 295.517 325.088 295.517 
(i) Statutory legal reserves represent accumulated transfers from retained earnings in accordance 

with relevant local regulations. These reserves cannot be distributed to shareholders. 
Local legislation requires 5% of the Bank's gross statutory profit tobe transferred to a non­
distributable statu tory legal reserve until this reserve reaches 20% of the Bank' s statu tory share 
capital. In 2023 the Bank transferred RON 29,573 thousand to statutory legal reserve (2022: 
RON 25,339 thousand). 

(ii) Reserves for general banking risks include amounts allocated in accordance with the banking 
legislation and are separately disclosed as allocations of statutory profit. These reserves are not 
distributable. 

39 SEGMENT REPORTING 
The Bank segment reportîng is compliant with the management requirements use. The reportîng 

segments are presented in a manner which is consistent with the internai reporting documentation 

submitted to the Executive Committee. 

The reporting format îs based on the internai management reportîng format. The îtems of assets and 

liabilities, incomes and expenses are allocated to the reporting segments either directly or based on 

reasonable criteria established by the management. 

The reportîng segment of the Bank as described below: 

Corporate - are legal entities which are not SMEs accordîng to Commissîon Recommendatîon 

2003/361/EC, respectîvely Law nr. 346/2004.The companies în this category usually have specific 

and sophîstîcated needs. Through its centralized and customized approach, the Bank seeks to ensure 

high operational efficiency, a prompt assessment of the specific needs of thîs type of clients in order 

to offer the appropriate customîzed solutions, but also an in-depth perspective of the risk profile in 

order to maintain a high quality loan portfolio.The Corporate clîents have access to an all-inclusive 

package of bankîng products and services. The incomes generated by this segment resultîng from 

lending operations, current business operatîons (transaction banking, treasury, trade finance and 

retail products). 

SME'S - the segment is represented by the economic entities defined by the Commîssion 

Recommendatîon 2003/361/EC, as well as Law nr. 346/2004 regardîng the stimulatîon of SME's set 

up and development, with further modification and amendments. SME are defined as those 

enterprises which cumulatively meet the following conditions: 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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39 SEGMENT REPORTING {CONTINUED) 

a) the annual average of employees is below 250; 

b) an annual turnover not exceeding EUR 50 million, and/ or an annual balance sheet total 

not exceeding EUR 43 million, according to the latest approved financial statements. 

The SME segment comprises the largest set of companies having the most diverse types of entities, 

such as limited liability companies, freelancers, sole proprietorships and others. 

Lending products accessed by the SME are: loans for working capital or investments, letters of 

guarantee, EU project co-financing, credit cards, invoice discounting or factoring. 

Another important category of products refers to general operations, incoming and outgoing 

payments, cheques, promissory notes, FX operations, salary payment agreements or bancassurance 

services. Increased attention is given to the digitalization of our products and services, our clients 

showing more and more interest in internet & mobile banking, e-commerce, last generation POSs. 

Authorities of Public Local Administration {AAPL) - the authorities through which local 

autonomy is carried out in communes, cities and municipalities are: local, communal city and 

municipal councils, as deliberative authorities, and mayors as executive authorities. Local councils 

and mayors are elected under the conditions provided by the law for the election of local public 

administration authorities. Local councils and mayors function as authorities of the local public 

administration and salve public affairs in communes, cities and municipalities, under the conditions 

of the law. The classification is based on the NACE code of the main activity. 

Lending products accessed by AAPL clients are investment loans, for financing the objectives oflocal 

interest. 

Private Individuals 

The Bank provide individuals with a wide range of banking products and services, including loans 

(consumer loans, car purchase loans, personal need loans and mortgage loans), savings and deposit 

accounts, payment services and securities trading. 

Treasury Division 

The Bank comprise in this category the treasury services which provides income streams from 

treasury activities, namely trading revenues, net income from financial assets held at fair value 

through profit or loss, as well as from interest contribution. 

"Others" segment incorporates amounts that are not tracked by management at segment levei 

(including capital). 

ln terms of geographical distribution, the Bank operates entirely in the Romanian territory. 

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the Bank did not record income exceeding 10% of 

total incomes in relation to a single customer. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 

The table below presents the Bank's financial information per segments regarding the statement of 
financial position and the operating profit, for the financial year ended at 31 December 2023, and 
comparative data for 2022: 

Bank 
Com2rate Private 

31 December 2023 Customers SME AAPL Individuals 
Gross loans and 
advances to customers 3,266,873 18,303,213 2,553,330 9,388,441 

Expected credit losses (898,422) (795,183) (36,313) (157,389) 
Loans and advances to 
customers net of 
provisions 2,368,451 17,508,030 2,517,017 9,231,052 
Portfolio of Debt 
instruments, Equity 
instruments and 
Derivative instruments, 
net of provisions 
Treasmy and inter-bank 
operations 
Property and equipment, 
investment property and 
Intangible assets 

Right-of-use assets 
Financial assets at 
historical cost 

Other assets 

Total assets 2,368,451 17,508,030 2,517,017 9,231,052 

Deposits from customers 
and current accounts 13,982,575 22,660,992 374,524 37,389,820 
Loans from banks and 
other financial 
institutions 39,188 

Debt securities issued 

Subordinated liabilities 

Lease liabilities 

Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 13,982,575 22,660,992 413,712 37,389,820 

Equity and related items 
Total liabilities and 
equity 13,982,575 22,660,992 413,712 37,389,820 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these :financial statements. 
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30,448,640 

20,277490 

972,034 

95,702 

5,000 

130,173 

50,726,130 1,202,909 

139,867 

2,137,255 

1,434,229 

98,723 

3,872 464,102 

3,715,223 562,825 

- 4,828,442 

3,715,223 5,391,267 
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Total 

33,511,857 

(1,887,307) 

31,624,550 

30,448,640 

20,277490 

972,034 

95,702 

5,000 

130,173 

83,553,589 

74,407,911 

179,055 

2,137,255 

1,434,229 

98,723 

467,974 

78,725,147 

4,828,442 

83,553,589 
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39 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 

Bank 
Com2rate Private 

3 1 December 2022 Customers SME AAPL Individuals 
Gross loans and advances to 
customers 8,772,777 9,544,995 3,067,568 9,506,215 

Expected credit losses (796,412) (661,633) (42,881) (147,820) 
Loans and advances to 
customers net of provisions 7,976,365 8,883,362 3,024,687 9,358,395 
Portfolio of Debt 
instruments, Equity 
instruments and Derivative 
instruments, net of 
provisions 
Treasury and inter-bank 
operations 
Property and equipment, 
investment property and 
lntangible assets 

Right-of-use assets 

Other assets 

Total assets 7,976,365 8,883,362 3,024,687 9,358,395 

Deposits from customers 
and current accounts 8,307,245 3,322,858 9,728,409 31,074,281 
Loans from banks and other 
financial institutions 39,188 

Debt securities issued 

Subordinated liabilities 

Lease liabilities 

Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 8,307,245 3,322,858 9,767,597 31,074,281 

Equity and related items 
Total liabilities and 
equity 8,307,245 3,322,858 9,767,597 31,074,281 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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15,162,827 

16,223,418 

899,723 

94,080 

189,389 

31,386,245 1,183,192 

2,698,249 

239,054 

653,636 

1,439,628 

96,475 

24,950 294,929 

5,055,517 391,404 

3,893,344 

5,055,517 4,284,748 
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Total 

30,891,555 

(1,648,746) 

29,242,809 

15,162,827 

16,223,418 

899,723 

94,080 

189,389 

61812,246 

55,131,042 

278,242 

653,636 

1,439,628 

96,475 

319,879 

57,918,902 

3,893,344 

61,812,246 
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SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 

Bank 
Comorate Private Treasun: 

31 December 2023 Customers SME AAPL Individuals Division Others 

Netinterestincome 43,632 860,631 241.908 (523.671) 1.010.543 

Net commission income 7,043 100,927 1,592 151,416 3,567 

Net gain from trading 97,423 
Net loss from financial 
derivatives (57,927) 

Net gain/(loss) from financial 
assets mandatorily measured 
at fair value through profit or 
loss 3,350 
Net gain from the sale of 
financial assets measured at 
fair value through other 
comprehensive income 16,810 
Net gain from foreign 
exchange diff erences 27,831 

Other operating income 

Operating income 50,675 961,558 243,500 (372,255) 1,101,597 

Impairment losses on 
financial instruments 32,892 (354,157) (10,037) (46,016) (3,944) 
Net loss from impairment of 
debt instruments (7,404) 

Staff costs 
Depreciation and 
amortisation expenses 

Other operating expenses 

Operating expenses 32,892 (354,157) (10,037) (46,016) (11,348) 

Profit before tax 83,567 607,401 233,463 (418,271) 1,090,249 

lncome tax expense 

Net Profit for the year 83,567 607,401 233,463 (418,271) 1,090,249 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Page 159 of 167 

14,112 

14,112 

(538,801) 

(132,195) 

(348,057) 

(1,019,053) 

(1,004,941) 

(75,660) 

(1,080,601) 

This version of the financial statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedence over this 
translation. 

Total 

1,633,043 

264,545 

97,423 

(57,927) 

3,350 

16,810 

27,831 

14,112 

1,999,187 

(381,262) 

(7,404) 

(538,801) 

(132,195) 

(348,057) 

(1,407,719) 

591,468 

(75,660) 

515,808 
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39 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 

Bank 
CorRQrate Private 

31 December 2022 C)!stomers SME AAPL Individuals 

Netinterestincome 46,258 788,662 218,954 77,699 

Net commission income 11,472 155,396 947 126,739 

Net gain from trading 
Net loss from financial 
derivatives 

Net gain/(loss) from financial 
assets mandatorily measured 
at fair value through profit or 
loss 
Net gain from the sale of 
financial assets measured at 
fair value through other 
comprehensive income 
Net gain from foreign 
exchange differences 

Other operating incorne 

Operating income 57,730 944,058 219,901 204,438 
lrnpairment loss on loans and 
advances to customers, 
provisions for Ioan 
commitments and financial 
guarantees given (100,280) (190,674) 2,894 (48,826) 
Net loss from irnpairment of 
debt instruments 

Staff costs 
Depreciation and 
arnortisation expenses 

Other operating expenses 

Treasu~ 
Division Others Total 

407,432 1,539,005 

(23,663) 270,891 

95,035 95,035 

(154,477) (154,477) 

(5,079) (5,079) 

1,686 1,686 

26,557 26,557 

19,786 19,786 

347,491 19,786 1,793,404 

3,480 (333,406) 

(1,218) (1,218) 

(490,380) (490,380) 

(105,844) (105,844) 

(355,776) (355,776) 

Operating expenses (100,280) (190,674) 2,894 (48,826) 2,262 (952,000) (1,286,624) 

Profit before tax (42,550) 753,384 222,795 155,612 349,753 

Income tax expense 

Net Profit for the year (42,550) 753,384 222,795 155,612 349,753 

The accompanying notes frorn pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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40 RELATED PARTYTRANSACTIONS 
Parties are considered tobe related if one party has the ability to control the other party or to exercise 
signîficant înfluence over the other party în making financial or operatîonal decisîons. In considering 
each possîble related party relatîonship, attention îs dîrected to the substance of the relatîonshîp, not 
merely the legal form. 
The nature of the related party relationshîps for those related partîes with whom the Bank entered 
înto signîficant transactîons or had sîgnîficant balances outstandîng at 31 December 2023 îs detailed 
below. Transactîons were entered înto with related partîes during the normal course ofbusîness at 
market rates. 

Transactions with shareholders 

The sole shareholder of the Bank îs the Romanîan Government, represented by the Mînîstry of Public 
Fînance. A number of banking transactîons were înîtîated, by whîch the Bank acquîred coupon notes 
denominated in local currency îssued by the Romanîan Mînistry of Public Finance. These 
transactîons were carrîed out under commercial terms and conditions and at market rate. The 
transactions with the Romanîan Ministry of Public Finance are presented în the relevant notes to 
these financial statements (Notes 16, 17 and 20). 

Transactions with management of the Bank 

The Bank performed a number of banking transactions with the management of the Bank in the 
normal course of business. 

The Group's key management compensation îs presented below: 

Short-term benefits: 
- Salaries 
- Short-term bonuses 
- Benefits in-kînd 
Bonuses upon the termination of 
the employment contract 
Total 

Accrued 
Expenses liability at 

31 December 31 December 
2023 2023 

~ 

5,302 

60,642 

6,282 

Accrued 
Expenses liability at 

31 December 31 December 
2022 

44,811 
3,020 

~ 

2022 

5,368 

44 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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40 RELATED PARTYTRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 
The Bank's key management compensation is presented below: 

Accrued Accrued 
Expenses liability at Expenses liability at 

31December 31December 31December 31December 
2023 2023 2022 2022 

Short-term benefits: 
- Salaries ~ 5,465 44,811 5,368 
- Short-term bonuses 
- Benefits in-kind 
Bonuses upon the termination of 
the employment contract 

3,127 3,020 44 

Total ~ ~ 

Accrued liabilities represent contributions payable until the 25th of the next month. 
Transactions with State-controlled entities 
The Bank performed a number of banking transactions with organisations or companies controlled 
by the Romanian State, in the ordinary course of business. The transactions with organisations or 
companies controlled by the Romanian State took place in the ordinary course of business. 

The Bank applied IAS 24 regarding the simplified treatment in the presentation of related party 
transactions. 
At 31 December 2023, the Bank's outstanding balances with related parties were as follows: 

Closing balances 

Shareholder Key FGCR 
-Ministry 
ofFinance 

management 
personnel 

Other 
related 
parties 

Total Assets 
Out ofwhich: 

18,543.153 8,252,181 

Loans and advances to banks and public 
institutions (interest rate: 6.03%-6.05%) 
Financial assets held for trading and 
measured at fair value through profit and loss 
(interest rate: 2.50%-8.25%) 
Financial assets measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income 
(contractual interest rate: 0%-8.75%) 
Investments in debt instruments at 
amortized cost ( contractual interest rate: 
1.60%-9.75%) 
Loans and advances - gross exposure 
(contractual interest rate: 2.28%-12.28%) 
Adjustments for expected credit loss 
Total liabilities 

71,457 

8,624,727 

1.434.229 
The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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40 RELATED PAR1YTRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 
Out of which: 
Deposits (contractual interest rate: 0%-13%) 

Debt securities issued (contractual interest 
rate: 7.5%-9%) 

Subordinated liabilities (contractual interest 
rate: 9.84%-11.23%) 

Contractual commitments, financial 
guarantees and other commitments, 
out of which: 

1,434,229 

132.6z2 

15,224 728 

Issued 58,214 784 

Received 74,458 94 
At 31 December 2022, the Bank's outstanding balances with related parties were as follows: 

Closing balances 
Total Assets 
Out of which: 
Loans and advances to banks and public 
institutions (interest rate: 6-40%-6.65%) 

Financial assets held for trading and 
measured at fair value through profit and loss 
(interest rate: 2.50%-8.25%) 

Financial assets measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income 
(contractual interest rate: 0.7%-7.99%) 

Investments in debt instruments at amortized 
cost (contractual interest rate: 1%-9.75%) 
Loans and advances - gross exposure 
(contractual interest rate: 0%-35%) 

Adjustments for expected credit loss 
Total liabilities 
Out of which: 
Deposits (contractual interest rate: 0%-13%) 

Debt securities issued ( contractual interest 
rate: 7.5%-9%) 
Subordinated liabilities (contractual interest 
rate: 6.29%-11.23%) 

Contractual commitments, financial 
guarantees and other commitments, 

out of which: 
Issued 
Received 

Shareholder Key 
- Ministry management 
ofFinance 

14.888.349 

6,289 

10,342,980 

4,539,080 

1,439.628 

1,439,628 

187.444 

78,748 
108,696 

personnel 

~ 

4,165 

(26) 

8.682 

8,682 

656 
112 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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700,791 

218,z90 

207,822 

10,968 

Other 
related 
parties 

8.590.448 

5,005,832 

78,410 

3,574,361 

(68,155) 

12.590.302 

12,141,414 

448,888 

226.417 

184,667 

41,750 
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40 RELATED PARTYTRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 
The key personnel of the Bank's management includes the following functions : Chief Balance ALM 
Officer (CBO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Chief Risk Officer (CRO), Director (Large customers 
Division, SME Division, Agri Division, Legal Division, Compliance Division, Contentious Division, 
Interna! Audit Division, Antifraud and Control Division, Cards Division, Operations Division, 
Remote Operations Division, Arrears and Asset Recovery Division, Credit Monitoring Division, 
Analysis oflndividual Loans Division), Head oflndependent Department (Evaluation (Independent) 
Department). 
The composition of other related parties includes organizations or companies under the control of 
the Romanian State. 
The balance of the securities issued by the Ministry of Finance is presented in Note 16, 17 and 20 of 
the present financial statements. 

The Bank's income and expense items with related parties for the period January - December 2023 
were as follows: 

Shareholder Key FGCR Other 
Ministry management related 

ofFinance personnel narties 
Interest income 882,364 507 462,820 
Interest expense (141,972) (4,264) (440,153) 
Net impairment loss on loans and 
advances to customers 1 
Commission income 30 
Commission expense (30) 

The Bank's income and expense items with related parties for the period January- December 2022 
were as follows: 

Shareholder Key 
Ministry management 

ofFinance personnel 
460,065 310 

(39,587) 

70 

Other 
related 
narties 
453,768 lnterest income 

Interest expense (123,145) (78) (106,601) 
Net impairment loss on loans and advances to customers 
Commission income 

4 

In respect of the transactions with NBR, the Bank had at the year end the following balances: 

3 1 December 2023 3 1 December 2022 

Current accounts held at National Bank 
of Romania (Note 13) 10,614,049 8,660,549 

The income and expense items with NBR for the period were as follows: 

(7,916) 
112 

3 1 December 2023 3 1 December 2022 

Interest expenses arising from REPO transactions 
with National Bank of Romania 
Interest income from current accounts 
held at N ational Bank of Ro mania 
Interest expense from current accounts - Lombard 
Ioan 

99,187 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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41 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES ANO COMMITMENTS 

Litigations 

As at 31 December 2023 the Bank is subject to several legal actions arisen in the normal course of 
business. The potential obligations existence regarding the litigations will be confirmed by future 
events that are not entirely controlled by the Bank. From the same reason, the Bank cannot reliably 
estimate the time in which it can effectively record the losses. 

Contingent liabilities related to third 
party litigations (including customers) 
and to other operational risk events in 
compliance with IAS 37 

Taxation 

3 1 December 2023 

9,523 

3 1 December 2022 

29,268 

The Romanian taxation system is undergoing a process of consolidation and harmonization with the 
European Union legislation. Accordingly, there are still different interpretations of the fiscal 

legislation. In various circumstances, the tax authorities may have different approaches to certain 
issues, and assess additional tax liabilities, together with late payment interest and penalties 
(currently, penalties determined by the duration of delay, plus 0.01% per day delay). In Romania, 
tax periods remain open for tax inspection for 5 years. The Bank's management considers that the 
tax liabilities included in these financial statements are fairly stated. 

Transfer pricing 

Romanian tax legislation includes the "market value" principie according to which transactions 
between related parties should be carried out at market value. Local taxpayers engaged in related 
party transactions have to prepare and make available upon the written request of the Romanian Tax 
Authorities their transfer pricing documentation file. Failure to present the transfer pricing 
documentation file, or presenting an incomplete file, may lead to non-compliance penalties; 
additionally, notwithstanding the contents of the transfer pricing documentation, the tax authorities 
may interpret the facts and transactions differently from management and impose additional tax 
liabilities resulting from transfer price adjustments. The Company's management believes that the 
Companywill not suffer losses în case of a fiscal inspection on the subject of transfer prices. However, 
the impact of any challenge by the tax authorities cannot be reliably estimated. 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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translation. 
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41 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES ANO COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Credit related commitments 

The Bank made investments on the inter-bank market and granted loans that were not fully drawn 
by the clients. The validity period of these commitments does not exceed the contractual maturity 
and their utilisation is restricted by contractual provisions. 
At any time the Bank has commitments for Ioan granting. These commitments take the form of 
approved loans and credit line facilities. The amounts reflected in the commitments for Ioan granting 
are based on the assumption that all the amounts may be withdrawn without restrictions. 

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are available to a customer as 
required. Guarantees and standby letters of credit, which represent irrevocable assurances that the 
Bank will make payments in the event that a customer cannot meet its obligations to third parties, 
carry the same credit risk as loans. Documentary and commercial letters of credit, which are written 
undertakings by the Bank on behalf of a customer authorizing a third party to draw drafts on the 
Bank up to a stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions, are collateralized by the 
underlying shipments of goods to which they relate and therefore carry less risk than a direct 
borrowing. Commitments to extend credits represent unused portions of authorizations to extend 
credit in the form ofloans, guarantees or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments 
to extend credit, the Bank is potentially exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total unused 
commitments, if the unused commitments would be withdrawn. However, the likely amount of loss 
is less than the total unused commitments since mast commitments to extend credit are contingent 
upon customers maintaining specific credit standards. The Bank monitors the maturity of credit 
commitments because longer-term commitments generally have a greater degree of credit risk than 
shorter-term commitments. 

Loan commitments and guarantee letters issued on behalf of clients in balance are the following: 

Letters of guarantee issued for customers, out of which: 
Guarantees for auctions 
Good performance guarantees 
Guarantees for advances refunds 
Guarantees for payment insurance 
Guarantees for custom duties and other claims 
Other guarantees 
Undrawn credit commitments 
Total 
Provision for undrawn Ioan commitments and financial 
guarantees issued (Note 30) 

3 1 December 2023 3 1 December 2022 

2.127.860 1.958,378 
6,616 9,371 

534,108 376,296 

735,299 784,423 
285,056 

7,184 

559,598 
4,347,042 

6,4z4.902 

287,455 
8,215 

492,618 

4,443,747 
6,402,125 

~ 

Part of the issued to customers guarantees are covered by cash collateral deposits in amount of RON 
69,036 thousand (2022: RON 56,387 thousand). 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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42 EVENTSSUBSEQUENTTOTHEBALANCESHEETDATE 

There were no significant events subsequent to December 31, 2023. 

Bogdan Constantin Neacşu 
General Manager -Pre • 

Ştefan Silviu Fota 
Director, Accounting Division 

The accompanying notes from pages 13 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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translation. 
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lndeoendent Auditors· Reoort 
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To the sole Shareholder of CEC Bank S.A. 

13 Calea Victoriei, 3rd district, Bucharest 

Unique Registration Code: 361897 

Report on the Audit of the consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 

Opinion 

1. We have audited the accompanying: 

• Consolidated financial statements of CEC Bank S.A. ("the Bank") and its subsidiary (together "the Group"), 
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, the consolidated 
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes în equity and cash flows for the year 
then ended, and notes, comprising material accounting policies and other explanatpry information, and 

• Separate financial statements of the Bank, which comprise the separate statement of financial position as 
at 31 December 2023, the separate statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes 
în equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising material accounting policies and 
other explanatory information. 

2. The consolidated and separate financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2023 are 
identified as follows: 

• Total equity ofthe Group: 
• Group's net profit for the year: 

• Total equity ofthe Bank: 
• Bank's net profit for the year: 

RON 4,853,010 thousand 
RON 540,145 thousand 

RON 4,828,442 thousand 
RON 515,808 thousand 

1 TRANSLATOR'S EXPLANATORY NOTE: The above translation ofthe auditors' report is provided as a free translation from Romanian which is the official and 

binding version and it refers to the Romanian official version of the consolidated and separate financial statements. 

© 2024 KPMG Audit SRL, a Roman ian limited liability company and a member fiml 
of the KPMG global Organization of independent member firms afflhated w1th 
KPMG lnternational limited, a private English company limited by guarantee Alt 
rights reserved. 

Fiscal registration code 
R012997279 
Trade Registry no.J40/4439/2000 
Share Capital 2,000 RON 
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3. ln our opinion, the accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements give a true and fair view ofthe 

consolidated and unconsolidated financial position of, respectively, the Group and the Bank as at 31 December 
2023, and of their respective consolidated and unconsolidated financial performance and cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with the lnternational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European 
Union ("IFRS") and with the National Bank of Romania's Order no. 27/2010 for the approval of the accounting 
regulations in accordance with IFRS, with subsequent changes ("NBR Order no. 27/2010"). 

Basis for Opinion 

4. We conducted our audit in accordance with lnternational Standards on Auditing ("ISAs"), Regulation (EU) no. 
537 /2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council ("the Regulation") and Law no. 162/2017 ("the Law"). 
Our responsibilities under those standards and regulations are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 

• of the Group and the Bank in accordance with lnternational Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Jnternational 
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including lnternational Jndependence Standards) ("IESBA Code") 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated and separate financial 
statements in Remania, including the Regulation and the Law and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained _is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

' Key Audit Matters 

5. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 
the consolidated and separate financial statements ofthe current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit ofthe consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole, andin forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

lmpairment of loans and advances to customers 

As of 31 December 2023, the consolidated and separate financial statements include: 

• Gross loans and advances to customers: RON 33,511,857 thousand (31 December 2022: RON 30,872,784 
thousand) 

• Related expected credit losses: RON 1,887,307 thousand (31 December 2022: RON 1,648,747 thousand) 

and, for the year then ended, net impairment losses for loans and advances to customers of RON 485,508 thousand 
(2022: total net impairment losses for loans and advances to customers of RON 461,831 thousand). 

Refer to the following notes to the consolidated and separate financial statements: 

Notes 2.9 Summary of material accounting policies - Financial assets and liabilities, 3 - Financial risk management, 11 
- Net impairment loss on loans and advances to customers and 18- Loans and advances to customers. 

The key audit matter 

► lmpairment allowances represent 
management's best estimate ofthe expected 
credit losses ("ECLs") within loans and 
advances to customers (collectively "loans", 
"exposures") at amortized cost at the 
reporting date. 

How the matter was addressed in our audit 

Our audit procedures performed, where relevant, with the 
assistance from our own financial risk management, 
information technology (IT) audit and valuation specialists, 
included, among others: 

• lnspecting the ECL impairment methods and models 
applied, and evaluating, among others, the following: 

► lmpairment allowances for the performing 
exposures (stage 1 and stage 2 in the IFRS 9 
hierarchy) as well as non-performing 

O The models' key elements against the requirements of 
IFRS 9 and industry practice; and 
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exposures (stage 3), with amounts not 
exceeding certain pre-determined thresholds 
individually, are determined by modelling 
techniques, relying on key parameters, such 
as the probability of default (PD), exposure at 
default (EAD), credit conversion factor (CCF) 
and loss given default (LGD), which are 
themselves developed based on complex 
models (together "collective impairment 
allowance"). The estimation of collective 
impairment allowance takes into account 
historical experience, identification of 
exposures with a significant increase in credit 
risk ("SICR"), forward~looking information 
and management judgment. 

► lmpairment allowances for non-performing 
(Stage 3) individual ţxposures with amounts 
exceeding certain pre-determined thresholds 
are determined on an individual basis by 
means of a discounted cash flows analysis. 
The process relies on a number of sensitive 
assumptions, in particular those in respect of 
the recovery scenarios and the expected 
proceeds from the sale of the related 
collateral and estimated period for collateral 

. disposal. 

► ln the wake of the geopolitica! volatility due 
to, among other things, the outbreak of the 
Russia-Ukraine war, and given the adverse 
macroeconomic effects of the increase in 
commodity prices, resulting inflationary 
pressures and prolonged period of elevated 
interest rates and related challenges on the 
real estate market, measurement of 
impairment allowances was associated with 
additional complexities and increased 
estimation uncertainty. Among other things, 
the application of post-model adjustments 
was required from management in arriving at 
the year-end estimate of impairment losses. 

► Considering the above factors, we 
determined impairment of loans and 
advances to customers to be associated with 
significant risk of material misstatement in 
the consolidated and separate financial 
statements. 

► Therefore, the area required our increased 
attention in the audit and, as such, was 
determined to bea key audit matter. 

• 

• 

• 

o Adequacy of the methods' and models' sophistication, 
based on the assessment of both entity-level and Ioan 
portfolio-level factors. 

Testing the design and implementation and, where 
relevant, operating effectiveness of selected controls 
within the impairment process, such as those in respect of: 

O ECL model selection; 

O completeness and accuracy of relevant data inputs in 
the Bank's systems (mainly for Ioan exposure, maturity 
date, collateral values and interest rates data); 

o approval, of loans; 

o system computation of debt service and forbearance 
monitoring; 

As part of the procedure, we have a Iso tested the IT control 
environment for data security and access. 

Assessing the consistency of the application of the 

following SICR criteria: 30 past-due days, forborne flag, 

client financial performance, ·and of the criteria for 

identification of objective evidence of impairment 

(default), such as: 90 past-due days, insolvency flag, and 

client financial performance. As part of the procedure, we 

have also challenged, for a risk-based sample of exposures, 

the loans' classification into the stages prescribed ,by IFRS 

9. 

For collective impairment allowance: 

o Testing, on a sample basis, the relevance and reliability 

of the data used in the process of calculating the PD, 

EAD and LGD parameters applied in the model, by 

reference to the supporting evidence, such as credit 

risk memoranda, debt service status, forbearance 

occurrence, repayment schedules and underlying data 

for collections occurring after default. 

o For a sample of Ioan portfolios, challenging, by means 

of the reperformance of the underlying respective ' 

model application, whether the key parameters: PD, 

LGD, EAD and CCF, were appropriately determined. 

o Challenging key assumptions underlying 

macroeconomic forecasts considered in the ECL 

models. As part of the procedure, we challenged the 

consideration ofthe current economic uncertainty, by 

making inquiries ofthe management and inspection of 

publicly available information. 

o Challenging significant post-model adjustments, by 

evaluating the appropriateness of the calculation 

method and key underlying assumptions. 

• For impairment allowances calculated individually, for a 

risk-based sample of loans, challenging the Bank's cash flow 



Other information 

projections and key assumptions used therein, including 

realizable values of collaterals and recovery periods, by 

reference to the information în respective Ioan files and 

collateral appraisal reports, our knowledge of the relevant 

industry and of the borrower; 

• Based on the outcome of the preceding procedures, 

recomputing the ECLs. 

• Evaluating the ECL-related disclosures în the consolidated 
and separate financial statements against the qualitative 
and quantitative requirements of the relevant financial 
reporting standards. 

6. The Board of Directors îs responsible for the preparation and presentation of other information. The other 
information comprises the Annual Report prepared as per the requirements of the Financial Supervisory 
Authority Regulation No. 5/2018, the consolidated and separate Board of Directors' Report (which a Iso includes 
the Non-Financial Statement), but does not include the consolidated and separate finan~ial statements and our 
auditors' report thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information and, 
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated în our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon. 

ln connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, our responsibility îs to read 
the other information and, în doing so, consider whether the other information îs materially inconsistent with 
the consolidated and separate financial statements or our knowledge obtained în the au dit, or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. lf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there îs a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report în this 
regard. 

Other Reporting Responsibilities Related to Other Information - the conso/idated and separate Board of 
Directors' Report 

With respect to the consolidated and separate Board of Directors' Report, we read and report whether the 
consolidated and separate Board of Directors' Report îs prepared, în all material respects, în accordance with 
NBR Order no. 27/2010, articles 12, 13, 15, 16 and 17 and 32 of the accounting regulations în accordance with 
lnternational Financial Reporting Standards applicable to credit institutions. 

Based solely on the work required tobe undertaken în the course of the au dit of the consolidated and separate 
financial statements, în our opinion: 

a') The information given în the consolidated and separate Board of Directors' Report for the financial year for 
which the consolidated and separate financial statements are prepared îs consistent, în all material respects, 
with the consolidated and separate financial statements; 

b) The consolidated and separate Board of Directors' Report has been prepared, în all material respects, în 
accordance with NBR Order no. 27 /2010, articles 12, 13, 15, 16 and 17 and 32 of the accounting regulations 
în accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards applicable to credit institutions. 

ln addition, în light of the knowledge and understanding of the Bank and of the Group and its environment 
obtained în the course of our au dit we are required to report if we have identified material misstatements în the 
consolidated and separate Board of Directors' Report. We have nothing to report în this regard. 
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Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated and Separate 
Financial Statements 

7. Management is responsible for the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that give a 
true and fair view in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European 
Un ion and with National Bank of Romania's Order no. 27 /2010 for the approval of the accounting regulations in 
acordance with IFRS with subsequent changes and for such internai control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

8. ln preparing the consolidated a~d separate financial statements, management îs responsible for assessing the 
Bank's and Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank 
or tbe Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

9. Those charged with governance, are responsible for overseeing the Bank's and Group's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditors' Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 

10. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance îs a high levei of assurance, but îs not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detecta material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or în the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these consolidated and separate financial statements. 

11. As part of an audit 4n accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that îs sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud îs higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internai control. 

Obtain an understanding of internai control relevant to the audit în order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate în the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Bank's and Group's internai control. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Bank's and Group's ability to continue as a going concern. lf we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention în our auditors' report to the related 
disclosures în the consolidated and separate financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditors' rep_ort. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank or the Group to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events în a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
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Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business 
activities within the Group to express an op inion on the consolidated and separate financial statements. We 
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion., . 

12. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the au dit and significant au dit findings, includîflg any significant deficiencies în internai control that we 
identify during our audit. 

13. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with rel(;!vant ethical 
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate'threats 
or safeguards applied. 

14. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were 
of most significance în the audit ofthe consolidated and separate financial statements ofthe current period and 
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters în our auditors' report unless law or regulation 
precludes public .cJisclosure about the matter or when, în extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated în our report because· the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Reoort on Other Legal and Regulatory Reauirements -Reoort on comoliance with the 
ESEF Regulation 

15. ln accordance with Law no. 162/2017 on statutory audits of annual financial statements and consolidated and 
separate financial statements and amendment of certa în regulations, we are· required to express an opinion 
on compliance of the consolidated and separate financial statements, issued în Romanian, included în the 
Annual Report and endorsed by the Board of Directors, with the requirements of the Commission Delegated 
Regulation (EU) 2018/815 of 17 December 2018 supplementing Directive 2004/109/EC of the European 
Parliament and of the Council with regard to regulatory technical standards on the specification of a single 
electronic reporting format (the "RT5 on E5EF"). 

Responsibilities of the management 

16. Management îs responsible for the preparation of the consolidated and separate financial statements în a 
digital format, issued în Romanian, that complies_with the RT5 on ESEF. This responsibility includes: 

The preparation of the consolidated and separate financial statements în the applicable xHTML format, 
issued în Romanian; 

The selection and application of appropriate iXBRL tags, în the preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements, using judgment where necessary; 

Ensuring consistency between digitised information în the machine and human-readable formats and 
the signed consolidated and separate financial statements; and 

The design, implementation and maintenance of internai controls relevant to the application of the RTS 
on E5EF. 
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Auditors' Responsibilities 

17. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on whether the consolidated and separate financial statements, 
issued in Romanian, included in the Annual Report, comply, in all material respects, with the RTS on ESEF, 
based on the evidence we have obtained. We conducted our reasonable assurance engagement in accordance 
with lnternational Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised), Assurance Engagements Other than 
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information (ISAE 3000) issued by the lnternational Auditing and 
Assurance Standards Board. 

A reasonable assurance engagement in accordance with ISAE 3000 involves performing procedures to obtain 
evidence about compliance with the RTS on ESEF. The nature, timing and extent of procedures selected 
depend on the auditor's judgment, includipg the assessment of the risks of material departures from the 
requirements set out in the RTS on ESEF, whether due to fraud or error. Our procedures included, among 
other things: 

► Regarding the consolidated financial statements: 

Obtaining an understanding ofthe tagging process; 

Evaluating the design and implementation of relevant controls aver the tagging process; 

Tracing the tagged data to the consolidated financial statements of the Group presented in human­
readable digital format and to the signed and audited consolidated financial statements, stamped by 
us for identification purposes; 

Evaluating the completeness of the Group's tagging of the consolidated financial statements; 

Evaluating the a·ppropriateness of the Group's use of iXBRL elements selected from the ESEF taxonomy 
and creation of extension elements where no suitable element in the ESEF taxonomy has been 
identified; 

Evaluating the use of anchoring in relation to the extension elements; 

► Regarding the consolidated and separate financial statements: 

Evaluating the appropriateness of the digital format of the consolidated and separate financial 
statements; and • 

Assessing consistency between the digitised information in the machine and human-readable formats 
and the signed and audited consolidated and separate financial statements, stamped by us for 
identification purposes. 

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Opinion 

18. ln our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements of the Group and of the Bank, issued in 
Romanian, as at and for the year ended 31 December 2023 have been prepared, in all material respects, in 
accordance with the requirements of the RTS on ESEF. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reouirements 

19. We were appointed by the General Shareholders' Meeting on 21 September 2020 to audit the consolidated and 
separate financial statements of CEC Bank SA for the year ended 31 December 2023. Our total uninterrupted 
period of engagement is 9 years, covering the periods ended 31 December 2015 to 31 December 2023. 

20. We confirm that: 

Our audit 9pinion is consistent with the additional report presented to the Audit Committee of the Bank 
which we issued on 18 April· 2024. We also remained independent of the audited entity in conducting the 
audit. 

We have not provided to the Group the prohibited non-audit services (NASs) referred to in Article 5(1) of 
EU Regulation (EU) No 537/2014. 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' report is Furtuna Cezar Gabriel. 

For and on behalf of KPMG Audit S.R.L.: 

Refer to the original signed Romanian version 

Furtuna Cezar Gabriel 

registered in the electronic public register of financial 
auditors and audit firms under no AF1526 

Bucharest, 19 April 2024 

KPMG Audit SRL 

registered în the electronic public register of 
financial auditors and audit firms under no FA9 



STATEMENT 
As per provisions the article 30 and article 31 of the Accounting Law no. 82/1991 

The annual financial statements were prepared as at 31.12.2023 for: 

Legal entity: CEC BANK SA 
County: 40-THE MUNICIPALITY OF BUCHAREST 
Address: Bucharest city, str. CALEA VICTORIEI, no. 13, tel. 0213143985 Trade Registry number: 
J40/155/1997 
Form of ownership: 12 - Commercial corn pan ies with full state capital 
Main activity (CAEN code and class name): 6419 - Other monetary intermediation activities 
Fiscal identification code: 361897 

The General Manager- President of Executive Committee, Bogdan Constantin Neacsu takes full 
responsibility for preparing the annual financial statements as at December 31, 2023 and 
confirms that: 

a) The accounting policies used to prepare the annual financial statements are in accordance 
with the applicable accounting regulations. 

b) The annual financial statements present a true image of the financial position, financial 
performance and other information relating to the activity carried out. 

c) The legal entity carr' s its business on an ongoing basis. 
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